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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
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or
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For the transition period from to
Commission File Number: 001-34846
RealPage, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)
Delaware 75-2788861
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
4000 International Parkway
Carrollton, Texas 75007-1951
(Address of principal executive offices (Zip Code)

(972) 820-3000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We have made forward-looking statements in thisuAhReport on Form 10-Khat are subject to risks and uncertainti
Forward-looking statements within the meaning of Sectioh 27 the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, ardiocBeand
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1884amended, are subject to the “safe harborgated by those sections. 1
forward-looking statements in this report are based on managemens beliefs and assumptions and on information culye
available to our management. In some cases, youdmanify forward-looking statements by terms sastanticipates,” “aspires,”
“believes,” “can,” “continue,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “projects,” “seeks,” “should,” “will”
or “would” or the negative of these terms and semiexpressions intended to identify forwdomking statements. These statem
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties atiebr factors, which may cause our actual resyderformance, time frames
achievements to be materially different from aryrieiresults, performance, time frames or achievemexpressed or implied by 1
forward-looking statements. We discuss many of these tigkgrtainties and other factors in this documengieater detail unde
the heading “Risk Factors.We believe it is important to communicate our etqt@ms to our investors. However, there may
events in the future that we are not able to priedlacurately or over which we have no control. Tisks described in “Risk Factors”
included in this report, as well as any other cantry language in this report, provide examplesisis, uncertainties and ever
that may cause our actual results to differ matlyirom the expectations we describe in our forevlmoking statements. Before y
invest in our common stock, you should be awarettteaoccurrence of the events described in “Rigktérs” and elsewhere in th
report could harm our business.

Given these risks, uncertainties and other factgm) should not place undue reliance on these faiv@oking statement:
Also, these forwarlooking statements represent our estimates andw@ssons only as of the date of this filing. Youwdtiagead this
document completely and with the understanding thiatactual future results may be materially diéfet from what we expect. \
hereby qualify our forwardeoking statements by these cautionary statem&mntsept as required by law, we assume no obligatik
update these forwarbboking statements publicly, or to update the remsactual results could differ materially from tl
anticipated in these forward-looking statementgne¥ new information becomes available in thereitu
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PART |
ltem 1. Business
Company Overview

RealPage, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and itsididries, (the “Company” or “we” or “us”s a leading provider of «
demand software solutions for the rental housirdustry. Our broad range of property managementisoli enables owners &
managers of single-family and a wide variety of tinfadmily rental property types to manage their markgtpricing, screenin
leasing, accounting, purchasing and other propmpgrations. Our on demand software solutions alieeded through an integrat
software platform that provides a single point ofess and a shared repository of prospect, resaaehproperty data. By integrat
and streamlining a wide range of complex process®k interactions among the rental housing ecosysteowners, manage
prospects, residents and service providers, otiopta helps optimize the property management proeesl improves the experie
for all of these constituents.

Our solutions enable property owners and managergetease revenues and reduce operating costsgthttigher occupanc
improved pricing methodologies, new sources of meeefrom ancillary services, improved collectionmsl anore integrated a
centralized processes. As of December 31, 2010,&960 customers used one or more of our on dersaitare solutions to he
manage the operations of approximately 6.1 milliental housing units. Our customers include nin¢éheften largest mulfamily
property management companies in the United Stedaked as of January 1, 2010 by the National Mdditiising Council, based
number of units managed.

We sell our solutions through our direct sales oizgtion. Our total revenues were approximately 838nillion,
$140.9 million and $112.6 million at December 321@, 2009 and 2008, respectively. In the same geriwe had operating incol
(loss) of approximately $6.3 million, $6.9 millioand $(0.4) million, respectively, and net incomes§l) of approximately $C
million, $28.4 million and $(3.2) million, respeetily. Net income for 2009 included a discrete taendfit of approximate
$26.0 million as a result of a reduction of our deterred tax assets valuation allowance.

Our company was formed in 1998 to acquire Rent,Radl., which marketed and sold on premise properpnagement syste
for the conventional and affordable mutimily rental housing markets. In June 2001, weaséd OneSite, our first on dem
property management system. Since 2002, we havandep our on demand software solutions to includeraber of software-
enabled valuedded services that provide complementary salesredeting, asset optimization, risk mitigationljibg and utility
management and spend management capabilities. nmection with this expansion, we have allocatedaigreresources to t
development and infrastructure needs of developimg) increasing sales of our suite of on demandvaoét solutions. In additio
since July 2002, we have completed 15 acquisitafrcomplementary technologies to supplement owriral product developme
and sales and marketing efforts and expand theesabpur solutions, the types of rental housingpprties served by our solutic
and our customer base.

On July 22, 2010, the board of directors approvedmended and restated certificate of incorporatian effected a rever
stock split of every two outstanding shares of gmefd stock and common stock into one share obpeaf stock or common sto
respectively. The par value of the common and cuitke preferred stock was not adjusted as a reduthe reverse stock split.
issued and outstanding common stock, restricteckstmnvertible preferred stock, and warrants femmon stock and per sh
amounts contained in the financial statements Haeen retroactively adjusted to reflect this revesseck split for all perioc
presented. The reverse stock split was effectetlityn23, 2010.

On August 11, 2010, our registration statement omFS-1 (File No 333:66397) relating to our initial public offering w
declared effective by the Securities and Exchangar@ission (SEC). We sold 6,000,000 shares of comstaok in our initial publi
offering. Our common stock began trading on Audi2t2010 on the NASDAQ Global Select Stock Markater the symbol “RP,”
and the offering closed on August 17, 2010. Upassialg of our initial public offering, all outstamdj shares of our convertil
preferred stock, including a portion of accrued baopaid dividends on our outstanding shares ofeSékj Series A1 and Serie:
convertible preferred stock, were converted intb@9,952 shares of common stock.

On December 6, 2010, our registration statemenfFamn S-1 (File No 333-70667) relating to a public stock offering \
declared effective by the SEC. We sold an additi@n@00,000 shares of common stock in the offerifige offering closed ¢
December 10, 2010.
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Industry Overview
The rental housing market is large, growing and cpiex.

The rental housing market is large and charactrizg challenging and locaticspecific operating requirements, dive
industry participants, significant mobility amoreggsidents and a variety of property types, includimglefamily and a wide range
multi-family property types, including conventional, atfable, privatized military, student and senior $ing. According to the U.
Census Bureau American Housing Survey for the drtates, there were 39.7 million rental housingsun the United States
2009. The U.S. Census Bureau divides the rentaihgumarket into the following categories:

Number of
Property Size Estimated Units
(in millions)
Single-family properties
1 unit 14.F
2-4 units 7.8
Multi -family properties
5-9 units 5.3
1C-49 units 8.4
50 or more unit: 3.7
Total Rental Units 39.7

Based on U.S. Census Bureau data and our own ¢ésgimae believe that the overall size of the UeBital housing marke
including rent, utilities and insurance, exceed88illion annually. We estimate that the total mddable market for our current
demand software solutions is approximately $5.&obilper year. This estimate assumes that eacheo89.7 million rental units
the United States has the potential to generataadiyra range of approximately $100 in revenue yret for singlefamily units tc
approximately $240 in revenue per unit for conwaml multifamily units. We base this potential revenue asgionmn our revie\
of the purchasing patterns of our existing cust@meith respect to our on demand software solutitms,on demand softwe
solutions currently utilized by our existing custens, the number of units our customers managetivitbe solutions and our curr
pricing for on demand software solutions. Furthenendhe U.S. rental housing market has recentlyetied from a number
significant trends, including decreased home owriprsesulting in additional renter households aadgher mortgage lendi
standards reducing firstme home purchases and contributing to lower rafaenter attrition as renters choose to remaireirta
units.

Rental property management spans both the residéatycle and the operations of a property.

The resident lifecycle can be separated into fay &tages: prospect, applicant, residency andrpegtency. Each stage |
unique requirements, and a property owner’s or mars ability to effectively address these requiremeats significantly impa
revenue and profitability.

In addition to managing the resident lifecycle, pgdy owners and managers must also manage theatigmesr of thei
properties. Critical components of property operai include materials and service provider procergminsurance and ri
mitigation, utility and energy management, inforimat technology and telecommunications managemestoumting, expen:
tracking and management, document management,tyestaff hiring and training, staff performanceasurement and managen
and marketing.

Managing the resident lifecycle and the operatiohs property involves several different constitiserincluding propert
owners and managers, prospects, residents andesg@naviders. Property owners can include singbg@rty owners, multproperty
owners, national residential apartment syndicatioas may own thousands of units through a variétineestment funds and re
estate investment trusts, or REITs. Property masagften are responsible for a large number of @rigs that can range frc
singlefamily units to large apartment communities. Propewners and managers also need to manage ayvafiservice provider
including utilities, insurance providers, videoje®and data providers and maintenance and cauitals suppliers. Managing th
diverse relationships, combined with frequent restdurnover and regulatory and compliance requérgs) can make the operati
of even a small portfolio of rental properties cdexp Challenges are compounded for owners and neasagsponsible for a lar
portfolio of geographically dispersed propertiedjich require overseeing potentially hundreds ofufamds of individual rent
processes.
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Legacy information technology solutions designednmnage the rental housing property management @eg are inadequate.

During the 1970’s and 198§'the rental housing market was highly fragmeatsdi regionally organized. During this period,
first property management systems and softwardisnkiemerged to help property owners and managiénisbasic accounting al
record keeping functions. These solutions provitimited functionality and scalability and often veenot tailored to the speci
needs of rental housing property owners and masager

Beginning in the mid 1998, the rental housing market began to consolidadearge, nationally focused and publicly finar
companies emerged, which aggregated significanteusnof units. The rise of national real estatefplio managers, many of the
accountable to public shareholders, created a fogadore sophisticated and scalable property manageé systems that include:
centralized database and were designed to optiamizk automate multiple business processes withinrekilent lifecycle ar
property operations. Despite increasing market aeisiathe available solutions continued to be incieffit to fully address tt
complex requirements of rental housing property essrand managers, which moved beyond basic acoguatid record keepil
functions to also include valuedded services such as Internet marketing, appl®ereening, billing solutions and analytics
pricing and yield optimization.

To address their complex and evolving requirememiany rental housing property owners and managave historicall
implemented a myriad of single point solutions anditernally developed solutions to manage theapprties. These solutions «
be expensive to implement and maintain and oftek ilategrated functionality to help owners and nggra increase rental revel
or reduce costs. In addition, many rental housireg@rty owners and managers still rely on papespoeadshedtased approachi
which are typically time intensive and prone to laumerror or internal mismanagement. We believeethéstorical solutions a
inadequate because they:

. require significant customization to implement, @hifrequently inhibits upgrading to new versionspdatforms in
timely manner

. require information technology, or IT, resourcesstpport integration points between property mamesge systems al
disparate vali.-added service:

. require IT resources to implement and maintain datarrity, data integrity, performance and busiressinuity solutions
. lack scalability and flexibility to account for tlexpansion or contraction of a property portfo
. lack robust marketing and tracking capabilitiesdonverting prospects to resider
. lack effective spend management capabilities fotroding property management cos
. lack comprehensive analytics for pricing and yigdimization;
. lack workflow level integration
. do not provide owners and managers with visibilitp overall property performance; a
. cannot be easily updated to meet new regulatiodcampliance requirement
On demand software solutions are well suited to trée rental housing market's needs.

The ubiquitous nature of the Internet, widespreaddband adoption and improved network reliabgityl security has enab
the deployment and delivery of businesiical applications over the Internet. The on dewh delivery model is substantially m
costeffective than traditional on premise software #iohs that generally have higher deployment angsttpcosts and require 1
customer to purchase and maintain the associateersgstorage, networks, security and disastevery solutions.
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The RealPage Solution

We provide a platform of on demand software sohgithat integrates and streamlines rental propeegagement busine
functions. Our solutions enable owners and managesngle-family and a wide variety of mufamily rental property type
including conventional, affordable, privatized nahy, student and senior housing, to manage thairketing, pricing, screenir
leasing, accounting, purchasing and other propepgrations. These functions have traditionally baddressed by individu
disparate applications. Our solutions enable ptygp@wvners and managers to increase revenues anderegberating costs throt
higher occupancy, improved pricing methodologiesy rsources of revenue from ancillary services, awed collections and mc
integrated and centralized business processes.s@utions contribute to a more efficient propertamagement process and
improved experience for all of the constituentsoimed in the rental housing ecosystem, includinghers, managers, prospe
residents and service providers.

Benefits to Our Customers
We believe the benefits of our solutions for oustomers include the following:

Increased revenue®©ur solutions enable our customers to increase teeenues by improving their sales and marki
effectiveness, optimizing their pricing and occupaand improving collection of rental paymentslitytiexpenses, late fees and of
charges.

Reduced operating cos®Bur solutions help our customers reduce costsreamsilining and automating many ongoing prog.
management functions, centralizing and controllpgchasing by omite personnel and transferring costs from the tsitenore
efficient centrally managed operations. Our on damédelivery model also reduces owners’ and managgysrating costs t
eliminating their need to own and support the aapions or associated hardware infrastructuredtition, our integrated solutio
consolidate the initial implementation and traintwsts and ongoing support associated with muléplglications that each prov
only components of the functionality provided by solutions. This is particularly important for perty owners and managers v
want to reduce enterprise-class IT infrastructsogport and staff training.

Improved quality of service for residents and pexgp.Our solutions improve the level of service thatpgendy owners ar
managers provide to residents and prospects byiegabany transactions to be completed online, ditjgy the processing of ren
applications, maintenance service requests and grtgnand increasing the frequency and quality ofirnanication with resider
and prospects, providing higher resident satisfacind increased differentiation from competingperties that do not use ¢
solutions.

Streamlined and simplified property managementrimss processeQur on demand platform provides integrated solstifim
managing a wide variety of property management ggees that have traditionally been managed manoalthrough separe
applications. Our solutions utilize common autheatibn that enables data sharing and workflow aat@n of certain busine
processes, thereby eliminating redundant data eamdy simplifying many recurring tasks. The effidgnof our solutions allow
onsite and corporate personnel to utilize theirtimore effectively and to focus on the strategiorjiies of the business. We a
make extensive use of online training coursewarkam solutions are designed to be usable by neplagmes almost immediate
after their hiring, addressing an acute need ofrih#i-family industry in which employee turnover high.

Ability to integrate third-party products and seses.Our open architecture and application frameworkKitate the integratio
of third-party applications and services into our solutidrigs enables property managers to conduct thesiedss functions throu
the same system that they already use for manheif bther tasks and to leverage the same reppsifoprospect, resident a
property data that supports our solutions.

Increased visibility into property performanc@ur integrated platform and common data repositemable owners al
managers to gain a comprehensive view of the dpesdtand financial performance of each of theagarties. Our solutions provi
a library of standard reports, dashboards, scaldecand alerts, and we also provide interfaces weraéwidely used report write
and business intelligence tools. In addition, onrdemand delivery model makes it possible to delbenchmark data aggrega
across more than 13,500 properties, factor rerggmgnt history into applicant screening processes @eate more accur:
supply/demand models and statistically based @iasticity models to improve price optimization.

Simple implementation and suppddur solutions include preenfigured extensions that meet the specific neédsvariety o
property types and can be easily tailored by owstamers to meet more specific requirements of thedperties and busine
processes. We strive to minimize the need for gsifmal consulting services to implement our sohgiand train personnel.

Improved scalabilityWe host our solutions for our customers, therelgyicang or eliminating our customersosts associat
with expanding or contracting IT infrastructuretlasir property portfolios evolve. We also bear tis& of technological obsolescel
because we own and manage our data center inftastuand are continually upgrading it to neweregations of technolog
without any incremental cost to our customers.
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Competitive Strengths of our Solutions
The competitive strengths of our solutions areoliews:

Integrated on demand software platform based obramon data repositoryDur solutions are delivered through an integr
on demand software platform that provides a sipglat of access via the Internet with a common sépoy of prospect, resident ¢
property data, which permits our solutions to asceguested data through offline data transfen oeal-time.

Large and growing ecosystem of property owners,agars, prospects, residents and service providémough December 2
2010, we have established a customer base of (@0 @ustomers who use one or more of our on demsaftdare solutions to he
manage the operations of approximately 6.1 milliental housing units. Our customers include nin¢éheften largest multamily
property management companies in the United Stetaked as of January 1, 2010 by the National Mirtiising Council, based
number of units managed. Our solutions automatestmdmline many of the recurring transactionsiatefactions among this lar
and expanding ecosystem of property owners and geasaprospects, residents and service providechjding prospect inquirie
applications, monthly rent payments and serviceiests. As the number of constituents of our eceayshcreases, the volume
data in our common data repository and its valu@ecconstituents of our ecosystem grows.

Comprehensive platform of on demand software swiatifor property managemer@ur on demand property managen
systems and integrated software-enabled vatided services provide what we believe to be tliadest range of on dem:
capabilities for managing the resident lifecyclel aore operational processes for residential ptgpaanagement. Our software-
enabled valuedded services provide complementary sales andetiragk asset optimization, risk mitigation, billirand utility
management and spend management capabilities dfiettovely enable our customers to manage eveagestof the reside
lifecycle. In addition, we offer shared cloud sees, including reporting, payment, document managerand training functionali
that are common to all of our product families. 3&h&omprehensive solutions enable us to addressettis of a wide range
property owners and managers across a broad rémgetal housing property types.

Deep rental housing industry experti$#e have been serving the rental housing industcjusiely for over 10 years and «
25 most senior management team members have asgavet approximately 16 years experience in théatdrousing industry. W
design our solutions based on our extensive rdmabking industry expertise, insight into industrgnds and developments
property management best practices that help aiomers simplify the challenges of owning and maragental properties.

Open cloud computing architectur®ur cloud computing architecture enables our smhgtito interface with our customers’
existing systems and allows our customers to outgothe management of thipdwty business applications. This open archite
enables our customers to buy our solutions incréafigrwhile continuing to use existing thighrty solutions, allowing us to shor
sales cycles and increase adoption of our solutigtien our target market.

Our Strategy

We intend to leverage the breadth of our solutiang industry presence to solidify our position deading provider of ¢
demand software solutions to the rental housingstrgt. The key elements of our strategy to accahgliis objective are as follow

Acquire new customer®Ve intend to actively pursue new customer relatiggswith property owners and managers that d
currently use our solutions. In addition to mankgtbur core property management systems, we veidl akek to sell our software-
enabled value-added services to customers of dtirei-party property management systems by utilizing @pen architecture
facilitate integration of our solutions with thosgstems.

Increase the adoption of additional solutions withuiur existing customer basklany of our customers rely on our propi
management systems to manage their daily operatindstrack all of their critical prospect, residemd property informatio
Additionally, some of our customers utilize ourtsafre-enabled value-added services to compleméuatparty ERP systems. v
have continually introduced new software-enabletleradded services to complement our property managesystems ar
marketed our on demand property management systemg customers who are utilizing thipdaty ERP systems. We believe
the penetration of our on demand software soluttorgate has been modest and that there existgicign potential for addition:
on demand revenue from sales of our on demand adtsolutions to our customer base. We have sigmfiopportunities to furth
leverage the critical role that our solutions piayour customersbperations by increasing the adoption of our on ateinpropert
management systems and software-enabled \alded services within our existing customer base vee intend to actively focus
up-selling and cross-selling our solutions to austomers.




Table of Contents

Add new solutions to our platforiVe believe that we offer the most comprehensivé@ia of on demand software solutic
for the rental housing industry. The breadth of platform enables our customers to control manyetspof the residential ren
property management process. We have a unique toptgrto add new capabilities that further enhaogeplatform, and we inte
to continue developing and introducing new soluida sell to both new and existing customers. Thesations may incluc
localized solutions to support our customers ag trew their international operations. We also mut¢o develop new relationsh
with third-party application providers that can use our opehitecture to offer additional product and serviegabilities to the
customers through the use of our platform.

Pursue acquisitions of complementary businessesdyats and technologiesince March 2005, we have completed
acquisitions that have enabled us to expand oufopha, enter into new rental property markets arga@d our customer base.
intend to continue to selectively evaluate oppdties to acquire businesses and technologies thgthrelp us accomplish these
other strategic objectives.

Products and Services

Our platform consists of our property managemestesys and five families of software-enabled valdeded services. C
software-enabled valugdded services provide complementary sales andetirggk asset optimization, risk mitigation, billiragnc
utility management and spend management capabilitiat collectively enable our customers to martagestages of the resid
lifecycle. Each of our property management systents our software-enabled valadded services include multiple product cel
that provide distinct capabilities and can be lg@mh separately or as a bundled package. Each prodoter is integrated with
central repository of prospect, resident and prtypaaita.

Our platform also includes a set of shared clouttises, including reporting, payment, document nggmaent and trainir
functionality that are common to all of our proddi@inilies. Thirdparty applications can access our property managesystem
using our RealExchange platform.

Our platform is designed to serve as a single systé record for all of the constituents of the edntousing ecosyste
including owners, managers, prospects, residertssarvice providers, and to support the entiredestilifecycle, from prospect
applicant to residency to possidency. Common authentication, work flow andr esg@erience across product families enables
of these constituents to access different applinatas appropriate for their role.

We offer different versions of our platform for fdifent types of properties. For example, our ptatfgsupports the specific a
distinct requirements of:

. conventional sing-family properties (four units or les

. conventional mul-family properties (five or more units

. affordable Housing and Urban Development, or HUDpprties;
. affordable tax credit propertie

. privatized military housing

e student housing; ar

*  senior living.
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REALPAGE’

Properiy
Managemant
Systems

Property Management Systems

Our property management systems are typically redeto as Enterprise Resource Planning, or ERRFersgs These solutio
manage core property management business procéssiesling leasing, accounting, purchasing andlifees management, a
include a central database of prospect, applicasident and property information that is accessihbl real time by our oth
solutions. Our property management systems alsrfate with most popular general ledger accounsgpgtems through o
RealExchange platform. This makes it possible festamers to deploy our solutions using our accognsiystem or a thirgarty
accounting system.

OneSite

OneSite is our flagship on demand property managemsystem for multfamily properties. OneSite includes 10 indivic
product centers. Six versions of OneSite are &ildo the specific needs of conventional midtrily, affordable HUD, affordab
tax credit, privatized military housing, studentuking and senior living properties.

Product Center Key Functionality

OneSite Leasing & Rents Prospects, generates, presents and records potatigns, generates lease
documents, schedules move-ins and posts finamaiadactions to the resident
ledger for both new residents and renewal of exgstesident leases. Six
versions support the unique needs of our targetersal rental market:

OneSite Facilities Manages asset warranties, service requests antlumiters so that when a
resident moves out, the resident ledger is autaaljtiupdated with any
damages to be incorporated into the res’s final account statemet

OneSite Purchasing Manages work orders and procurement activitiescahzllates operating
budget variance:!

OneSite Accounting Provides back-office general ledger, accounts payafd cash management
functions. We license OneSite Accounting from addparty accounting
software provider and have modified it to meetrireds of the rental housing
industry.

OneSite Budgeting Enables owners and managers to budget propertgrpeahce and transfer
budgets into the general ledg
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Propertyware

Propertyware is our on demand property managenysitéra for single-family properties and small, caltyrmanaged multi-
family properties. Propertyware consists of fouodarct centers including accounting, maintenance vaork order manageme
marketing spend management and portal servicesldiiion, we offer our screening and payment sohgithrough our Propertyw:
brand to single-family and small centrally managedti-family properties.

Other Property Management Systems

We also offer six additional on premise propertynagement systems — RentRoll, HUDManager, Tenant$pectra, €AM,
and Management Plus. RentRoll serves small coraeaitapartment communities. HUDManager serves siald, Rural Housin
Services and tax credit subsidized apartment contiesnTenant Pro serves the needs of small cororaltproperties. Spectra i:
conventional apartment and commercial modular ptgpaanagement system that serves both the U.Sthen@anadian markets.
CAM and Management Plus property management saftaatomates and streamlines rental activitiesffordable housing.

Most of our RentRoll and HUDManager on premise aungrs have migrated to our on demand property neamagt system
Four of our additional on premise property managensgstems — Tenant Pro, Spectra, i-CAM and Managerlus —were
acquired in February 2010. Over time, we expectyntastomers of these on premise property managesystéms to migrate to ¢
on demand OneSite or Propertyware systems; howaeewill continue to support our on premise propenanagement systems
the foreseeable future and integrate our softwaeded value-added services into them.

Collectively, our on premise property managemestesys represented 4.5% of our total revenue in 20@0ve expect that ¢
on premise property management systems, inclutiegevenue attributable to the on premise propeggagement systems that
acquired in February 2010, will represent less f#nof our total revenue in 2011.

Software-Enabled Value-Added Services

In addition to property management systems, we afitware-enabled valugdded services consisting of five product fam
and 24 product centers that provide complementatgssand marketing, asset optimization, risk mikogg billing and utility
management and spend management capabilities.cflwase-enabled valuadded services are tightly integrated with our Qe
property management system, and we are activedgiating them with our other property managemestiesys.

CrossFire (Sales & Marketing Systems)

The CrossFire product family is usually referreca$oa customer relationship management, or CRMersydt includes produ
centers that manage marketing and leasing opesasiod enable owners and managers to originateyregptack, manage and cl

more leads.

Product Center Key Functionality

CrossFire Content Management System Provides a central repository of property marketingd listing content,
including descriptions, photos, video or animatads, floor plans and site
plans.

CrossFire Contact Centeb Provides call and email routing technology and agtaffing on a permanent or
overflow basis to answer phone calls and email® fpoospects or residen

CrossFire Lead2Lease Provides phone and Internet lead tracking and readlagement services
integrated with popular property management syst

CrossFire Leasing Portal Enables owners and managers to create customiapdrpy websites with rich
content and search capabilities, including transaatidgets for checking
availability, generating a price quote, applyingfiesidency, leasing an
apartment online and paying rent and deposits er

CrossFire PropertyLinkOnline Provides a syndication service that pushes propertjent to search engines,

Internet listing services and classified listingbsites.
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Product Center

Key Functionality

CrossFire Resident Portal

CrossFire Studio

Provides a portal that enables residents to viewngonity events, enter or
check the status of service requests, review stttanpay rent online and
renew lease:

Provides advertising and marketing planning sessitbeough a talented team of
multi-family marketing experts including advertigiplacement and
performance evaluation, leasing and renewal camp#ggign and marketing
consulting services

@) In November 2010, we acquired substantially athef assets of Level One, a leading on demand agattieasing center in t
United States. We plan to integrate Level One withCrossFire product family and to continue thedléne brand

YieldStar (Asset Optimization Systems)

Rental housing property rents have traditionallgrbeet by owners and managers based on their kdgevlef the market al
other intangible or intuitive criteria. YieldStas @ scientific yield management system, similathtzse used in the airline and hi
industries, that enables owners and managers imiaptrents to achieve the overall highest yield,combination of rent ar

occupancy, at each property.

Product Center

Key Functionality

YieldStar Price Optimizer

YieldStar Pricing Advisory Services

M/PF Researcl

Uses current customer and market data and statigtterived supply/demand
forecasts and price elasticity models to calcudate present optimal prices for
each rental uni

Offers outsourced pricing management advisory sesvior owners and
managers who want to utilize Price Optimizer withimgurring the costs to st:
and support it i-house.

Provides multi-family housing market research tigtoa well-established and
trusted name in multi-family market intelligencéneTM/PF Research database
includes monthly and quarterly information on ocangy and rents for
approximately 39,925 rental housing propertieh@aWnited States represent
321 defined metropolitan statistical areas as afdbeber 201C
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LeasingDesk (Risk Mitigation Systems)

LeasingDesk risk mitigation systems enable rentaising property owners and managers to reduceqisircy, liability an

property damage risk.

Product Center

Key Functionality

LeasingDesk Screenit

Criminal Background Services

Credit Optimizer

LeasingDesk Insurance Servic

Evaluates an applicant’s credit using a scoringehodlibrated to predict
resident default and payment behavior by leveragimgproprietary database of
resident rental payment history generated frompooperty management
systems

Ascertains if a prospective resident has commitedme or been evicted from
a previous apartment by accessing databases thaggregated from thirgarty
data providers

Allows owners and managers to optimize credit thoéds based on occupancy
levels and adjust deposit and rent amounts baséueotefault risk of the
resident in a yield neutral mann

Offers liability and renter’s insurance. Liabilipplicies protect owners and
managers against financial loss due to residerdgethdamage, while renter’s
insurance provides additional coverage for resigensonal belongings in the
event of loss

Velocity (Billing and Utility Management Services)

Velocity offers a complete range of billing andititimanagement services.

Product Center

Key Functionality

Convergent Billing Services

Energy Recovery Servic

Infrastructure Service

OpsTechnology (Spend Management Systems)

Provides automated monthly invoicing services e@ngliwners and managers
to increase collections by sending each residembthly invoice that combini
rent, small balances and utility charges onto glsimvoice.

Provides automated utility billing services to eleatwners and managers to
detect and collect utility costs that are the rest¢ responsibility.

Provides contractor services to install electras gnd water meters in apartn
communities through three individual product cemt&felocity also provides
consulting services to assist owners and managénglementing and
managing energy, media, data and telecom servidhsiacommunities

OpsTechnology offers spend management systemerthlte owners and managers to better control costs.

Product Center

Key Functionality

OpsBuyer

OpsMarket

Opslinvoice

OpsAdvantage

OpsBid

Integrates purchase orders, onsite accounts payalitemated workflow
approval (including mobile approvals), budget apersl limit control,
centralized expense reporting tools and documenagement through our on
demand spend management ti

Enables owners and managers to create private tpta&es to manage the
transactions between their properties and thefeped suppliers and service
providers through our on demand eProcurement soil

Provides an on demand invoice management soluietrcentralizes the
processing of both electronic and paper invoicessscthe owner’s or
manage’s portfolio.

Offers a catalog of negotiated discounts for selb#tndors across several
major purchasing categories for owners and mandhatsare too small to
negotiate volume discoun

Provides an on demand procurement system usedryirica larger capital an
rehab related purchases that are not ordered rggt
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Shared Cloud Services

We offer shared cloud services that are tightlggnated with our property management systems aftase-enabled value
added services.

Cloud Services Key Functionality

Portfolio Reporting Aggregates the data from our other solutions aind-frarty applications and
gives owners and managers access to businesslorports and actionable
analytical information about the performance ofirtipeoperties

Document Manageme Provides storage, retrieval, security, and arclgivhall documents and forms
associated with a property management companyisémssprocesses and
procedures

Payment Processir Enables owners and managers to collect rent aredt ptyments electronically

from residents through check, money order, autothelearing house, or ACH,
or credit/debit carc

Online Learning Allows owners and managers to train geographictiipersed employees in a
cost-effective and timely fashion, and allows engpks to complete their
coursework at their convenienc

The RealPage Cloud

We operate a robust application infrastructure keigd to our customers as The RealPage Cloud, vglbigports the delivery
our solutions and also allows owners and manageaitsource portions of their IT operations. ThalRage Cloud operates o
redundant 10GBPS dedicated fiber links connectaig denters containing hundreds of servers andpleuktorage area networ
This architecture makes it possible to expand #ia denter incrementally with little or no disrgptias more users or additio
applications are added. The RealPage Cloud corfist®re than 1,400 virtual servers, 360 physiealars and approximately 7
terabytes of data. The RealPage Cloud processeverage of approximately 16 million transactions gay and, at peak timi
supports approximately 79,000 unique users.

The RealPage Cloud is based on an open architetiiateenables thirgarty applications to access OneSite and
applications hosted in the RealPage Cloud throughRealPage Exchange Platform that provides adoas®re than 100 differe
public and private web services and XML gateways Hre used to import and export data through théndy Application Progra
Interfaces (APIs) and process hundreds of thousahtteinsactions per day. RealPage Exchange alolesour cloud services
access and interface with third-party property ngen@ent systems as well as our software-enable@added services.

In addition, our system is designed to replicatea diato a Universal Data Store, or UDS, each dagcess to UDS is enabl
through an access layer called UDS Direct, whichbées customers to build portfolio reports, dashtt®and alerts using any Oy
Database Connectivity or Java Database Connectogtypliant report writer tool such as Microsoft EkcMicrosoft Acces:
Microsoft SQL Server Reporting Service or CrystapBrts. UDS is also transmitted to a number oflarger customers each ni
to feed portfolio reporting systems that they hbuit internally.

As of December 31, 2010, we employed approximab€lyprofessionals who are responsible for maintgirdata securit
integrity, availability, performance and businesstmuity in our cloud computing facilities. We araily conduct two major audits
our cloud computing infrastructure, including SA8 Type Il and Payment Card Industry, or PCI, auditsaddition, certai
customers conduct separate business continuitysaofdiheir own.

In addition to our production data centers, we ngana separate development and quality assuranibegtéacility used t
control the preproduction testing required before each new relefseir on demand software. We typically deploy neleases «
the software underlying our on demand softwaretgwia on a monthly or quarterly schedule dependimghe solution.

Professional Services

We have developed repeatable, cefétctive consulting and implementation serviceadsist our customers in taking advan
of the capabilities enabled by our platform. Oungdting and implementation methodology leveradpesrtature of our on deme
software architecture, the indusspecific expertise of our professional servicesleyges and the design of our platform to sim)
and expedite the implementation process. Our ctnguind implementation services include projed application manageme
procedures, business process evaluation, businedsl mevelopment and data conversion. Our congutéams work closely wi
customers to ensure the smooth transition and tperaf our systems.
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We also offer a variety of training programs throwgr Online Learning Services for training admtimitors and onsite prope
managers on the use of our solutions and on cuissués in the property management industry. Tmgimiptions include regulau
hosted classroom and online instruction (throughamnline learning courseware) as well as onlineisars, or webinars. We al
enable our customers to integrate their own trgimiontent with our content to deliver an integraded customized training progr.
for their on-site property managers.

Product Support

We offer product support services that provide austomers with assistance from our product sugpofessionals by phone
email in resolving issues with our solutions. Wéenthree product support options: Standard, Fireathnd Platinum. The Stand
option includes product support during businessrdiolthe Frontline option includes the features led Standard option pl
escalation to senior support representatives. Té@Bm option includes the features of the Frawtloption plus emergency prod
support on Saturdays and a designated senior pradyport liaison. Technology support is also aldé for consultations «
firewalls, communications, security measures (idclg virus alerts), workstation configuration arigsadter recovery options.

We also sponsor the RealPage User Group to fdeil@ammunications between us and our communitysefau The RealPa
User Group is governed by a steering committeeuofcostomers, which consists of two elected passtiand subcommittee cha
each representing a RealPage product center op gifquroduct centers.

Product Development

We devote a substantial portion of our resourcedeeloping new solutions and enhancing existingtems, conductin
product testing and quality assurance testing, awipg core technology and strengthening our teabgioal expertise in the ren
housing industry. We typically deploy new releaséshe software underlying our on demand softwaret®ons on a monthly
quarterly schedule depending on the solution. ABetember 31, 2010, our product development gramsisted of 264 employe
in North America and 65 employees located in Hyldada India. Product development expense totaledd%88lion, $27.4 millior
and $28.8 million for 2010, 2009 and 2008, respetyi

Sales and Marketing

We sell our software and services through our disades organization. As of December 31, 2010, mpleyed 116 salt
representatives and sales engineers comprisingales force. We organize our sales force by gebgrapgion and divided in
teams based on the size of our prospective customed property type. This focus provides a higtesell of service ar
understanding of our customergiique needs. Our typical sales cycle with a prospe customer begins with the generation
sales lead through Internet marketing, tdées efforts, trade shows or other means of afefihe sales lead is followed by
assessment of the custonserequirements, sales presentations and producorddrations. Our sales cycle can vary substan
from customer to customer, but typically requite®é to six months for larger customers and orsixtaveeks for smaller customers.

In addition to new customer sales, we sell addii@olutions and consulting services to our existinstomers to help the
more efficiently and effectively manage their prajgs as the rental housing market evolves and etitiye conditions change.

We generate customer leads, accelerate sales opjiied and build brand awareness through our ntiagkgorograms. Ot
marketing programs target property management compaecutives, technology professionals and sebiminess leaders. C
marketing team focuses on the unique needs of mastowithin our target markets. Our marketing paogs include the followir
activities:

» field marketing events for customers and prosps

. participation in, and sponsorship of, user confeesntrade shows and industry eve

. customer programs, including user meetings andaolime customer communit

. online marketing activities, including email cangras, online advertising, web campaigns, webinars @se of socii
media, including blogging, Facebook, and Twit

. public relations; an

. use of our website to provide product and compafogrination, as well as learning opportunities fotgmtial customers
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We host our annual user conference where custobwhs participate in and deliver a variety of progsadesigned to he
accelerate business performance through the userdfitegrated platform of solutions. The confemmnfeature a variety of custor
speakers, panelists and presentations focused sinelsses of all sizes. The event also brings tegethr customers, technolc
vendors, service providers and other key partidgpanthe rental housing industry to exchange ideasbest practices for improvi
business performance. Attendees gain insight into ppoduct plans and participate in interactivesges that give them t
opportunity to provide input into new features dmactionality.

Strategic Relationships

We maintain relationships with a variety of tectogy vendors and service providers to enhance tipabdities of ou
integrated platform of solutions. This approactowa$ us to expand our platform and customer base@edter new markets. \
have established the following types of strategiationships:

Technology Vendors

We have relationships with a number of leading netbgy companies whose products we integrate intqtatform or offer t
complement our solutions. The cooperative relatigrs with our software and hardware technology neag allow us to buil
optimize and deliver a broad range of solutionsubcustomers.

Service Providers

We have relationships with a number of service jgiens that offer complementary services that irgegmto our platform ar
address key requirements of rental property owaarts managers, including credit card and ACH sesyitensaction processi
capabilities and insurance underwriting services.

Customers

We are committed to developing loterm customer relationships and working closelyhwatir customers to configure «
solutions to meet the evolving needs of the rehtalsing industry. Our customers include REITS, ileggroperty manageme
companies, fee managers, regionally based ownerigpe and service providers. As of December 31,020ve had over 6,9
customers who used one or more of our on demandaef solutions to help manage the operations pfagimately 6.1 milliol
rental housing units. Our customers include nintheften largest mulfamily property management companies in the UnBtates
ranked as of January 1, 2010 by the National Mdtiuising Council, based on number of units managed.the years end
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, no one custarneuated for more than 5% of our revenue.

See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated FinandialeSients for the year ended December 31, 201€uftdrer informatiol
regarding measurement of our international revemeklocation of our long-lived assets.

Competition

We face competition primarily from point solutiomopiders including traditional software vendors apither on demar
software providers. To a lesser extent, we alsopstenwith internally developed and maintained sohgt Our competitors va
depending on our solution. Our current principahpetitors include:

. in the multifamily ERP market, AMSI Property Management (owbgdnfor Global Solutions, Inc.), MRI Software LI
and Yardi Systems, Inc. and, in the sinfgetily ERP market, AppFolio, Inc. and DIY Real Hsté&olutions (recent
acquired by Yardi Systems, Inc

. in the applicant screening market, ChoicePoint (acsubsidiary of Reed Elsevier Group plc), Coratoinc (formerly
First Advantage Corporation, an affiliate of thesEiAmerican Corporation), TransUnion Rental Scimgsolutions, Inc
(a subsidiary of TransUnion LLC) and Yardi Systeins, (following its recent acquisition of RentGrdnc., an applical
screening provider), ¢-Site.com and many other smaller regional and Iscadening companie
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. in the insurance market, Assurant, Inc., Bader GompCoreLogic, Inc. and a number of national insge underwrite
(including GEICO Corporation, The Allstate Corparat State Farm Fire and Casualty Company, Farrmensranc
Exchange, Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company amited Services Automobile Association) that markenter:
insurance

. in the CRM market, contact center and call traclsagvice providers Call Source Inc., Yardi Systemms, (which recentl
announced its intention to build a call center) ancherous regional and local call centers, leacking solution providel
Call Source, Inc. Lead Tracking Solutions (a dwmisbdf O.C. Concepts, Inc.) and WBkdCalling, Inc., content syndicati
providers Realty DataTrust Corporation, RentSehtioen (owned by Yield Technologies, Inc.), RentErg{owned b
MyNewPlace.com), rentbits.com, Inc. and companiesigding web portal services, including Apartme#dt§2com, Inc.
Ellipse Communications, Inc., Property Solutiongetnational, Inc., Spherexx.com, Yardi Systems,, livternet listin
sources and many other smaller web portal desig

. in the utility billing market, American Utility Masgement, Inc., Conservice, LLC, ista North Amerioa,, NWP Service
Corporation, Yardi Systems, Inc. (following its eet acquisition of Energy Billing Systems, Inc.danany other small
regional or local utilities

. in the revenue management market, PROS Holdings, The Rainmaker Group, Inc. and Yardi Systems,

. in the spend management market, SiteStuff, Incnéalby Yardi Systems, Inc.), AvidXchange, Inc., NeSystems, In
Oracle Corporation; an

. in the payment processing space, Chase PaymentdatioSs, LLC (a subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase &)CBirst Dati
Corporation, Fiserv, Inc., MoneyGram Internationalk., NWP Services Corporation, Property Solutidm®rnationa
Inc., RentPayment.com (a subsidiary of Yapstone),ltiyardi Systems, Inc. and a number of natioaalking institutions

The principal competitive factors in our industnglude total cost of ownership, level of integratisith property manageme
systems, ease of implementation, product functignahd scope, performance, security, scalabilitg geliability of service, brar
and reputation, sales and marketing capabilitiesfarancial resources of the provider. We beligvat twe compete favorably w
our competitors on the basis of these factors. e laelieve that none of our more significant cotitpes currently offer a mo
comprehensive or integrated on demand softwardigonliHowever, some of our existing competitorséngveater name recognitit
longer operating histories, larger installed cusitbfmases, larger sales and marketing budgets, lagasvgreater financial, techni
and other resources.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of copyright, trademarkl arade secret laws, as well as confidentialitycpdures and contract
restrictions, to establish and protect our proprietights. These laws, procedures and restricfiwagide only limited protection. V
currently have no issued patents or pending pagplications. In the future, we may file patentlaggtions, but patents may not
issued with respect to these patent applicationi$§ patents are issued, they may not provide db amy competitive advantages, r
not be issued in a manner that gives us the piotetttat we seek and may be successfully challebgetird parties.

We endeavor to enter into agreements with our epegl® and contractors and with parties with whondwéusiness in ord
to limit access to and disclosure of our proprieteaformation. We cannot be certain that the stepshave taken will preve
unauthorized use or reverse engineering of ourntdolgy. Moreover, others may independently deveateghnologies that a
competitive with ours or that infringe on our inéeftual property. The enforcement of our intell@ttoroperty rights also depends
any legal actions against these infringers beirggessful, but these actions may not be successfah when our rights have b
infringed.

Furthermore, effective patent, trademark, tradegjreopyright and trade secret protection may aavailable in every count
in which our solutions are available over the In&tr In addition, the legal standards relatingh® talidity, enforceability and scc
of protection of intellectual property rights anmecertain and still evolving.
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Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we had approximately 1&%59loyees. We added over 400 new employees inrNoee2010 i
connection with our acquisition of the assets ofdléOne. We consider our current relationship weitin employees to be good. (
employees are not represented by a labor uniora@ndot subject to a collective bargaining agreegmen

Available Information

We maintain an internet website under the nawmev.realpage.comWe make available, free of charge, on our website
annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports omi&0-Q, current reports on FormkBand amendments to those reports, as
as reasonably practicable after providing suchntepo the SEC.

We file annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly mpon Form 10-Q, current reports on Forri,8sroxy statements and otl
documents with the SEC under the Securities Exahaxd, as amended. The public may read and copynaatgrials that we fi
with the SEC at the SE€'Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Wggin DC 20549. The public may obtain informa
on the operation of the Public Reference Room Hijngathe SEC at 1-800-SE(Q330. Also, the SEC maintains an internet we
that contains reports, proxy and information staets and other information regarding issuers, dliog RealPage, Inc., that 1
electronically with the SEC. The public can obtainy document we file with the SEC at www.sec.gafoimation contained on,
connect to, our website is not incorporated byresfee into this Form 18-and should not be considered part of this repomny
other filing that we make with the SEC.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Risks Related to Our Business

Our quarterly operating results have fluctuated the past and may fluctuate in the future, which doucause our stock price 1

decline.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate agsult of a variety of factors, many of which anetside of our contro
Fluctuations in our quarterly operating results n@ydue to a number of factors, including the rigksl uncertainties discuss
elsewhere in this filing. Some of the importanttéms that could cause our revenues and operatsutsgo fluctuate from quarter
quarter include:

the extent to which on demand software solutionstai current and achieve broader market accepti
our ability to timely introduce enhancements to existing solutions and new solutiol

our ability to increase sales to existing custonag attract new custome

changes in our pricing policies or those of our petiiors;

the variable nature of our sales and implementatyates;

general economic, industry and market conditionthérental housing industry that impact the finahcondition of ou
current and potential custome

the amount and timing of our investment in researuth development activitie
technical difficulties, service interruptions, datadocument losses or security breacl
our ability to hire and retain qualified key peraeh including the rate of expansion of our satesd;

changes in the legal, regulatory or compliance remviient related to the rental housing industryuitiog withou
limitation fair credit reporting, payment processiprivacy, utility billing, insurance, the Intetrend -commerce

the amount and timing of operating expenses andtatagxpenditures related to the expansion of goerations an
infrastructure

the timing of revenue and expenses related to tegehpotential acquisitions or dispositions ofibasses or technologit
our ability to integrate acquisition operationsicos-effective and timely manne

litigation and settlement costs, including unfomrseosts

public company reporting requirements; ¢

new accounting pronouncements and changes in aticgusetandards or practices, particularly any diifec the
recognition of subscription revenue or accountmgnfiergers and acquisitior

Fluctuations in our quarterly operating resultgoidance that we provide may lead analysts to ahaimgjr longterm model fol
valuing our common stock, cause us to face steont- liquidity issues, impact our ability to retain attract key personnel or cat
other unanticipated issues, all of which could eamsr stock price to decline. As a result of theepbtal variations in our quarter
revenue and operating results, we believe thattguto-quarter comparisons of our revenues and operagsglts may not b
meaningful and the results of any one quarter shoat be relied upon as an indication of futurdqrenance.
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We have a history of operating losses and may natntain profitability in the future.

We have not been consistently profitable on a gulgrtor annual basis. Although we have net incomretfie year ende
December 31, 2010 and 2009, we experienced netdax¥s$3.2 million and $3.1 million in 2008 and Z0@espectively. Net incon
for 2009 included a discrete tax benefit of appmately $27.0 million as a result of our net defértax assets valuation allowan
As of December 31, 2010, our accumulated deficis $&89.7 million. While we have experienced sigmifit growth over recel
quarters, we may not be able to sustain or increasegrowth or profitability in the future. We exgieto make significant futur
expenditures related to the development and expardiour business. As a result of increased gém@cch administrative expens
due to the additional operational and reportingsessociated with being a public company, we mééd to generate and susi
increased revenue to achieve future profitabilitpextations. We may incur significant losses infilitere for a number of reasol
including the other risks and uncertainties desctin this filing. Additionally, we may encountenforeseen operating expens
difficulties, complications, delays and other unkmofactors that may result in losses in future qasi If these losses exceed
expectations or our growth expectations are notimitture periods, our financial performance il affected adversely.

If we are unable to manage the growth of our diverand complex operations, our financial performanagay suffer.

The growth in the size, dispersed geographic lonati complexity and diversity of our business amel ¢xpansion of ot
product lines and customer base has placed, andntigipated growth may continue to place, a sigaift strain on our manageri
administrative, operational, financial and othesogrces. We increased our number of employees 5%2as of December 31, 20
to 1,759 as of December 31, 2010 which includes4®@@r new employees in connection with the Noven28410 acquisition of th
assets of Level One. We increased our number oflemand customers from 1,469 as of December 31, 2005922 as c
December 31, 2010. We increased the number of oradé product centers that we offer from 20 as afebeber 31, 2006 to 42
of December 31, 2010. In addition, in the past,hage grown and expect to continue to grow througuisitions. Our ability t
effectively manage our anticipated future growthl dépend on, among other things, the following:

»  successfully supporting and maintaining a broageaof solutions

. maintaining continuity in our senior management kel personnel

. attracting, retaining, training and motivating @mployees, particularly technical, customer sersiog sales personn
. enhancing our financial and accounting systemscanttols;

. enhancing our information technology infrastructymecesses and controls; &

. managing expanded operations in geographicallyedésa locations

If we do not manage the size, complexity and diwvensiture of our business effectively, we could erpee produc
performance issues, delayed software releasescmyr response times for assisting our custometfs mwiplementation of ot
solutions and could lack adequate resources toostippr customers on an ongoing basis, any of whalld adversely affect o
reputation in the market and our ability to gerneratvenue from new or existing customers.

The nature of our platform is complex and highly tegrated, and if we fail to successfully manageeates or integrate ne
solutions, it could harm our revenues, operatingcmme and reputation

We manage a complex platform of solutions that iste®f our property management systems and irtiesdjisoftwaresnablec
valueadded services. Many of our solutions include gdanumber of product centers that are highly irgtegt and requir
interoperability with other RealPage products, adl\as products and services of thpdrty service providers. Additionally, v
typically deploy new releases of the software ulyiley our on demand software solutions on a monthyquarterly schedul
depending on the solution. Due to this complexitg ¢he condensed development cycles under whicbpeeate, we may experien
errors in our software, corruption or loss of oatador unexpected performance issues from timen®. tFor example, our solutio
may face interoperability difficulties with softweamperating systems or programs being used by wstomers, or new releas
upgrades, fixes or the integration of acquired netbgies may have unanticipated consequences arpération and performance
our other solutions. If we encounter integratiomltenges or discover errors in our solutions lateur development cycle, it mi
cause us to delay our launch dates. Any major iateEm or interoperability issues or launch delagsild have a material advel
effect on our revenues, operating income and réipata
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Our business depends substantially on customersergimg and expanding their subscriptions for our stilons and any increas
in customer cancellations or decline in customemmvals or expansions would harm our future operagimesults.

We generally license our solutions pursuant toarust agreements with a term of one year. Our custemmave no obligatic
to renew these agreements after their term expine$p renew these agreements at the same or hagtreral contract value.
addition, under specific circumstances, our custsniave the right to cancel their customer agreésnbafore they expire, fc
example, in the event of an uncured breach bynis, @ome circumstances, by paying a cancellagen ih addition, customers oft
purchase a higher level of professional servicakéninitial term than they do in renewal termetsure successful activation. A
result, our ability to grow is dependent in partaustomers purchasing additional solutions or msifmal services after the init
term of their customer agreement. Though we maingaid analyze historical data with respect to ratlesustomer renewal
upgrades and expansions, those rates may not salgyveedict future trends in customer renewals: €ustomerstenewal rates me
decline or fluctuate for a number of reasons, idicig, but not limited to, their level of satisfamti with our solutions, our pricing, o
competitors’ pricing, reductions in our customesgénding levels or reductions in the number ofsumanaged by our customers
our customers cancel their agreements with us guhair term, do not renew their agreements, reoewess favorable terms or
not purchase additional solutions or professioeavises in renewal periods, our revenue may growenstowly than expected
decline and our profitability may be harmed.

Additionally, we have experienced, and expect tationie to experience, some level of customer tuen@s properties are sc
and the new owners and managers of propertiesqugyi owned or managed by our customers do noireato use our solution
We cannot predict the amount of customer turnovemill experience in the future. However, we haxpexienced slightly highe
rates of customer turnover with our recently aceghiPropertyware property management system, ptintaetause it serves smal
properties than our OneSite property managemenersysand we may experience higher levels of custdmreover to the extel
Propertyware grows as a percentage of our reveffue® experience increased customer turnover,fimancial performance ar
operating results could be adversely affected.

We have also experienced, and expect to continexperience, some number of consolidations of oigtarners with othe
parties. If one of our customers consolidates witbarty who is not a customer, our customer mayddewot to continue to use @
solutions. In addition, if one of our customersc@solidated with another customer, the acquirinagtamer may have negotiat
lower prices for our solutions or may use feweoof solutions than the acquired customer. In easle,cthe consolidated entity
attempt to negotiate lower prices for using ouusohs as a result of their increased size. Thessalidations may cause us to I
customers or require us to reduce prices as at relsehhanced customer leverage, which could causéinancial performance ai
operating results to be adversely affected.

Because we recognize subscription revenue overténm of the applicable customer agreement, a deelin subscription renewal
or new service agreements may not be reflected inliately in our operating results.

We generally recognize revenue from customers lsataler the terms of their customer agreementschviaire typically on
year. As a result, much of the revenue we repodaich quarter is deferred revenue from customeyeagents entered into duri
previous quarters. Consequently, a decline in nesgrmewed customer agreements in any one quatieravibe fully reflected in ou
revenue or our results of operations until futueeiqds. Accordingly, this revenue recognition moalslb makes it difficult for us t

rapidly increase our revenue through additionaésah any period, as revenue from new customers bmisecognized over tt
applicable subscription term.

We may not be able to continue to add new custoreard retain and increase sales to our existing ausers, which coulc
adversely affect our operating results.

Our revenue growth is dependent on our abilitydotioually attract new customers while retainingl @xpanding our servic
offerings to existing customers. Growth in the dachéor our solutions may be inhibited and we maybable to sustain growth
our customer base for a number of reasons, inddiat not limited to:

. our failure to develop new or additional solutio

. our inability to market our solutions in a c-effective manner to new customers or in new vdriicgeographic market
. our inability to expand our sales to existing custos;

. our inability to build and promote our brand; ¢

. perceived security, integrity, reliability, quality compatibility problems with our solutior
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A substantial amount of our past revenue growth eexsved from purchases of upgrades and additisolitions by existin
customers. Our costs associated with increasingniey from existing customers are generally lowanthosts associated w
generating revenue from new customers. Thereforedaction in the rate of revenue increase fromentsting customers, even
offset by an increase in revenue from new customesald reduce our profitability and have a mateadverse effect on ol
operating results.

If we are not able to integrate past or future adgitions successfully, our operating results andggpects could be harme

We have acquired new technology and domain expettiough multiple acquisitions, including our mastent acquisition ¢
the assets of Level One in November 2010. We expenbntinue making acquisitions. The success offaure acquisition stratec
will depend on our ability to identify, negotiatepmplete and integrate acquisitions. Acquisitions imherently risky, and ar
acquisitions we complete may not be successful. &aqquisitions we pursue would involve numeroussiisikcluding the following:

. difficulties in integrating and managing the opiras and technologies of the companies we acq

. diversion of our manageme¢'s attention from normal daily operations of ouribass;

. our inability to maintain the key employees, thg kesiness relationships and the reputations obtisinesses we acqui
« the acquisitions may generate insufficient reveiouaffset our increased expenses associated wihisitons;

. our responsibility for the liabilities of the busgses we acquire, including, without limitatioabiiities arising out of the
failure to maintain effective data security, datgegrity and privacy controls prior to the acqudsit

. difficulties in complying with new regulatory staamdls to which we were not previously subijt
. delays in our ability to implement internal startigrcontrols, procedures and policies in the bssie®we acquire; al
. adverse effects of acquisition activity on the peyformance indicators we use to monitor our pemnéorce as a busine:

Our current acquisition strategy includes the asitjoh of companies that offer property managensystems that may n
interoperate with our software-enabled vahdeled services. In order to integrate and fulljizeahe benefits of such acquisitiol
we expect to build application interfaces that émaich customers to use a wide range of our solsitivhile they continue to u
their legacy management systems. In addition, tuer we expect to migrate the acquired compsartygistomers to our on deme
property management systems to retain them asroassocand to be in a position to offer them our ohs on a coseffective basis
These efforts may be unsuccessful or entail cbstisrésult in losses or reduced profitability.

We may be unable to secure the equity or debt Agndecessary to finance future acquisitions ongdhat are acceptable to
or at all. If we finance acquisitions by issuingui®g or convertible debt securities, our existirigckholders will likely experienc
ownership dilution, and if we finance future acdfioms with debt funding, we will incur interest ganse and may have to com
with additional financing covenants or secure thetit obligation with our assets.

If we are unable to successfully develop or acquined sell enhancements and new solutions, our ravemgrowth will be harmet
and we may not be able to meet profitability ex@ticins.

The industry in which we operate is characterizgdapidly changing customer requirements, techrioldglevelopments ar
evolving industry standards. Our ability to attraetv customers and increase revenue from existisgpmers will depend in larg
part on our ability to successfully develop, briimgmarket and sell enhancements to our existingtisols and new solutions tr
effectively respond to the rapid changes in ouusiy. Any enhancements or new solutions that welde or acquire may not |
introduced to the market in a timely or ce$tective manner and may not achieve the broad eta&ceptance necessary to gene
the revenue required to offset the operating exgenasd capital expenditures related to developmreatquisition. If we are unab
to timely develop or acquire and sell enhancemants new solutions that keep pace with the rapichgés in our industry, ol
revenue will not grow as expected and we may nattibe to maintain or meet profitability expectaton
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We derive a substantial portion of our revenue fraalimited number of our solutions and failure to antain demand for thes
solutions or diversify our revenue base through neasing demand for our other solutions could negatly affect our operating
results.

Historically, a majority of our revenue was derivieain sales of our OneSite property managemenesysind our LeasingDe:
software-enabled valugdded service. If we are unable to develop enhaeceto these solutions to maintain demand foret
solutions or to diversify our revenue base by iasieg demand for our other solutions, our operatesylts could be negative
impacted.

We use a small number of data centers to deliver salutions. Any disruption of service at our fadies could interrupt or dela
our customers’ access to our solutions, which coblarm our operating results.

The ability of our customers to access our sengagitical to our business. We currently serveajarity of our customers frol
a primary data center located in Carrollton, TexXé%& also maintain a secondary data center in dommt®allas, Texas
approximately 20 miles from our primary data cen8srvices of our most recent acquisitions areigezl/from data centers locat
in South Carolina, Texas and Winnipeg, Canada, noamyhich are operated by third party data vendibris. our intent to migrate a
data services to our primary and secondary datterein Carrollton and Dallas. Until this migratia& complete, we have t
assurances that the policies and procedures ie placur Carrollton and Dallas data centers wilfdiwed at data centers opera
by third party vendors. Any event resulting in exted interruption or delay in our customeastcess to our services or their ¢
could harm our operating results. There can been@ioty that the measures we have taken to eltmisiagle points of failure in tt
primary and secondary data centers will be effectio prevent or minimize interruptions to our opers. Our facilities ar
vulnerable to interruption or damage from a nunmdfesources, many of which are beyond our contraliuiding, without limitation:

. extended power los

e telecommunications failures from multiple teleconmiwation providers

. natural disaster or an act of terroris

»  software and hardware errors, or failures in oun aystems or in other syster

. network environment disruptions such as computerseis, hacking and similar problems in our owneystand in oth
systems

« theft and vandalism of equipmel
. actions or events arising from human error;
. actions or events caused by or related to thirdgsa

The occurrence of an extended interruption of ses/at one or more of our data centers could residngthy interruptions i
our services. Since January 1, 2007, we have e two extended service interruptions lastingentioan eight hours caused
equipment and hardware failures. Our service lageéements require us to refund a prorated podidhe access fee if we fail
satisfy our service level commitments related tailability. Refunds for breach of this service leeemmitment have resulted
immaterial payments to customers in the past. Aereded service outage could result in refunds toooistomers and harm o
customer relationships.

We attempt to mitigate these risks at our data ezenthrough various business continuity effortgluding redundar
infrastructure, 24 x 7 x 365 system activity monitg, backup and recovery procedures, use of arsaifiisite storage facility fo
backup media, separate test systems and changegyema@at and system security measures, but our gie@eaunay not protec
against all potential problems. Our secondary daater is equipped with physical space, power,ag®rand networkin
infrastructure and Internet connectivity to supgbg solutions we provide in the event of the intption of services at our prima
data center. Even with this secondary data cehtevever, our operations would be interrupted duthmgtransition process shot
our primary data center experience a failure. Meegoboth our primary and secondary data centegslarated in the great
metropolitan Dallas area. As a result, any regiahishster could affect both data centers and réswdt material disruption of ol
services.
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For customers who specifically pay for acceleradeshster recovery services, we replicate their flatan our primary dat
center to our secondary data center with the napgstandby servers and disk storage available to provideices within two hour:
of a disaster. This process is currently auditecddaye of our customers who pay for this servicamnnual basis. For custom
who do not pay for such services, our current serieével agreements with our customers requirevteaprovide disaster recove
within 72 hours.

Disruptions at our data centers could cause digmptin our services and data or document lossoauption. This coulc
damage our reputation, cause us to issue creditsgtmmers, subject us to potential liability ostsorelated to defending agai
claims or cause customers to terminate or electon@new their agreements, any of which could tieglg impact our revenues.

We provide service level commitments to our custmsnand our failure to meet the stated service leveould significantly harm
our revenue and our reputation.

Our customer agreements provide that we maintaitaioeservice level commitments to our custometatireg primarily to
product functionality, network uptime, critical maktructure availability and hardware replacemEnt. example, our service lev
agreements generally require that our solutionsaaeélable 98% of the time during coverage hourfrally 6:00 a.m. thoug
10:00 p.m. Central time daily) 365 days per yearwé are unable to meet the stated service levaintitments, we may k
contractually obligated to provide customers wifunds or credits. Additionally, if we fail to meetir service level commitments
specified number of times within a given time fraordor a specified duration, our customers maynieate their agreement with
or extend the term of their agreement at no adulitieee. As a result, a failure to deliver servifmsa relatively short duration cou
cause us to issue credits or refunds to a largebauwf affected customers or result in the lossusttomers. In addition, we cant
assure you that our customers will accept theggitsrgefunds, termination or extension rightsiéulof other legal remedies that ir
be available to them. Our failure to meet our cotnmants could also result in substantial customssatisfaction or loss. Because
the loss of future revenues through the issuanagetfits or the loss of customers or other potkhdhilities, our revenue could t
significantly impacted if we cannot meet our seeMievel commitments to our customers.

We face intense competitive pressures and our fi@lto compete successfully could harm our operatiegults.

The market for our solutions is intensely competitifragmented and rapidly changing with relativielw barriers to entry
With the introduction of new technologies and mask@rants, we expect competition to intensifyria future. Increased competiti
generally could result in pricing pressures, redusaes and reduced margins. Often we competdltowsesolutions against existir
systems that our potential customers have alreadiersignificant expenditures to install.

We face competition primarily from point solutiorropiders, including traditional software vendorgpkcation service
providers, or ASPs, and other software as a sereic8aaS, providers. Our competitors vary dependimour product and servic
Our principal competitors in the mulignant enterprise resource planning, or ERP, maneAMSI Property Management (owr
by Infor Global Solutions, Inc.), MRI Software LL&hd Yardi Systems, Inc. These competitors offeh lsoftware and ASP delive
platforms. In the last 12 months Yardi Systems, Im&s expanded into other competitive areas thramaller acquisitions ar
internally developed systems. In the sinfderily market, our ERP systems compete primarilthwiippFolio, Inc., DIY Real Estal
Solutions (recently acquired by Yardi Systems, )inBroperty Boss Solutions and Rent Manager (owmed ondon Compute
Systems, Inc.).

We offer a number of software-enabled vahaizled services that compete with a disparate agd tgoup of competitors. In tl
applicant screening market, our principal compegitre ChoicePoint Inc. (a subsidiary of Reed HEé¢seSroup plc), CoreLogic, In
(formerly First Advantage Corporation, an affiliateThe First American Corporation), TransUnion Rétscreening Solutions, In
(a subsidiary of TransUnion LLC), Yardi Systemsg.lfollowing its recent acquisition of RentGrowclnan applicant screenil
provider), OnSite.com and many other smaller regional and lescaéening companies. In the insurance market, auacipal
competitors are Assurant, Inc., Bader Company, Gmgie, Inc. and a number of national insurance mwdéers (including GEICC
Corporation, The Allstate Corporation, State Fanme land Casualty Company, Farmers Insurance ExehaMationwide Mutua
Insurance Company and United Services Automobileogistion) that market renters insurance. Therenary smaller screenir
and insurance providers in the risk mitigation atte@ we encounter less frequently, but they néedzss present a competit
presence in the market.
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In the customer relationship management, or CRMrketawe compete with providers of contact cented a&all trackin
services, including Call Source Inc., Yardi Systetme. (which recently announced its intention taildh a contact center) a
numerous regional and local contact centers. litiaddwe compete with lead tracking solution piaetis, including Call Source In
Lead Tracking Solutions (a division of O.C. Conegptc.) and Wha Calling, Inc. In addition, we compete with corteyndicatiol
providers Realty DataTrust Corporation, RentSehtinen (owned by Yield Technologies, Inc.), RentEmgi(owned b
MyNewPlace.com) and rentbits.com, Inc. Finally, wempete with companies providing web portal sesjicencluding
Apartments24¢.com, Inc., Ellipse Communications, Inc., Propesglutions International, Inc., Spherexx.com anddY&ystems
Inc. Certain Internet listing services also offarhsites for their customers, usually as a freeevatid to their listing service.

In the utility billing market, we compete at a maual level with American Utility Management, In€pnservice, LLC, ist
North America, Inc., NWP Services Corporation arardi Systems, Inc. (following its recent acquisitiof Energy Billing System
Inc.). Many other smaller utility billing companiesmpete for smaller rental properties or in reglareas.

In the revenue management market, we compete RIHoldings, Inc., The Rainmaker Group, Inc. amddY Systems, Inc.

In the spend management market, we compete withSBitff, Inc. (owned by Yardi Systems, Inc.), Avitt¥inge, Inc., Nexi
Systems, Inc., Ariba, Inc. and Oracle Corporation.

In the payment processing market, we compete withs€ Paymentech Solutions, LLC (a subsidiary of digeh Chase
Co.), First Data Corporation, Fiserv, Inc., Monegfr International, Inc., NWP Services Corporatiompperty Solution
International, Inc., RentPayment.com (a subsidiafyYapstone, Inc.), Yardi Systems, Inc. and a numiienational bankin
institutions.

In addition, many of our existing or potential custesndave developed or may develop their own solgtitrat may k
competitive with our solutions. We also may facenpetition for potential acquisition targets fromr mompetitors who are seek
to expand their offerings.

With respect to all of our competitors, we competsed on a number of factors, including total afsbwnership, ease
implementation, product functionality and scopesfgrenance, security, scalability and reliability eérvice, brand and reputati
sales and marketing capabilities and financial ueses. Some of our existing competitors and newketaentrants may enj
substantial competitive advantages, such as greatae recognition, longer operating histories,rgdainstalled customer base .
larger marketing budgets, as well as greater filmhntechnical and other resources. In additiony ammber of our existir
competitors or new market entrants could combineomsolidate to become a more formidable competittr greater resources.
a result of such competitive advantages, our exjsind future competitors may be able to:

. develop superior products or services, gain graataket acceptance and expand their offerings reffigently or more
rapidly;

. adapt to new or emerging technologies and chamgesstomer requirements more quick
» take advantage of acquisition and other opporesitiore readily

. adopt more aggressive pricing policies and devreatgr resources to the promotion of their brartiraarketing and sal
of their products and services; ¢

. devote greater resources to the research and gevefd of their products and servic
If we are not able to compete effectively, our @pieg results will be harmed.

We integrate our software-enabled vahdded services with competitive ERP applicationssimme of our customers.
application infrastructure, marketed to our custn@s The RealPage Cloud, is based on an opertesitciné that enables thiyhrty
applications to access and interface with appbeoatihosted in The RealPage Cloud through our RgalExchange platfori
Likewise, through this platform our RealPage Claailvices are able to access and interface withr dltikel-party application:
including thirdparty property management systems. We also praadeéces to assist in the implementation, trainggpport an
hosting with respect to the integration of someoaf competitors’applications with our solutions. We sometimes rety the
cooperation of our competitors to implement sohsidor our customers. However, frequently our rel@on the cooperation of ¢
competitors can result in delays in integrationefehis no assurance that our competitors, evemntifactually obligated to do so, v
continue to cooperate with us or will not prospesii alter their obligations to do so. We also @ioaally develop interfac
between our software-enabled vakgded services and competitor ERP systems witlin@it tooperation or consent. There is
assurance that our competitors will not alter tkapiplications in ways that inhibit integration @sart that their intellectual prope
rights restrict our ability to integrate our sobrts with their applications.
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On January 24, 2011, Yardi Systems, Inc. filedveslat in the U.S. District Court for the Centralsiict of California agains
RealPage and DC Consulting, Inc. The lawsuit allegjaims for relief for violation of the Computeralad and Abuse Act, violatic
of the California Comprehensive Data Access andudrrAct, violation of the Digital Millennium Copyrig Act, copyright
infringement, trade secret misappropriation andaurdfompetition. The plaintiff alleges, among otki@ngs, that unnamed RealP:
personnel used unauthorized passwords to wrongfidiyn access to and download confidential, tradseseand copyrighte
information related to Yardi products from Yaglicomputer system. In its prayer for relief, Yafyistems seeks various remec
including unspecified damages and injunctive reBecause this lawsuit is at an early stage, ribispossible to predict its outcon
We intend to defend this case vigorously. Howeeeen if we were successful in defending againsh slaims, the proceedin
could result in significant costs and divert ourragement attention. Prior to filing this lawsuit, Yardi &gms, Inc. contacted
and certain of our customers and expressed conabmg our hosting such competitsdpplications in The RealPage Cloud and
performance of certain consulting services. Weebelithat we are lawfully hosting and accessing Y8ygtems, Incs application:
in The RealPage Cloud solely for purposes authdriae our customers and within our customershtractual rights. However,
Yardi Systems, Inc. or other competitors do notticme to cooperate with us, alter their applicagia@m ways that inhibit or restri
the integration of our solutions or assert thairthrgellectual property rights restrict our abjlito integrate our solutions with the
applications and we are not able to find altermatiays to integrate our solutions with our compesitapplications, our busine
would be harmed. Yardi Systems has also expressammncern that we may misappropriate its intali@cproperty by hosting i
applications for our mutual customers in The RegéP@loud.

Variability in our sales and activation cycles calitesult in fluctuations in our quarterly resultsfooperations and cause our stox
price to decline

The sales and activation cycles for our solutidngm initial contact with a potential customer tontract execution ar
activation, vary widely by customer and solutione \Wo not recognize revenue until the solution iBvated. While most of ot
activations follow a set of standard proceduresustomers priorities may delay activation and our ability recognize revenu
which could result in fluctuations in our quartedperating results.

Many of our customers are price sensitive, and ifirket dynamics require us to change our pricing nmedr reduce prices, ou
operating results will be harmed.

Many of our existing and potential customers aiegpsensitive, and recent adverse global econoariditions have contribute
to increased price sensitivity in the mulimily housing market and the other markets thaseme. As market dynamics change
as new and existing competitors introduce more etditiye pricing or pricing models, we may be unatileenew our agreemer
with existing customers or customers of the busieeswe acquire or attract new customers at the paice or based on the sal
pricing model as previously used. As a resuls jpassible that we may be required to change acingrmodel, offer price incentive
or reduce our prices, which could harm our revepugfjtability and operating results.

If we do not effectively expand and train our salésce, we may be unable to add new customers oréase sales to our existir
customers and our business will be harmed.

We continue to be substantially dependent on olesdarce to obtain new customers and to sell addit solutions to ou
existing customers. We believe that there is siggift competition for sales personnel with thelsléahd technical knowledge that '
require. Our ability to achieve significant revergrewth will depend, in large part, on our sucdes®cruiting, training and retainir
sufficient numbers of sales personnel to supparigoowth. New hires require significant trainingdaim most cases, take signific:
time before they achieve full productivity. Our eet hires and planned hires may not become as gtigdias we expect, and \
may be unable to hire or retain sufficient numtmdrqualified individuals in the markets where wehlieiness or plan to do busine
If we are unable to hire and train sufficient numsbef effective sales personnel, or the sales paedare not successful in obtaini
new customers or increasing sales to our existisgpener base, our business will be harmed.
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Material defects or errors in the software we usedeliver our solutions could harm our reputationgesult in significant costs to u
and impair our ability to sell our solutions.

The software applications underlying our soluticar® inherently complex and may contain materialechsf or errors
particularly when first introduced or when new vens or enhancements are released. We have froentéitime found defects in tl
software applications underlying our solutions aesv errors in our existing solutions may be detéatethe future. Any errors «
defects that cause performance problems or seintiegruptions could result in:

. a reduction in new sales or subscription renewakg

. unexpected sales credits or refunds to our cuswriwss of customers and other potential liabdit
. delays in customer payments, increasing our catleceserve and collection cyc

. diversion of development resources and associatstd;

. harm to our reputation and brand; ¢

. unanticipated litigation cost

Additionally, the costs incurred in correcting detfeor errors could be substantial and could aéleraffect our operatin
results.

Failure to effectively manage the development ofraolutions and data processing efforts outside thaited States could harr
our business.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability tegss high volumes of customer data and enhancéngxéolutions and develc
new solutions rapidly and cost effectively. We eumtty maintain an office in Hyderabad, India where employ development ai
data processing personnel. We believe that perfariiese activities in Hyderabad increases theieffty and decreases the cost
our development and data processing efforts. Howewvanaging and staffing international operatioeguires managemest’
attention and financial resources. The level oft-sasings achieved by our international operationy n@ exceed the amount
investment and additional resources required toagarand operate these international operationsitidudally, if we experienci
problems with our workforce or facilities in Hydéead, our business could be harmed due to delapsonfuct release schedules
data processing services.

We rely on thirdparty technologies and services that may be diffido replace or that could cause errors, failures disruptions
of our service, any of which could harm our busires

We rely on a number of thirgarty providers, including, but not limited to, cpater hardware and software vendors
database providers, to deliver our solutions. Wieeettly utilize equipment, software and servicasrfrAvaya Inc., Cisco Systen
Inc., Compellent Technologies, Inc., Dell Inc., EMEDrporation, Microsoft Corporation, Oracle Corgama and salesforce.cor
inc., as well as many other smaller providers. OneSite Accounting service relies on a ShaSed accounting system develo
and maintained by a thindarty service provider. We host this applicatiorour data centers and provide supplemental devedat
resources to extend this accounting system to theatnique requirements of the rental housing igu®ur shared cloud portfol
reporting service will utilize software licensediin IBM. We expect to utilize additional service yiders as we expand our platfor
Although the thirdparty technologies and services that we currergtyuire are commercially available, such technobgiad
services may not continue to be available on comialr reasonable terms, or at all. Any loss of tight to use any of the:
technologies or services could result in delayth@provisioning of our solutions until alternatitechnology is either developed
us, or, if available, is identified, obtained antegrated, and such delays could harm our busiftesiso may be time consuming a
costly to enter into new relationships. Additiogalany errors or defects in the thipdsty technologies we utilize or delays
interruptions in the thirgbarty services we rely on could result in erroaslufes or disruptions of our services, which aleald harn
our business.

27




Table of Contents

We depend upon third-party service providers forpiantant payment processing functions. If these titiparty service providers d
not fulfill their contractual obligations or chooséo discontinue their services, our business ancemions could be disrupted ar
our operating results would be harmed.

We rely on several large payment processing org#inizs to enable us to provide payment processergices to ou
customers, including electronic funds transfer& BT, check services, bank card authorization, dapdure, settlement and merch
accounting services and access to various repottits. These organizations include Bank of Ameridarchant Service:
Paymentech, LLC, Jack Henry & Associates, Inc., dRjdn Chase Bank, N.A. and Wells Fargo, N.A. We aédy on thirdparty
hardware manufacturers to manufacture the cheakngug hardware our customers utilize to processsaations. Some of the
organizations and service providers are competitdrs also directly or indirectly sell payment presmg services to customers
competition with us. With respect to these orgaitize and service providers, we have significatgis control over the systems ¢
processes than if we were to maintain and opehat® turselves. In some cases, functions necessanyr tbusiness are perform
on proprietary third-party systems and softwaraich we have no access. We also generally do aa¢ longterm contracts witl
these organizations and service providers. Accgidinthe failure of these organizations and senpceviders to renew the
contracts with us or fulfill their contractual ofpitions and perform satisfactorily could resultsignificant disruptions to ot
operations and adversely affect operating reswitaddition, businesses that we have acquired,ayr acquire in the future, typical
rely on other payment processing service provid&fs.may encounter difficulty converting paymentqassing services from the
service providers to our payment processing platfdf we are required to find an alternative souiareperforming these function
we may have to expend significant money, time ahdraresources to develop or obtain an alternatind,if developing or obtainir
an alternative is not accomplished in a timely nearand without significant disruption to our busigewe may be unable to fuli
our responsibilities to customers or meet theireexations, with the attendant potential for lighiltlaims, damage to our reputatit
loss of ability to attract or maintain customersl aaduction of our revenue or profits.

We face a number of risks in our payment processmgsiness that could result in a reduction in ouevenues and profits.

In connection with our payment processing serviegscollect resident funds and subsequently remité resident funds to ¢
customers after varying holding periods. These $uaii settled through our sponsor bank, and ircdlse of EFT, our Originatir
Depository Financial Institution, or ODFI. Currgntive rely on Wells Fargo, N.A. and JPMorgan ChRaaek, N.A. as our spons
banks. In the future, we expect to enter into siméiponsor bank relationships with one or moreratla¢gional banking institution
The custodial balances that we hold for our custena our sponsor bank are identified in our cddatéd balance sheets
restricted cash and the corresponding liabilitytf@se custodial balances is identified as custataposits. Our payment process
business and related maintenance of custodial at€subjects us to a number of risks, including,naa limited to:

. liability for customer costs related to disputedfraudulent merchant transactions if those costeed the amount of t
customer reserves we have established to makepsychents

. limits on the amount of custodial balances that single ODFI will underwrite
. reliance on bank sponsors and card payment praseasd other service providers to process banktcandactions

«  failure by us or our bank sponsors to adhere tdicgpe laws and regulatory requirements or theddads of the crec
card association:

. incidences of fraud or a security breach or odufaito comply with required external audit stamtsamanc
. our inability to increase our fees at times whesdircard associations increase their merchansaeion processing fee

If any of these risks related to our payment prsices business were to occur, our business or finmesults could b
negatively affected. Additionally, with respectttee processing of EFTs, we are exposed to finamisikal EFTs between a reside
and our customer may be returned for insufficiamids, or NSFs, or rejected. These NSFs and refgetsharged back to tl
customer by us. However, if we or our sponsor baankes unable to collect such amounts from the cust@mraccount or if th
customer refuses or is unable to reimburse ush®rchargeback, we bear the risk of loss for theusof the transfer. While w
have not experienced material losses resulting fthargebacks in the past, there can be no assutlaatceve will not experienc
significant losses from chargebacks in the futéumey increase in chargebacks not paid by our custemmay adversely affect o
financial condition and results of operations.

If our security measures are breached and unauthm®ed access is obtained to our custon’ or their residents’data, we may incu
significant liabilities, our solutions may be pert@d as not being secure and customers may cudastop using our solutions

The solutions we provide involve the collectiomgragge and transmission of confidential personal oghrietary informatiol
regarding our customers and our customeustent and prospective residents. Specifically caléect, store and transmit a variety
customer data including, but not limited to, thendgraphic information and payment histories of oustomers’prospective an
current residents. Additionally, we collect andnsmnit sensitive financial data such as credit @ard bank account information.
our data security or data integrity measures azadbred as a result of third-party actions or faé tb any employees’ or contractors’
errors or malfeasance or otherwise, and someonaingbunauthorized access to this information or da¢a is otherwis
compromised, we could incur significant liability dur customers and to their prospective or cumesitients or significant fines a



sanctions by processing networks or governmentdillsp any of which could result in harm to our bess and damage to
reputation.
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We also rely upon our customers as users of ouemsy$o promote security of the system and the datiin it, such a:
administration of customer-side access credengaind control of customeside display of data. On occasion, our customeve
failed to perform these activities in such a maragto prevent unauthorized access to data. To tii&®e breaches have not resu
in claims against us or in material harm to ouritesss, but we cannot be certain that the failureuwfcustomers in future periods
perform these activities will not result in clai@gainst us, which could expose us to potentigiditon and harm to our reputation.

There can be no certainty that the measures weth&ga to protect the privacy and integrity of austomersand their currer
or prospective residentdata are adequate to prevent or remedy unauthaaizegbs to our system. Because techniques usédaio
unauthorized access to, or to sabotage, systemgelieequently and generally are not recognized laninched against a target, '
may be unable to anticipate these techniques émpdement adequate preventive measures. Experiecaegbuter programme
seeking to intrude or cause harm, or hackers, rtiagnat to penetrate our service infrastructure ftone to time. Although we hay
not experienced any material security breaches ai®,da hacker who is able to penetrate our servifastructure coul
misappropriate proprietary or confidential inforioat or cause interruptions in our services. We migé required to exper
significant capital and resources to protect agaorsto remedy, problems caused by hackers, anthayenot have a timely reme
against a hacker who is able to penetrate ourceimfrastructure. In addition to purposeful bresghhe inadvertent transmissior
computer viruses could expose us to security rigkan actual or perceived breach of our securitguos or if our customers al
potential customers perceive vulnerabilities, tterkat perception of the effectiveness of our ségumieasures could be harmed
we could lose sales and customers.

If we are unable to co-effectively scale or adapt our existing architeceuto accommodate increased traffic, technologi
advances or changing customer requirements, our i@gtieg results could be harmed.

As we continue to increase our customer base,uhear of users accessing our on demand softwanéicstd over the Intern:
will continue to increase. Increased traffic covdsult in slow access speeds and response timese Sur customer agreeme
typically include service availability commitmentslow speeds or our failure to accommodate inccedsafic could result ir
breaches of our customer agreements. In additienpntarket for our solutions is characterized bydapchnological advances a
changes in customer requirements. In order to actmate increased traffic and respond to technadbgdvances and evolvit
customer requirements, we expect that we will lpiired to make future investments in our networghdecture. If we do nc
implement future upgrades to our network architectosteffectively, or if we experience prolonged delaysioforeseen difficultie
in connection with upgrading our network architeetwur service quality may suffer and our opegatesults could be harmed.

Because certain solutions we provide depend on asde customer data, decreased access to this atatiae failure to comply witt
applicable privacy laws and regulations or addrgsssacy concerns applicable to such data could haomr business.

Certain of our solutions depend on our continuesksg to our customerdata regarding their prospective and current ress
including data compiled by other thighrty service providers who collect and store datdehalf of our customers. Federal and ¢
governments and agencies have adopted, or aredeoingj adopting, laws and regulations regardingctiiection, use and disclost
of such data. Any decrease in the availabilityuafrsdata from our customers, or other third pattias collect and store such data
behalf of our customers, and the costs of compéianith, and other burdens imposed by, applicabigslative and regulator
initiatives may limit our ability to collect, aggyate or use this data. Any limitations on our &pild collect, aggregate or use st
data could reduce demand for certain of our satstidAdditionally, any inability to adequately adskeprivacy concerns, even
unfounded, or comply with applicable privacy lanegulations and policies, could result in liabilityus or damage to our reputat
and could inhibit sales and market acceptance o$olutions and harm our business.
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The market for on demand software solutions in thental housing industry is new and continues to @dop, and if it does nc
develop further or develops more slowly than we @stp our business will be harmed.

The market for on demand software solutions inrdmgal housing industry delivered via the Intertebugh a web browser
rapidly growing but still relatively immature cormea to the market for traditional on premise sofevistalled on a customer’
local personal computer or server. It is uncertahrether the on demand delivery model will achieme asustain high levels i
demand and market acceptance, making our busimebduture prospects difficult to evaluate and pcediWhile our existing
customer base has widely accepted this new modelfuture success will depend, to a large extenttre willingness of ot
potential customers to choose on demand softwdnmticts for business processes that they view iisair Many of our potentie
customers have invested substantial effort andfiiah resources to integrate traditional enterpsisiéware into their businesses ¢
may be reluctant or unwilling to switch to on demasoftware solutions. Some businesses may be agluot unwilling to use o
demand software solutions because they have canaegarding the risks associated with security lodipas, reliability and
availability, among other things, of the on dematadivery model. If potential customers do not cdesion demand softwa
solutions to be beneficial, then the market fostheolutions may not further develop, or it mayadepy more slowly than we expe
either of which would adversely affect our opergtiasults.

Economic trends that affect the rental housing matkmay have a negative effect on our busine

Our customers include a range of organizations wisagcess is intrinsically linked to the rental $ing market. Econom
trends that negatively affect the rental housingketamay adversely affect our business. The redewnturn in the global econon
has caused volatility in the real estate marketsggally, including the rental housing market, amaeases in the rates of mortg:
defaults and bankruptcy. Continued instability owdturns affecting the rental housing market mayeha material adverse effect
our business, prospects, financial condition asdlte of operations by:

. reducing the number of occupied sites and unitaloich we earn revenu
. preventing our customers from expanding their besses and managing new propert
. causing our customers to reduce spending on outicos;
*  subjecting us to increased pricing pressure inrdadd new customers and retain existing custsy
. causing our customers to switch to lo-priced solutions provided by our competitors oeintlly developed solution
. delaying or preventing our collection of outstargdatcounts receivable; a
. causing payment processing losses related to agaise in customer insolvent
We may require additional capital to support busasegrowth, and this capital might not be available.

We intend to continue to make investments to suppor business growth and may require additionad$uto respond t
business challenges or opportunities, includingnibed to develop new solutions or enhance ouriegisolutions, enhance o
operating infrastructure or acquire businessestacithologies. Accordingly, we may need to engageqinity or debt financings
secure additional funds. If we raise additionaldsithrough further issuances of equity or conviertiebt securities, our existil
stockholders could suffer significant dilution, aady new equity securities we issue could havetsigbreferences and privileg
superior to those of holders of our common stockbtXinancing secured by us in the future couldoine additional restrictiv
covenants relating to our capital raising actigiteend other financial and operational matters, vhi@ay make it more difficult for L
to obtain additional capital and to pursue busirggsortunities, including potential acquisitions.dddition, we may not be able
obtain additional financing on terms favorable & if at all. If we are unable to obtain adequataricing or financing on tern
satisfactory to us when we require it, our abititycontinue to support our business growth anag$pand to business challenge:
opportunities could be significantly limited.

Our debt obligations contain restrictions that impaour business and expose us to risks that coultyersely affect our liquidity
and financial condition.

On September 3, 2009, we entered into a credititfawiith Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLC (formgiWells Fargo Foothill
LLC) and Comerica Bank. As amended on February2P3]1, the credit facility provides for borrowingé up to $103.0 million
subject to a borrowing formula, including a revalyifacility of up to $37.0 million, with a sublimdf $10.0 million for the issuant
of letters of credit on our behalf, and a term Iéeility of up to $66.0 million. In November 201@g borrowed $30.0 million on o
delayed draw term loans to facilitate our acquisitof Level One. At December 31, 2010, we had apprately $66.0 million o
outstanding indebtedness under the term loan thaclliur interest expense in 2010 and 2009 for teditfacility was approximatel
$2.5 million and $0.9 million, respectively.
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Advances under the credit facility may be voludyaprepaid, and must be prepaid with the proceddsedain disposition
extraordinary receipts, indebtedness and equity, @icess cash flow and in full upon a change mtrob Reductions of the revolv
voluntary prepayments and mandatory prepaymenis free proceeds of indebtedness and equity are fdghct to a prepayme
premium of 1.0% prior to June 22, 2011, 0.5% onafter June 22, 2011 and prior to June 22, 2012 G¥dthereafter. Suu
prepayments will be applied first to reduce thentésan, and then to reduce availability under ghelver.

All of our obligations under the loan facility asecured by substantially all of our property. Aflaur existing and futu
domestic subsidiaries are required to guarantyobligations under the credit facility, other thaertain immaterial subsidiaries ¢
our payment processing subsidiary, RealPage Paymmdessing Services, Inc. Our foreign subsidiariesy, under certa
circumstances, be required to guaranty our obbigatunder the credit facility. Such guaranteesxistiag and future subsidiaries .
and will be secured by substantially all of thegendy of such subsidiaries.

Our credit facility contains customary covenanthiijcl limit our and certain of our subsidiaries’l&ito, among other things:
. incur additional indebtedness or guarantee indefetesiof others

+  create liens on our asse

. enter into mergers or consolidatiol

. dispose of asset

. prepay indebtedness or make changes to our gogedoicuments and certain of our agreeme

. pay dividends and make other distributions on aital stock, and redeem and repurchase our cajitek;

. make investments, including acquisitio

. enter into transactions with affiliates; a

. make capital expenditure

Our credit facility also contains customary affitima covenants, including, among other things, imespents to: take certe
actions in the event we form or acquire new subsiel; hold annual meetings with our lenders; glevdopies of material contra
and amendments to our lenders; locate our collatest at specified locations; and use commerciadigsonable efforts to ens
that certain material contracts permit the assigniméthe contract to our lenders; subject in ee&$e to customary exceptions
qualifications. We are also required to comply vétfixed charge coverage ratio, which is a ratiowf EBITDA to our fixed charg:
as determined in accordance with the credit facilitf 1.25:1:00 for each 1&wonth period ending at the end of a fiscal qu
thereafter, and a senior leverage ratio, which ratm of the outstanding principal balance of tenm loan plus our outstandi
revolver usage to our EBITDA as determined in adance with the credit facility, of 1.85:1.00 forchaperiod from July 31, 20
until October 31, 2010, then 2.35:1.00 for eachqgokuntil December 31, 2010, then 2.75:1.00 fothefisral quarter thereafter.

The credit facility contains customary events ofadét, subject to customary cure periods for cert@éfaults, that includ
among others, non-payment defaults, covenant defamlaterial judgment defaults, bankruptcy and lirmmy defaults, cross-
defaults to certain other material indebtedness¢daracy of representations and warranties andllagao meet certain liquidi
thresholds both before and after we make cash patgnfier earnouts and holdbacks in connection witfugsition transactions.

If we experience a decline in cash flow due to ahthe factors described in this “Risk Factosgttion or otherwise, we col
have difficulty paying interest and principal amtsidue on our indebtedness and meeting the finlaocieenants set forth in ¢
credit facility. If we are unable to generate stiéfint cash flow or otherwise obtain the funds nsamssto make required payme
under our credit facility, or if we fail to complyith the requirements of our indebtedness, we cdefdult under our credit facilit
In addition, to date we have obtained waivers umdercredit facility, but such waivers were notated to a decline in our cash fl¢
As a result of our ongoing communications with keders under our credit facility, our lenders waveare of the transactions
circumstances leading up to these waivers and weeoted to receive their approval with regard tohstiansactions ai
circumstances, whether in the form of a conseniyevaamendment or otherwise. The waivers underctieglit facility were ii
connection with procedural requirements under aedit agreement related to: two acquisition tratieas we entered into
September 2009; an update to the credit agreerokatisles to include certain arrangements we hapkage, and had in place at the

31




Table of Contents

time of closing of the credit facility, with our lssidiary that serves as a special purpose vehiclprbcessing payments, includin
guaranty made by us for the benefit of our subsydia favor of Wells Fargo Bank; the payment ofltakévidends of approximate
$16,000 more than the amount agreed to by the tendad with respect to our fixed charge coverag® s a result of paymer
approved by our board of directors and discusséld aur lenders for a cash dividend paid in Decen2®®9 and for payments 1
promissory notes held by holders of our prefertedlsin connection with a prior declared divideldhile we view each of these
onetime events, and while we were able to successhébyotiate waivers for such defaults and amendntertsir credit facility tc
ensure such events would be in compliance withtéhms of the credit facility consistent with ourgming discussions with ol
lenders about these events, we may in the futilreofaomply with the terms of our credit facilignd be unable to negotiate a wai
of any such defaults with our lenders. Any defaludit is not cured or waived could result in theed@@tion of the obligations und
the credit facility, an increase in the applicainerest rate under the credit facility and a regmient that our subsidiaries that h.
guaranteed the credit facility pay the obligatiamgull, and would permit our lender to exerciseneglies with respect to all of tl
collateral that is securing the credit facilityclinding substantially all of our and our subsidigyarantorsassets. Any such defai
could have a material adverse effect on our liquidnd financial condition.

Even if we comply with all of the applicable coveis the restrictions on the conduct of our busiresild adversely affect o
business by, among other things, limiting our &pito take advantage of financings, mergers, adépnis and other corpora
opportunities that may be beneficial to the businéwven if the credit facility were terminated, aidehal debt we could incur in tr
future may subject us to similar or additional coaets.

We also have equipment lease obligations, whicii@dtapproximately $0.6 million as of December2110. If we are unab
to generate sufficient cash flow from our operagion cash from other sources in order to meet dyenpnt obligations under the
equipment leases, we may lose the right to posses®perate the equipment used in our businesshwinuld substantially impa
our ability to provide our solutions and could havmaterial adverse effect on our liquidity or fesof operations.

Assertions by a third party that we infringe itstllectual property, whether successful or not, édsubject us to costly and tir-
consuming litigation or expensive licenses.

The software and technology industries are chaiiaete by the existence of a large number of paterupyrights, trademarl
and trade secrets and by frequent litigation basedllegations of infringement, misappropriationismse and other violations
intellectual property rights. We have receivedhia past, and may receive in the future, commumicatirom third parties claimir
that we have infringed or otherwise misappropridteal intellectual property rights of others. Ouchteologies may not be able
withstand any thirgsarty claims against their use. Since we currehdlye no patents, we may not use patent infringerasrd
defensive strategy in such litigation. Additionalbithough we have licensed from other parties fpetgry technology covered |
patents, we cannot be certain that any such pateéitsot be challenged, invalidated or circumvehtd such patents are invalidat
or circumvented, this may allow existing and patntompetitors to develop products and services #re competitive with, ¢
superior to, our solutions.

Many of our customer agreements require us to imifgmour customers for certain thigghrty intellectual propert
infringement claims, which could increase our cests result of defending such claims and may redbat we pay damages if the
were an adverse ruling or settlement related to sugh claims. These types of claims could harm relationships with ou
customers, may deter future customers from purobasir solutions or could expose us to litigationthese claims. Even if we ¢
not a party to any litigation between a customet arthird party, an adverse outcome in any sudation could make it mor
difficult for us to defend our intellectual propgih any subsequent litigation in which we are ead party.

One of our competitors, Yardi Systems, Inc., caieihais and certain of our customers and expressewmcern that we mz
misappropriate its intellectual property by hostitggapplications for our mutual customers in ThealRage Cloud. On January
2011, Yardi Systems, Inc. filed a lawsuit in theSUDistrict Court for the Central District of Calihia against RealPage and |
Consulting, Inc. The lawsuit alleges claims fotiekfor violation of the Computer Fraud and Abuset,Asiolation of the Californii
Comprehensive Data Access and Fraud Act, violatiotine Digital Millennium Copyright Act, copyrighhfringement, trade secr
misappropriation and unfair competition. The pldinalleges, among other things, that unnamed ReggPpersonnel ust
unauthorized passwords to wrongfully gain accesantb download confidential, trade secret, and dghted information related 1
Yardi products from Yard$ computer system. In its prayer for relief, Yaggistems seeks various remedies including unspe:
damages and injunctive relief. Because this lawisuitt an early stage, it is not possible to pitedcoutcome. We intend to defe
this case vigorously. However, even if we were sastul in defending against such claims, the prdiogs could result in significal
costs and divert our managemendttention. The Yardi Systems litigation or otl@nilar litigation could force us to stop sellir
incorporating or using our solutions that inclute t
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challenged intellectual property or redesign thexdations that use the technology. In additionmay have to pay damages if we
found to be in violation of a third partyrights. We may have to procure a license fortelsnology, which may not be available
reasonable terms, if at all, may significantly eese our operating expenses or may require ustiicteur business activities in o
or more respects. As a result, we may also be medjuio develop alternative namfringing technology, which could requi
significant effort and expense. There is no assgdhat we would be able to develop alternativetsms or, if alternative solutior
were developed, that they would perform as requinede accepted in the relevant markets. In sorstmces, if we are unable
offer noninfringing technology, or obtain a license for suebhnology, we may be required to refund soméerentire license fe
paid for the infringing technology by our customers

Our exposure to risks associated with the useteflé@ttual property may be increased as a resucqtiisitions, as we have
lower level of visibility into the development press with respect to acquired technology or the taken to safeguard agail
infringement risks. Third parties may make infringgnt and similar or related claims after we hawguaed technology that had r
been asserted prior to our acquisition.

Any failure to protect and successfully enforce ountellectual property rights could compromise oproprietary technology an
impair our brands.

Our success depends significantly on our abilitprimtect our proprietary rights to the technologiesuse in our solutions.
we are unable to protect our proprietary rightsgadgéely, our competitors could use the intellecfuralperty we have developed
enhance their own products and services, whichdcharm our business. We rely on a combination gfydght, service mark
trademark and trade secret laws, as well as cartfality procedures and contractual restrictiors,establish and protect ¢
proprietary rights, all of which provide only lire protection. We currently have no issued pat@npending patent applications
may be unable to obtain patent protection in thar& In addition, if any patents are issued infiitare, they may not provide |
with any competitive advantages, may not be issoe manner that gives us the protection that vek sand may be successfu
challenged by third parties. Unauthorized partiesy rattempt to copy or otherwise obtain and usetébknologies underlying ol
solutions. Monitoring unauthorized use of our tembgies is difficult, and we do not know whethee thteps we have taken w
prevent unauthorized use of our technology. If weeunable to protect our proprietary rights, we rfiagt ourselves at a competiti
disadvantage to others who have not incurred thstantial expense, time and effort required totersanilar innovative products.

We cannot assure you that any future service matktademark registrations will be issued for pedin future applications «
that any registered service marks or trademarksbeienforceable or provide adequate protectioounfproprietary rights. If we al
unable to secure new marks, maintain already egistiarks and enforce the rights to use such ma&isist unauthorized thirgarty
use, our ability to brand, identify and promote salutions in the marketplace could be impairedgctvicould harm our business.

We customarily enter into agreements with our eygés, contractors and certain parties with whomdaébusiness to lim
access to and disclosure of our proprietary infétiona The steps we have taken, however, may naotepteunauthorized use or t
reverse engineering of our technology. Moreovermway be required to release the source code ddaftware to third parties und
certain circumstances. For example, some of outomer agreements provide that if we cease to miairda support a certai
solution without replacing it with a successor $iolu, then we may be required to release the soxode of the software underlyil
such solution. In addition, others may indepengeddvelop technologies that are competitive to aurénfringe our intellectue
property. Enforcement of our intellectual propetitphts also depends on our legal actions beingessfal against these infringe
but these actions may not be successful, even whemights have been infringed. Furthermore, thgallestandards relating to t
validity, enforceability and scope of protection iofellectual property rights in Internedlated industries are uncertain and
evolving.

Additionally, if we sell our solutions internatidhain the future, effective patent, trademark,\see mark, copyright and trac
secret protection may not be available or as rotoustery country in which our solutions are aualda As a result, we may not
able to effectively prevent competitors outside theited States from infringing or otherwise misagpiating our intellectue
property rights, which could reduce our competitidlyantage and ability to compete or otherwise hauwnmbusiness.

Current and future litigation against us could beostly and time consuming to defend.

We are from time to time subject to legal procegdiand claims that arise in the ordinary courskusiness, including clain
brought by our customers in connection with comna¢idisputes, claims brought by our customerg’rent or prospective resider
including potential class action lawsuits basedaeserted statutory or regulatory violations, angblegment claims made by o
current or former employees. Litigation, regardle$sts outcome, may result in substantial costd aray divert managemest’
attention and our resources, which may harm ouinbss, overall financial condition and operatingutes. In addition, legal clair
that have not yet been asserted against us magsketed in the future. Insurance may not cover slams, may not be sufficient f
one or more such claims and may not continue tavadlable on terms acceptable to us, or at allladntbrought against us that
uninsured or underinsured could result in unardiggd costs, thereby harming our operating results.
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On January 24, 2011, Yardi Systems, Inc. filedveslat in the U.S. District Court for the Centralsiict of California agains
RealPage and DC Consulting, Inc. The lawsuit allegjaims for relief for violation of the Computeralad and Abuse Act, violatic
of the California Comprehensive Data Access andudrrAct, violation of the Digital Millennium Copyrig Act, copyright
infringement, trade secret misappropriation andaurdfompetition. The plaintiff alleges, among otki@ngs, that unnamed RealP:
personnel used unauthorized passwords to wrongfidiyn access to and download confidential, tradseseand copyrighte
information related to Yardi products from Yaglicomputer system. In its prayer for relief, Yafyistems seeks various remec
including unspecified damages and injunctive reBecause this lawsuit is at an early stage, ribispossible to predict its outcon
We intend to defend this cas@orously. However, even if we were successfutléfending against such claims, the proceec
could result in significant costs and divert oum@agement’s attention.

On June 15, 2009, a prospective resident of oneuofcustomers filed a class action lawsuit styléidor v. RealPage, Inc
against us in the U.S. District Court for the CahBistrict of California. By the partieshutual stipulation in August 2009, the act
was transferred to the U.S. District Court for tBastern District of Texas (No. 4:09Q00439). The plaintiff has alleged tv
individual claims and three clabssed causes of action against us. Individually,phaintiff alleges that we (i) willfully failed t
employ reasonable procedures to ensure the maxiacgoracy of our resident screening reports as medjliy 15 U.S.C. § 1681¢e(
and, in the alternative, (ii) negligently (withing meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 16810(a)) failed to empéasonable procedures to ens
the maximum accuracy of our resident screeningrtepas required by 15 U.S.C. § 1681e(b), in eae cstemming from ol
provision of a report that allegedly included ina@te criminal conviction information. The plaifit§eeks actual, statutory a
punitive damages on her individual claims. In hapacity as the putative class representative, hiatiff also alleges that we
() willfully failed to provide legally mandated stlosures upon a consunwerfequest inconsistent with 15 U.S.C. § 16¢
(i) willfully failed to provide prompt notice ofansumerstisputes to the data furnishers who provided ub thié information whos
accuracy was in question, as required by 15 U.88C1681i(a)(2); and (iii) willfully failed to prode prompt notice of consumers’
disputes to the consumer reporting agencies pmoyidis with the information whose accuracy was irsfjon, as required by :
U.S.C. § 1681i(f). The plaintiff sought certificati of three separate classes in connection withetisaims. The plaintiff also souc
statutory and punitive damages, a declarationdhapractices and procedures were in violatiorheffair Credit Reporting Act al
attorneys’ fees and costs. The parties achieveda@ution of both Angela Minas’individual claims, on November 29, 2010, as\
as the clasbased claims at approximately the same time. Fdiled her Motion for Preliminary Approval, inading the previousl
executed Settlement Agreement, with the U.S. Ris€@ourt for the Eastern District of Texas on Jang 2011.

In January 2007, plaintiffs filed five separate bearly identical class action lawsuits in the WD&trict Court for the Eastel
District of Texas against more than 100 defendais.were named as a defendant in one of thosenacfi@ylor, et al. v. Safewa
Inc., et al. (No. 2:07-CV-00017). On March 4, 2068 Court consolidated these actions with the e, Taylor, et al. v. Acxior
Corp., et al. (No. 2:07-CW30001). In their operative pleading, plaintiffsegled that we obtained and held motor vehicle recor
bulk from the State of Texas, an allegedly impropempose in violation of the federal DriverPrivacy Protection Act, or the DPF
In addition, the plaintiffs alleged that we obtairtbese records for the purpose ofedling them, another allegedly improper purp
in violation of the DPPA. Plaintiffs further purged to represent a putative class of approxima8l® million individuals affecte
by the defendantsalleged DPPA violations. They sought statutory dgesaof $2,500 per each violation of the DPPA, pua
damages and an order requiring defendants to geistfarmation obtained in violation of the DPPA. 8eptember 2008, the U.
District Court dismissed plaintiffsomplaint for failure to state a claim. The pldiistsubsequently appealed the dismissal to the
Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit. The primaigsue on appeal is whether plaintiffs alleged Bupyry-in-fact that would give
them standing to bring their claims. Predicate @éssinclude whether obtaining and merely holdingadsiates a claim under t
DPPA, and whether reelling data likewise states an actionable claimNbvember 2009, the Fifth Circuit heard oral arguinon
the appeal. In July 2010, the Fifth Circuit affiththe U.S. District Court’'s dismissal. The Plaiflatppellants filed a petition fc
certiorari with the United States Supreme Courmtober 12, 2010, seeking review of the Fifth Qifeudecision, and we receiv
service of the petition on October 15, 2010. Thpr&me Court of the United States denied Taylorigtipa for certiorari on Januan
10, 2011.

34




Table of Contents

In March 2010, the District Attorney of Ventura Gy, California issued an administrative subpoemaig seeking certa
information related to our provision of utility bilg services in the State of California. A repreisgive of the District Attorney he
informed us that the subpoena was issued in coionewsith a general investigation of industry praes with respect to utility billin
in California. Utility billing is subject to regulibn by state law and various state administragigencies, including, in California, t
California Public Utility Commission, or the CPU@nd the Division of Weights and Measures, or theNDWVe have provided th
District Attorney with the information requestedtime subpoena. In late August 2010, we receivedddn follow-up requests fc
information to which we have responded. The Dis#ittorney’s office has not initiated an administrative orestenforcement actic
against us, nor have they asserted any violatibiseoapplicable regulations by us. Given the eatfge of this investigation, it
difficult to predict its outcome and whether thestdict Attorney will pursue an administrative ohet enforcement action against
in the State of California and what the result off such action would be. However, penalties or sseents of violations ¢
regulations promulgated by the CPUC or DWM or otteggulators may be calculated on a per occurreasésbDue to the larg
number of billing transactions we process for oustemers in California, our potential liability an enforcement action could
significant. If the District Attorney ultimately psues an administrative or other enforcement acigainst us, we believe that
have meritorious defenses to the potential claimd would defend them vigorously. However, even & were successful
defending against such claims, the proceedingga@sult in significant costs and divert managerseattention.

On November 17, 2010, a prospective resident of\eeLOne customer named us as a defendant in siattien lawsuit style
Cohorst v. BRE Properties, Inc., et iled in the Superior Court of the State of Califi, San Diego County, North Cour
Division. The plaintiff alleges that the defendanpsirsuant to an alleged practice of monitoring a&cbrding all inbound ar
outbound telephone calls, monitored and recordezephone conversation with the plaintiff withobetplaintiff's knowledge an
consent, when the plaintiff responded to an adsemient for an apartment for rent. The putativesclamsists of all persons
California whose inbound or outbound telephone eosations were monitored, recorded, eavesdroppend apd/or wiretapped k
the defendants without their consent during the-fe@ar period commencing on November 12, 2006. dlamtiff alleges four class-
based causes of action consisting of (i) invasibprivacy in violation of California Penal Code 8@ et seq.; (i) common law
invasion of privacy; (iii) negligence; and (iv) amful, fraudulent and unfair business acts andtpes in violation of Californi:
Business & Professions Code § 17280seq The plaintiff seeks statutory damages of at 18&s200 per violation; disgorgement ¢
restitution of any ill-gotten gains; general, sp&oéxemplary and punitive damages; injunctiveefekttorneysfees; costs of the st
and prejudgment interest. The Plaintiff voluntaidigmissed RealPage on December 3, 2010 by filiRgguest for Dismissal wi
the Superior Court of the State of California, S2iego County, North County Division. While the Regt for Dismissal wa
pending, certain Defendants removed the case &rdedourt, No. 3:10-CV-02666-JRGS. Accordingly, Plaintiff again attempt
to dismiss RealPage on December 29, 2010, andtedféehe dismissal by filing a Notice of Voluntarysbhissal with the Unite
States District Court for the Central District dadilornia on January 3, 2011.

We could be sued for contract or product liabiliglaims, and such lawsuits may disrupt our busineslyert managemens$
attention and our financial resources or have an\atse effect on our financial results.

We provide warranties to customers of certain of salutions relating primarily to product functidityy, network uptime
critical infrastructure availability and hardwareptacement. General errors, defects, inaccuraciesher performance problems
the software applications underlying our soluti@nsnaccuracies in or loss of the data we prova@eur customers could result
financial or other damages to our customers. Thanebe no assurance that any limitations of lighdlet forth in our contracts wou
be enforceable or would otherwise protect us frihility for damages. We maintain general liabilihgurance coverage, includi
coverage for errors and omissions, in amounts amktruterms that we believe are appropriate. Thaneb® no assurance that t
coverage will continue to be available on termseptable to us, or at all, or in sufficient amoulatover one or more large prod
liability claims, or that the insurer will not dempverage for any future claim. The successfulréisseof one or more large prodt
liability claims against us that exceeds availdb&irance coverage, could have a material advéiset @n our business, prospec
financial condition and results of operations.

If we fail to develop our brands cc-effectively, our financial condition and operatingesults could be harmed.

We market our solutions under discrete brand naiesbelieve that developing and maintaining awassred our brands
critical to achieving widespread acceptance of existing and future solutions and is an importaleiment in attracting ne
customers and retaining our existing customers.ithuhélly, we believe that developing these brairda costeffective manner i
critical in meeting our expected margins. In thetpaur efforts to build our brands have involvéghgicant expenses and we inte
to continue to make expenditures on brand promofwsand promotion activities may not yield increisevenue, and even if th
do, any increased revenue may not offset the exgews incurred in building our brands. If we fail dosteffectively build anc
maintain our brands, we may fail to attract newt@uners or retain our existing customers, and marftial condition and results
operations could be harmed.
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If we fail to maintain proper and effective interdaontrols, our ability to produce accurate and taty financial statements coul
be impaired, which could harm our operating resultsur ability to operate our business and investorews of us.

Ensuring that we have adequate internal finanaia accounting controls and procedures in placehab we can produc
accurate financial statements on a timely bas& ¢®stly and time-consuming effort that needs todevaluated frequently. O1
internal control over financial reporting is a pess designed to provide reasonable assurance iregding reliability of financia
reporting and the preparation of financial stateimémaccordance with GAAP. We are in the procéstooumenting, reviewing ar
improving our internal controls and proceduresdompliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxleyd% 2002, or the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act, which requires annual management assa#sof the effectiveness of our internal controkiofinancial reporting and
report by our independent auditors. Both we andidependent auditors will be testing our interc@htrols in connection with tr
audit of our financial statements for the year egdDecember 31, 2011 and, as part of that testivay, identify areas for furthe
attention and improvement. If we fail to maintairoper and effective internal controls, our abilioyproduce accurate and time
financial statements could be impaired, which ccwddm our operating results, harm our ability te@m@pe our business and red
the trading price of our stock.

Changes in, or errors in our interpretations and plications of, financial accounting standards or pctices may cause adver:
unexpected financial reporting fluctuations and af€t our reported results of operations.

A change in accounting standards or practices ea la significant effect on our reported resultd aray even affect ot
reporting of transactions completed before the ghas effective. New accounting pronouncements \agling interpretations ¢
accounting pronouncements have occurred and mayr dacthe future. Changes to existing rules or ¢uestioning of currer
practices or errors in our interpretations and iapfibns of financial accounting standards or pcast may adversely affect o
reported financial results or the way in which veaduct our business.

We have incurred, and will incur, increased costacademands upon management as a result of complyivith the laws anc
regulations affecting public companies, which couldirm our operating results.

As a public company, we have incurred, and wiluincignificant legal, accounting, investor relascand other expenses t
we did not incur as a private company, includingts@associated with public company reporting regméents. We also have incuri
and will incur costs associated with current cogp@rgovernance requirements, including requiremeander Section 404 and ott
provisions of the Sarban@&@xley Act, as well as rules implemented by the &&ea Exchange Commission and The NASDAQ Si
Market LLC. We expect these rules and regulatiensitrease our legal and financial compliance cestsstantially and to mal
some activities more timesnsuming and costly. We also expect that, as cpedimpany, it will be more expensive for us tdab
director and officer liability insurance and thiatriay be more difficult for us to attract and ratgualified individuals to serve on @
board of directors or as our executive officers.

Government regulation of the rental housing indugtrincluding background screening services and ifilbilling, the Internet
and ecommerce is evolving, and changes in regulations aur failure to comply with regulations could harnour operating
results.

The rental housing industry is subject to extensimd complex federal, state and local regulati@ns. services and solutio
must work within the extensive and evolving regofgtrequirements applicable to our customers aird-fharty service provider:
including, but not limited to, those under the Raredit Reporting Act, the Fair Housing Act, thed@ptive Trade Practices Act, t
DPPA, the Gramm-LeacBliley Act, the Fair and Accurate Credit TransandoAct, the Privacy Rules, Safeguards Rule
Consumer Report Information Disposal Rule prom@dédty the Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, thelagigns of the Unite
States Department of Housing and Urban Developn@nUD, and complex and divergent state and I¢temak and regulatior
related to data privacy and security, credit angsamer reporting, deceptive trade practices, disnetion in housing, utility billing
and energy and gas consumption. These regulatimganplex, change frequently and may become miiggent over time
Although we attempt to structure and adapt ourtgmis and service offerings to comply with thesenpéex and evolving laws ar
regulations, we may be found to be in violationwH are found to be in violation of any applicalal@s or regulations, we could
subject to administrative and other enforcemenibastas well as class action lawsuits. Additionaftyany applicable laws ai
regulations provide for penalties or assessments par occurrence basis. Due to the nature of osinbss, the type of services
provide and the large number of transactions ps@meby our solutions, our potential liability in @anforcement action or class act
lawsuit could be significant. In addition, entitiesch as HUD and the FTC have the authority to pfgate rules and regulations tl
may impact our customers and our business. WeMeeligcreased regulation is likely in the area ofadprivacy, and laws ar
regulations applying to the solicitation, collectjgrocessing or use of personally identifiableinfation or consumer informatic
could affect our customers’ ability to use and stdata, potentially reducing demand for our on detvsoftware solutions.
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We deliver our on demand software solutions overltiernet and sell and market certain of our gmhstover the Internet. £
Internet commerce continues to evolve, increasaumliation by federal, state or foreign agencieoiexs more likely. Taxation
products or services provided over the Internebtber charges imposed by government agencies qrilgite organizations fc
accessing the Internet may also be imposed. Anylaggn imposing greater fees for Internet useestricting information exchang
over the Internet could result in a decline in tise of the Internet and the viability of on demaoftware solutions, which cou
harm our business and operating results.

Our LeasingDesk insurance business is subject torggmmental regulation which could reduce our prddibility or limit our
growth.

We hold insurance agent licenses from a numberndividual state departments of insurance and algesuto stat:
governmental regulation and supervision in conoectivith the operation of our LeasingDesk insurabesiness. This sta
governmental supervision could reduce our profiitybdr limit the growth of our LeasingDesk insunbusiness by increasing 1
costs of regulatory compliance, limiting or redirig the solutions we provide or the methods byclhie provide them or subjectil
us to the possibility of regulatory actions or medings. Our continued ability to maintain thessumance agent licenses in
jurisdictions in which we are licensed depends onammpliance with the rules and regulations prayatdd from time to time by tt
regulatory authorities in each of these jurisditsioFurthermore, state insurance departments copéuiodic examinations, aud
and investigations of the affairs of insurance agen

In all jurisdictions, the applicable laws and regjidns are subject to amendment or interpretatipmelgulatory authorities
Generally, such authorities are vested with reddyivbroad discretion to grant, renew and revokenées and approvals and
implement regulations. Accordingly, we may be pudeld or temporarily suspended from carrying on somall of the activities o
our LeasingDesk insurance business or otherwisiinbd or penalized in a given jurisdiction. No assices can be given that ¢
LeasingDesk insurance business can continue torgucted in any given jurisdiction as it has beamdeicted in the past.

We generate commission revenue from the insurancdiqies we sell as a registered insurance agent dnithsurance premiums
decline or if the insureds experience greater tharpected losses, our revenues could decline andapegrating results could b
harmed.

Through our wholly owned subsidiary, Multifamilytérnet Ventures LLC, a managing general insuragem@/, we genera
commission revenue from offering liability and ren$ insurance. Additionally, Multifamily Internet Vemes LLC has recent
commenced the sale of additional insurance prodiratkiding auto and other personal lines insuratweesidents that buy rentsr’
insurance from us. These policies are ultimatelgemwritten by various insurance carriers. Some hef property owners ar
managers that participate in our programs opt tire residents to purchase rental insurance pslicind agree to grant
Multifamily Internet Ventures LLC exclusive markag rights at their properties. If demand for resi@# rental housing decline
property owners and managers may be forced to ecthhair rental rates and to stop requiring the Ipase of rental insurance in or¢
to reduce the overall cost of renting. If propestyners or managers cease to require renfasurance, elect to offer policies frc
competing providers or insurance premiums decboe revenues from selling insurance policies wéllddversely affected.

Additionally, one type of commission paid by inswea carriers to Multifamily Internet Ventures LLG icontingen
commission, which is based on claims experiencethetproperties for which the residents purchaseramce. In the event tt
claims by the insureds increase unexpectedly, dhéirggent commission we typically earn will be acbady affected. As a result, o
quarterly operating results could fall below thgpestations of analysts or investors, in which ewenmtstock price may decline.

Our ability to use net operating losses to offseture taxable income may be subject to certain fiations.

In general, under Section 382 of the Internal RaeeBode of 1986, as amended, or the Internal Rev&uwadle, a corporatic
that undergoes an “ownership change” is subjetitriitations on its ability to utilize its prehange net operating losses, or NOLs
offset future taxable income. Our ability to utdiNOLs of companies that we may acquire in theréutoay be subject to limitatior
Future changes in our stock ownership, some of lwiasiee outside of our control, could result in annevghip change und
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. For thessons, we may not be able to utilize a matpaeion of the NOLs reflected ¢
our balance sheet, even if we maintain profitapilit
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If we are required to collect sales and use taxestbe solutions we sell in additional taxing jurigttions, we may be subject
liability for past sales and our future sales magatease.

States and some local taxing jurisdictions haviedifg rules and regulations governing sales ardtases, and these rules ¢
regulations are subject to varying interpretatitret may change over time. We review these rulesragulations periodically ar
currently collect and remit sales taxes in taxingsgictions where we believe we are required tosdoHowever, additional ste
and/or local taxing jurisdictions may seek to impaales or other tax collection obligations on ins|uding for past sales.
successful assertion that we should be collectihdjtianal sales or other taxes on our solutionslccaasult in substantial te
liabilities for past sales, discourage customeosnfipurchasing our solutions or may otherwise hatm hlusiness and operati
results. This risk is greater with regard to saolnsi acquired through acquisitions.

We may also become subject to tax audits or sirpilacedures in jurisdictions where we already otléand remit sales taxes.
successful assertion that we have not collected@mitted taxes at the appropriate levels may mdsalt in substantial tax liabilitie
for past sales. Liability for past taxes may alscude very substantial interest and penalty clear@ar customer contracts prov
that our customers must pay all applicable salessimilar taxes. Nevertheless, customers may hetait to pay back taxes a
may refuse responsibility for interest or penalssociated with those taxes. If we are requirezbliect and pay back taxes and
associated interest and penalties, and if our mest® fail or refuse to reimburse us for all or &ipo of these amounts, we will inc
unplanned expenses that may be substantial. Moreawposition of such taxes on our solutions gofogvard will effectively
increase the cost of such solutions to our custsrard may adversely affect our ability to retaiiséixg customers or to gain ne
customers in the areas in which such taxes aredetho

Changes in our effective tax rate could harm ourttue operating results.

We are subject to federal and state income taxelkeinJnited States and various foreign jurisdictioand our domestic al
international tax liabilities are subject to thoahtion of expenses in differing jurisdictions. Qax rate is affected by changes in
mix of earnings and losses in jurisdictions witffeting statutory tax rates, including jurisdict®im which we have completed
may complete acquisitions, certain ndeductible expenses arising from the requiremeakpense stock options and the valuatio
deferred tax assets and liabilities, including aitity to utilize our net operating losses. In@esin our effective tax rate could he
our operating results.

We rely on our management team and need additiopatsonnel to grow our business, and the loss of @nenore key employet
or our inability to attract and retain qualified psonnel could harm our business.

Our success and future growth depend on the skitisking relationships and continued services of management team. T
loss of our Chief Executive Officer or other sergaecutives could adversely affect our business.f@ure success also will depe
on our ability to attract, retain and motivate hjgkkilled software developers, marketing and sakesonnel, technical support &
product development personnel in the United States internationally. All of our employees work fas on an atvill basis.
Competition for these types of personnel is intepseticularly in the software industry. As a résule may be unable to attract
retain qualified personnel. Our inability to attraod retain the necessary personnel could adyeaffelct our business.

Our corporate culture has contributed to our suceesand if we cannot maintain this culture as we grpwe could lose th
innovation, creativity and teamwork fostered by oculture, and our business may be harmed.

We believe that a strong corporate culture thatunes core values and philosophies is essentialtdongierm success. W
call these values and philosophies the “RealPagmiBe”and we seek to practice the RealPage Promise iaabians every day. Tt
RealPage Promise embodies our corporate valuesresfiect to customer service, investor communicatiemployee respect a
professional development and management deciemking and leadership. As our organization growd we are required i
implement more complex organizational structures, may find it increasingly difficult to maintain éhbeneficial aspects of o
corporate culture which could negatively impact fuure success.
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Risks Related to Ownership of our Common Stock
The concentration of our capital stock owned by iidsrs may limit your ability to influence corporatematters.

Our executive officers, directors, current 5% arajer stockholders and entities affiliated withnithtegether beneficially owni
approximately 57.6% of our common stock as of Ddmem31, 2010. Further, Stephen T. Winn, our Chieédative Officer an
Chairman of the Board, and entities beneficiallyned by Mr. Winn held an aggregate of approxima#&y2% of our common sto
as of December 31, 2010. This significant concéiotnaof ownership may adversely affect the tradimge for our common sto
because investors often perceive disadvantagewiing stock in companies with controlling stockhergl Mr. Winn and entitie
beneficially owned by Mr. Winn may control our mgeaent and affairs and matters requiring stockhiadgroval, including tt
election of directors and the approval of significaorporate transactions, such as mergers, coasolns or the sale of substanti
all of our assets. Consequently, this concentradfoawnership may have the effect of delaying aventing a change of conti
including a merger, consolidation or other busine@sbination involving us, or discouraging a poi@nacquirer from making
tender offer or otherwise attempting to obtain caneven if that change of control would benefit other stockholders.

The trading price of our common stock price may baatile.

The trading price of our common stock could be sctbfo wide fluctuations in response to variougdes; including, but n
limited to, those described in this “Risk Factosgttion, some of which are beyond our control. ¢tacaffecting the trading price
our common stock include:

e variations in our operating results or in expeotadiregarding our operating resu

e variations in operating results of similar compan

. announcements of technological innovations, newtswls or enhancements, strategic alliances oreageats by us or |
our competitors

. announcements by competitors regarding their éntoynew markets, and new product, service andristrategies
. marketing and advertising initiatives by us or oampetitors

e the gain or loss of custome

» threatened or actual litigatio

. major changes in our board of directors or managér

. recruitment or departure of key personi

. changes in the estimates of our operating resulishanges in recommendations by any research asdhat elect t
follow our common stock

. market conditions in our industry and the economsig a&vhole
»  the overall performance of the equity mark
»  sales of our shares of common stock by existingkstalders;

. volatility in our stock price, which may lead higher stockbased compensation expense under applicable aaug
standards; an

. adoption or modification of regulations, policigspcedures or programs applicable to our busit

In addition, the stock market in general, and tharket for technology and specifically Intermetated companies,
experienced extreme price and volume fluctuatibas have often been unrelated or disproportiorated operating performance
those companies. Broad market and industry faatwalg harm the market price of our common stock igas of our actu
operating performance. In addition, in the padtpfang periods of volatility in the overall markanhd the market price of a partict
companys securities, securities class action litigatios bften been instituted against these companigs. lifiigation, if institute«
against us, could result in substantial costs adiversion of our managemestattention and our resources, whether or not &
successful in such litigation.
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Our stock price could decline due to the large nuemlof outstanding shares of our common stock eligilfor future sale.

Sales of substantial amounts of our common stodkiénpublic market, or the perception that thedesseould occur, coul
cause the market price of our common stock to declThese sales could also make it more difficuitus to sell equity or equity-
related securities in the future at a time andepti@at we deem appropriate.

As of December 31, 2010, we had 68,490,277 shafesommon stock outstanding. Of these shares, 24502were
immediately tradable without restriction or furthregistration under the Securities Act, unlessdtsdrmres are held by “affiliateg5
that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Seagifict. Of the remaining shares:

. 26,000 were eligible for sale at any tin

. 3,190,876 shares became eligible for sale upenettpiration of lockdp agreements after February 7, 2011 (180
following the date of our initial public offeringrgspectus), subject in some cases to volume angl odstrictions ¢
Rule 144 and Rule 701 under the Securities Ac8f3] as amended, or the Securities Act;

. 39,877,413 shares will be eligible for sale ugbe expiration of lockip agreements after March 6, 2011 (90
following the date of our secondary public offeripgspectus), subject in some cases to volume et gestrictions ¢
Rule 144 and Rule 701 under the Securities

The 180-day and 90-day loalp periods may be extended in certain cases fotouB4 additional days under cert:
circumstances where we announce or greeunce earnings or a material event occurs wapjroximately 17 days prior to,
approximately 16 days after, the termination of éipplicable lockdp period. The representatives of the underwribérsur public
offerings may, in their sole discretion and at dinye without notice, release all or any portiontio¢ securities subject to loclp
agreements.

As of December 31, 2010, holders of 39,586,535 eshanr approximately 57.8%, of our outstanding camnstock wert
entitled to rights with respect to the registratafrthese shares under the Securities Act. If vgister their shares of common stc
following the expiration of the lockp agreements, these stockholders could sell thioaees in the public market without be
subject to the volume and other restrictions ofeRi44 and Rule 701.

In addition, we have registered approximately 12,885 shares of common stock that have been issuesterved for futur
issuance under our stock incentive plans. Of tl#sres, 2,302,693 shares became eligible for gala the exercise of vest
options after the expiration of the 180-day lagkperiod and 2,957,399 shares will be eligibledale upon the exercise of ves
options after the expiration of the 90-day lockpgpiod.

Our charter documents and Delaware law could preventakeover that stockholders consider favorabledacould also reduce th
market price of our stock.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpmmagind our amended and restated bylaws containspros that could dela
or prevent a change in control of our company. €h@®visions could also make it more difficult &iockholders to elect directc
and take other corporate actions. These provisiansde:

. a classified board of directors whose members ss#taggered thre-year terms

. not providing for cumulative voting in the electiohdirectors;

. authorizing our board of directors to issue, withstockholder approval, preferred stock with rigbésior to those of o
common stock

. prohibiting stockholder action by written conseantgd

. requiring advance notification of stockholder noations and proposal

These and other provisions of our amended andteestartificate of incorporation and our amended sestated bylaws ar
under Delaware law could discourage potential takeattempts, reduce the price that investors nidghwilling to pay in the futur

for shares of our common stock and result in thekaetaprice of our common stock being lower thamvguld be without thes
provisions.
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If securities analysts do not continue to publiskgearch or reports about our business or if theybfish negative evaluations ¢
our stock, the price of our stock could decline.

We expect that the trading price for our commorlstmay be affected by research or reports thatsimgwor financial analyst
publish about us or our business. If one or moth@f=nalysts who cover us downgrade their evalnatof our stock, the price of o
stock could decline. If one or more of these aralggase coverage of our company, we could lodkilitisin the market for ou
stock, which in turn could cause our stock priceéoline.

We do not anticipate paying any dividends on oungmon stock.

We do not anticipate paying any cash dividendswncommon stock in the foreseeable future. If wendbpay cash dividend
you could receive a return on your investment inaammon stock only if the market price of our coomstock has increased wr
you sell your shares. In addition, the terms ofaredit facilities currently restrict our abilitg pay dividends
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

We currently lease approximately 187,000 squaré déaspace for our corporate headquarters and caiter in Carrollton
Texas under lease agreements that expire in AR1&. We have offices in Tulsa, Oklahoma; Camari@alifornia; Irvine,
California; San Francisco, California; San Diegalifornia; Williston, Vermont; Mason, Ohio; Atlant&eorgia; Charlotte, Nor
Carolina; Greer, South Carolina; Washington, DWinnipeg, Manitoba, Canada and Hyderabad, India.bél@ve our current ar
planned data centers and office facilities willdaequate for the foreseeable future.

We also license data center space and collocagiovices at a facility in Dallas, Texas for our sedary data center pursuant
a master services agreement with DataBank Holdlrtgs or DataBank. Our agreement with DataBank &asinitial term of
36 months and automatically renews for successhayear terms unless we elect to terminate the agneelme giving notice
30 days prior to the end of a current term, in Wwhiase the agreement terminates at the end ofteuth The initial term of ot
agreement with DataBank expired on May 31, 201d,the agreement automatically renews for successiegear terms. We ma
also terminate the master services agreement farecience upon 30 days notice and payment of spediées, and either party m
terminate the agreement for cause and without penabllowing termination of the master serviceseggnent for any reasc
DataBank is obligated to continue to provide suetvises related to the termination as we may reslslgrrequest, but only for
period of 15 days. Any unplanned termination of master services agreement with DataBank or DatdBdailure to perform it
obligations under the agreement would require undwe our secondary data center to another proadércould cause disruptio
in the continuous availability of our secondaryade¢nter or some of our services.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
From time to time, we have been and may be invoinedrious legal proceedings arising from our pady course of business.

On January 24, 2011, Yardi Systems, Inc. filedveslat in the U.S. District Court for the Centralsict of California agains
RealPage and DC Consulting, Inc. The lawsuit alletjaims for relief for violation of the Computeralad and Abuse Act, violatic
of the California Comprehensive Data Access andudrrAct, violation of the Digital Millennium Copyrig Act, copyright
infringement, trade secret misappropriation andaurdfompetition. The plaintiff alleges, among otki@ngs, that unnamed RealP:
personnel used unauthorized passwords to wrongfidiyjm access to and download confidential, tradeeseand copyrighte
information related to Yardi products from Yaglicomputer system. In its prayer for relief, Yafyistems seeks various remec
including unspecified damages and injunctive reBecause this lawsuit is at an early stage, ribispossible to predict its outcon
We intend to defend this case vigorously. Howeeeen if we were successful in defending againsh silaims, the proceedin
could result in significant costs and divert oum@agement’s attention.

On June 15, 2009, a prospective resident of oneuofcustomers filed a class action lawsuit styléidor v. RealPage, Inc
against us in the U.S. District Court for the Cahbistrict of California. By the partieshutual stipulation in August 2009, the act
was transferred to the U.S. District Court for tBastern District of Texas (No. 4:09Q00439). The plaintiff has alleged tv
individual claims and three clabssed causes of action against us. Individually,phaintiff alleges that we (i) willfully failed t
employ reasonable procedures to ensure the maxiacgnracy of our resident screening reports as medjly 15 U.S.C. § 1681¢(
and, in the alternative, (ii) negligently (withihet meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 16810(a)) failed to empémsonable procedures to ens
the maximum accuracy of our resident screeningrtepas required by 15 U.S.C. § 1681e(b), in ease cstemming from ol
provision of a report that allegedly included ina@te criminal conviction information. The plaifit§eeks actual, statutory a
punitive damages on her individual claims. In hapazity as the putative class representative, tiatiff also alleges that we
() willfully failed to provide legally mandated stlosures upon a consunwrfequest inconsistent with 15 U.S.C. § 16¢
(i) willfully failed to provide prompt notice ofansumerstisputes to the data furnishers who provided ub thié information whos
accuracy was in question, as required by 15 U.88C1681i(a)(2); and (iii) willfully failed to prodie prompt notice of consumers’
disputes to the consumer reporting agencies pmyids with the information whose accuracy was iastjon, as required by :
U.S.C. § 1681i(f). The plaintiff sought certificati of three separate classes in connection withetislaims. The plaintiff also souc
statutory and punitive damages, a declarationdhepractices and procedures were in violatiorheffair Credit Reporting Act al
attorneys’ fees and costs. The parties achievedaution of both Angela Minos’individual claims, on November 29, 2010, as\
as the clasbased claims at approximately the same time. Ffdiled her Motion for Preliminary Approval, inading the previousl
executed Settlement Agreement, with the U.S. Ris€@ourt for the Eastern District of Texas on Jang 2011.
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In January 2007, plaintiffs filed five separate bearly identical class action lawsuits in the WD&trict Court for the Eastel
District of Texas against more than 100 defendais.were named as a defendant in one of thosenacfi@ylor, et al. v. Safewa
Inc., et al. (No. 2:07-CV-00017). On March 4, 2068 Court consolidated these actions with the e, Taylor, et al. v. Acxior
Corp., et al. (No. 2:07-C\30001). In their operative pleading, plaintiffsegled that we obtained and held motor vehicle recor
bulk from the State of Texas, an allegedly impropempose in violation of the federal DriverPrivacy Protection Act, or the DPF
In addition, the plaintiffs alleged that we obtairtbese records for the purpose ofedling them, another allegedly improper purp
in violation of the DPPA. Plaintiffs further purged to represent a putative class of approxim&8l® million individuals affecte
by the defendantsalleged DPPA violations. They sought statutory dgesaof $2,500 per each violation of the DPPA, pua
damages and an order requiring defendants to geistfarmation obtained in violation of the DPPA. 8eptember 2008, the U.
District Court dismissed plaintiffs¢omplaint for failure to state a claim. The pldiistsubsequently appealed the dismissal to the
Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit. The primaigsue on appeal is whether plaintiffs alleged Bpyry-in-fact that would give
them standing to bring their claims. Predicate @éssinclude whether obtaining and merely holdingadstates a claim under t
DPPA, and whether reelling data likewise states an actionable claimNbvember 2009, the Fifth Circuit heard oral arguinon
the appeal. In July 2010, the Fifth Circuit affiththe U.S. District Court’'s dismissal. The PlaifatMppellants filed a petition fc
certiorari with the United States Supreme Courmtober 12, 2010, seeking review of the Fifth Gifeudecision, and we receiv
service of the petition on October 15, 2010. Thpr&me Court of the United States denied Taylorigtipa for certiorari on Januan
10, 2011.

In March 2010, the District Attorney of Ventura Gy, California issued an administrative subpoemais seeking certa
information related to our provision of utility bilg services in the State of California. A repreisgive of the District Attorney he
informed us that the subpoena was issued in coienewsith a general investigation of industry praes with respect to utility billin
in California. Utility billing is subject to regulion by state law and various state administradigencies, including, in California, t
California Public Utility Commission, or the CPU@nd the Division of Weights and Measures, or theNDWVe have provided th
District Attorney with the information requestedtime subpoena. In late August 2010, we receivedddn follow-up requests fc
information to which we have responded. The Dis#ittorney’s office has not initiated an administrative orestenforcement actic
against us, nor have they asserted any violatibriseoapplicable regulations by us. Given the eatfge of this investigation, it
difficult to predict its outcome and whether thestict Attorney will pursue an administrative ohet enforcement action against
in the State of California and what the result off such action would be. However, penalties or sseents of violations ¢
regulations promulgated by the CPUC or DWM or otteggulators may be calculated on a per occurreasésbDue to the lar¢
number of billing transactions we process for oustemers in California, our potential liability an enforcement action could
significant. If the District Attorney ultimately psues an administrative or other enforcement acigainst us, we believe that
have meritorious defenses to the potential claimd would defend them vigorously. However, even & were successful
defending against such claims, the proceedingga@sult in significant costs and divert managerseattention.

On November 17, 2010, a prospective resident of\eeLOne customer named us as a defendant in siattien lawsuit style
Cohorst v. BRE Properties, Inc., et iled in the Superior Court of the State of Califiar, San Diego County, North Cour
Division. The plaintiff alleges that the defendanpsirsuant to an alleged practice of monitoring a&cbrding all inbound ar
outbound telephone calls, monitored and recordedephone conversation with the plaintiff withobetplaintiff's knowledge an
consent, when the plaintiff responded to an adsemient for an apartment for rent. The putativesclamsists of all persons
California whose inbound or outbound telephone eosations were monitored, recorded, eavesdroppend apd/or wiretapped k
the defendants without their consent during the-fe@ar period commencing on November 12, 2006. dlamtiff alleges four class-
based causes of action consisting of (i) invasibprivacy in violation of California Penal Code 8@ et seq.; (ii) common law
invasion of privacy; (iii) negligence; and (iv) amful, fraudulent and unfair business acts andtfpes in violation of Californii
Business & Professions Code § 17280seq The plaintiff seeks statutory damages of at 18&s000 per violation; disgorgement ¢
restitution of any ill-gotten gains; general, sp&oéxemplary and punitive damages; injunctiveefekttorneysfees; costs of the st
and prejudgment interest. The Plaintiff voluntaidigmissed RealPage on December 3, 2010 by filiRgguest for Dismissal wi
the Superior Court of the State of California, S2iego County, North Countpivision. While the Request for Dismissal w
pending, certain Defendants removed the case &rdedourt, No. 3:10-CV-02666-JRGS. Accordingly, Plaintiff again attempt
to dismiss RealPage on December 29, 2010, andtedféehe dismissal by filing a Notice of Voluntarysbhissal with the Unite
States District Court for the Central District adlornia on January 3, 2011.

ltem 4. Reserved
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PART Il

ltem 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equit
Securities

Market Information and Holders

Our common stock has been listed on the NASDAQ &l&elect Market under the symbol “R§ihce August 12, 2010. Pr
to that date, there was no public trading marketoiar common stock. Our common stock in our inipablic offering priced
$11.00 per share on August 11, 2010. We sold aitiai 4,000,000 shares of common stock in a sgannpublic offering whic
closed on December 10, 2010. Our common stockismptiblic offering priced at $25.75 per share oréeber 6, 2010.

The following table sets forth for the periods iratied the high and low sale prices per share o€onmmon stock as reported
the NASDAQ Global Select Market:

Year Ending December 31, 201 Low High
Third Quartel $ 12.42 $ 19.9¢
Fourth Quarte $ 18.7¢ $ 34.1¢

On February 16, 2011, the closing price of our cammstock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market was.$2per share ar
as of February 16, 2011, there were approximatelytlders of record of our common stock.

Dividend Policy

We do not expect to pay dividends on our commockstor the foreseeable future. Instead, we antteipiaat all of our earnin
will be used for the operation and growth of thaibass. Any future determination to declare casiddnds would be subject to
discretion of our board of directors and would depapon various factors, including our results pém@tions, financial condition a
liquidity requirements, restrictions that may beosed by applicable law and our contracts and ddwtors deemed relevant by
board of directors. In addition, the terms of oredit facilities currently restrict our ability fway dividends.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

For information regarding securities authorized ifmuance under equity compensation plans, sedIPdtem 12—Securit)
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Manageraed Related Stockholder Matters.”
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the relative perforoganf our common stock, the NASDAQ Global Markeddr, NASDAC
Composite and the NASDAQ Computer and Data Proegdsidex. This graph covers the period from Audist2010 (the fire
trading date immediately following our initial putbloffering), through December 31, 2010. In eacbecdhis graph assumes a ¢
investment on August 12, 2010 at our closing poic$14.52 per share and reinvestment of all divitderf any.

Comparison of Conmlative Total Retiim
Assumes Intial Investiment of $100
Dieceamnber 31, 2010

250.00
200.00 -""'r"
15000
10000
5000
0.00
&/12/2010 831/2010 30/2010 10¥31/2010 1173072010 12/31/2010
=B enlPage, Inc == NASDAQ Composite - Total Retums
—d— N4 5D A Global Market Index =8 MASDAD Computer and Data Processing Index
August 12 August 31 September 3C October 31  November 30 December 31
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
RealPage, Inc $ 100.0C $ 115.2¢ $ 131.4C $ 158.9¢ $ 188.7. $ 213.0:
NASDAQ Composite— Total
Returns 100.0( 96.5¢ 108.3¢ 114.7¢ 114.5; 121.7:
NASDAQ Global Market Inde: 100.0( 98.9i 111.0: 115.1( 116.9( 124.9:
NASDAQ Computer and Dal
Processing Inde 100.0( 97.2( 109.9¢ 119.8¢ 115.9¢ 124.9:

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

1. On January 8, 2010, we sold and issued pursoamt option exercise by one of our executive efican aggregate of 12,*
shares of our common stock at a purchase pric2.60%er share for an aggregate consideration ®0$P. The issuance and sal
these securities were deemed to be exempt froratratipn pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securifiesas a transaction by an iss
not involving a public offering.

2. 0n January 8, 2010, we sold and issued purdoaah option exercise by one of our officers whosvaéso an accredit
investor an aggregate of 12,500 shares of our camstuxk at a purchase price of $2.00 per shararfaggregate consideratior
$25,000. The issuance and sale of these secuwies deemed to be exempt from registration purstmrgection 4(2) of tt
Securities Act as a transaction by an issuer natiing a public offering.
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3. On January 8, 2010, we sold and issued an agigred 25,000 shares of our common stock purswaan toption exercise
the holder of a stock option issued under our 188&k Incentive Plan at a purchase price of $380ghare for an aggreg
consideration of $75,000. The issuance and salleesk securities were deemed to be exempt fromtration pursuant to Rule 7
promulgated under the Securities Act as transasfiamsuant to a compensatory benefit plan apprbyeslr board of directors.

4. On January 14, 2010, we sold and issued an gagref 1,000 shares of our common stock pursaaan toption exercise
the holder of a stock option issued under our 188&k Incentive Plan at a purchase price of $2&0gmare for an aggreg
consideration of $2,500. The issuance and salbeset securities were deemed to be exempt fromtregps pursuant to Rule 7
promulgated under the Securities Act as transagfiomsuant to a compensatory benefit plan apprbyexur board of directors.

5. On February 25, 2010, we granted to certaintofemployees options to purchase an aggregate 6@® shares of o
common stock under our 1998 Stock Incentive Plaanatxercise price per share of $7.50. The issuandesale of these securi
were deemed to be exempt from registration pursiaRtule 701 promulgated under the Securities Adransactions pursuant t
compensatory benefit plan approved by our boadirettors.

6. On February 25, 2010, we granted to certainusfemployees who were also accredited investor®mgpto purchase
aggregate of 595,000 shares of its common stockruogr 1998 Stock Incentive Plan at an exerciseepper share of $7.50. T
issuance and sale of these securities were dearigel éxempt from registration pursuant to Secti@) 4f the Securities Act as
transaction by an issuer not involving a publiedfig.

7. On February 25, 2010, we granted to certainuofdirectors options to purchase an aggregate 0060shares of our comm
stock at an exercise price per share of $7.50.i3hence and sale of these securities were deerieel éxempt from registrati
pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act &siasaction by an issuer not involving a publiteohg.

8. On March 1, 2010, we sold and issued an aggregfei00 shares of our common stock pursuant topdion exercise by tt
holder of a stock option issued under our 1998 IStocentive Plan at a purchase price of $6.00 penres for an aggreg:
consideration of $3,000. The issuance and salbaset securities were deemed to be exempt fromtnatii® pursuant to Rule 7
promulgated under the Securities Act as transasfiamsuant to a compensatory benefit plan apprbyesir board of directors.

9. On March 18, 2010, we sold and issued an agtgegfa8,790 shares of our common stock pursuarhdoexercise of
warrant held by one of our lenders who was an d#ee investor at a purchase price of $2.00 perestiar an aggrega
consideration of $17,581. The issuance and sdleesk securities were deemed to be exempt froratration pursuant to Section 4
(2) of the Securities Act as a transaction by anés not involving a public offering.

10. On March 25, 2010, we sold and issued an agtgag 15,000 shares of our common stock purswamption exercises by
holder of stock options issued under our 1998 Stimentive Plan at a purchase price of $2.00 parestior an aggrege
consideration of $30,000. The issuance and salleesk securities were deemed to be exempt frorstratiopn pursuant to Rule 7
promulgated under the Securities Act as transagfiomsuant to a compensatory benefit plan apprbyexur board of directors.

11. On April 20, 2010, we granted to one of our Exy@es who was also an accredited investor optiopsirchase an aggreg
of 12,500 shares of our common stock under our 88k Incentive Plan at an exercise price peresh&f7.50. The issuance
sale of these securities were deemed to be exeomptregistration pursuant to Section 4(2) of theusdies Act as a transaction
an issuer not involving a public offering.

12. On April 23, 2010, we issued an aggregate @682 shares of our common stock to holders ofSmaries A Convertib
Preferred Stock, Series A1 Convertible PreferrastiStand Series B Convertible Preferred Stock irtigdapayment of cumulati
dividends accrued on such series of convertibleeped stock through March 31, 2010. The issuamcesale of these securities w
deemed to be exempt from registration pursuanteiié 4(2) of the Securities Act as a transacbgran issuer not involving
public offering.

13. On May 12, 2010, we awarded and issued an gggreof 13,332 restricted shares of our commorksimaertain of ot
independent directors in accordance with our inddpat director compensation plan. The issuancesaledof these securities w
deemed to be exempt from registration pursuanteiié 4(2) of the Securities Act as a transacbgran issuer not involving
public offering.
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14. On May 12, 2010, we granted to certain of gupleyees options to purchase an aggregate of 228/&déres of our comm
stock under our 1998 Stock Incentive Plan at amcése price per share of $8.00. The issuance aledasahese securities we
deemed to be exempt from registration pursuant ute RO1 promulgated under the Securities Act agsaeations pursuant tc
compensatory benefit plan approved by our boadirettors.

15. On May 12, 2010, we granted to certain of ompleyees who were also accredited investors opttonpurchase ¢
aggregate of 237,500 shares of our common stockrumat 1998 Stock Incentive Plan at an exerciseepper share of $8.00. 1
issuance and sale of these securities were dearigel éxempt from registration pursuant to Secti@) 4f the Securities Act as
transaction by an issuer not involving a publiedfig.

16. On May 13, 2010, we sold and issued an aggreafa®B06 shares of our common stock pursuant tmm@xercises by tl
holder of stock options issued under our 1998 Stlentive Plan at a purchase price of $6.00 perestior an aggrege
consideration of $4,839. The issuance and salbesfet securities were deemed to be exempt fromtratgi® pursuant to Rule 7
promulgated under the Securities Act as transagfiomsuant to a compensatory benefit plan apprbyexur board of directors.

17. On June 3, 2010, we granted to one of its epepl® an option to purchase an aggregate of 15@/0@@s of our comm
stock under our 1998 Stock Incentive Plan at ancise price per share of $8.00. The issuance aldasahese securities we
deemed to be exempt from registration pursuantute RO1 promulgated under the Securities Act asshetions pursuant tc
compensatory benefit plan approved by our boadirettors.

18. On June 18, 2010, we sold and issued an adgrefja,250 shares of our common stock pursuaahtoption exercise |
the holder of a stock option issued under our 188&k Incentive Plan at a purchase price of $2.@&0share for an aggreg
consideration of $2,500. The issuance and salbaset securities were deemed to be exempt fromtnatip® pursuant to Rule 7
promulgated under the Securities Act as transasfiamsuant to a compensatory benefit plan apprbyeslr board of directors.

19. On June 30, 2010, we sold and issued an aggrefja5,000 shares of our common stock pursuaoption exercises by t
holder of stock options issued under our 1998 Stimentive Plan at a purchase price of $2.00 parestior an aggrege
consideration of $50,000. The issuance and salleesk securities were deemed to be exempt fromtration pursuant to Rule 7
promulgated under the Securities Act as transasfiomsuant to a compensatory benefit plan apprbyeate our board of directors.

20. On July 1, 2010, we issued 499,999 restridtedes of our common stock to six accredited investopartial consideratic
of the our acquisition of eReal Estate Integratim,. The issuance and sale of these securities Weemed to be exempt fr
registration pursuant to Section 4(2) of the S¢iesriAct as a transaction by an issuer not invgharpublic offering.

21. On July 14, 2010, we granted to certain of@uployees options to purchase an aggregate of GB8feares of its comm
stock under our 1998 Stock Incentive Plan at amcése price per share of $9.00. The issuance aledasahese securities we
deemed to be exempt from registration pursuantute RO1 promulgated under the Securities Act asshetions pursuant tc
compensatory benefit plan approved by our boadirettors.

22. On July 22, 2010, we sold and issued an aggged#,615 shares of our common stock pursuaantoption exercise by t
holder of a stock option issued under our 1998 IStocentive Plan at a purchase price of $2.00 eres for an aggrege
consideration of $11,230. The issuance and salleesk securities were deemed to be exempt frorstratiopn pursuant to Rule 7
promulgated under the Securities Act as transagfiomsuant to a compensatory benefit plan apprbyexur board of directors.

None of the foregoing transactions involved anyamaditers, underwriting discounts or commissiongcg certificates ar
warrants issued in the foregoing transactions appropriate Securities Act legends as to the o#sttinature of such securities.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Date

We have derived the consolidated statements ofatipas data for the years ended December 31, 209, 2008 and 20!
and the consolidated balance sheet data as of ecedh, 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007 from our auditstsolidated financi
statements, which have been audited by Ernst & ¥durP, independent registered public accountinmfiiWe have derived tl
consolidated statement of operations data and ¢alshneet for the year ended December 31, 2006 dronunaudited consolidat
financial statements. Over the last five fiscalrgeave have acquired a number of companies adietlin Note 3 —Acquisitions ir
the notes to our consolidated financial statemeft® results of our acquired companies have beelndad in our consolidat
financial statements since their respective datescquisition and have contributed to our growthour results of operations. Y
should read this information in conjunction withrcudited consolidated financial statements, thated notes to these financ
statements and the information in “Management’scision and Analysis of Financial Condition and uRssof Operations”
included elsewhere in this Annual Report. Our histd results are not necessarily indicative of future results.

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(in thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited’

Revenue

On deman $ 169,67¢ $ 128,37 $ 95,19 $ 62,59: $ 36,52t

On premise 8,54t 3,86( 7,582 11,56( 15,18

Professional and oth 10,05 8,66¢ 9,79¢ 9,42¢ 6,93

Total revenue 188,27- 140,90: 112,56¢ 83,58: 58,64¢

Cost of revenu 79,04« 58,51 46,05¢ 35,70: 29,59¢
Gross profit 109,23( 82,38¢ 66,51( 47,87¢ 29,04¢
Operating expense

Product developmel 36,92: 27,44¢ 28,80¢ 21,70¢ 16,95¢

Sales and marketir 37,69 27,80: 23,92! 18,04" 10,48"

General and administratiy 28,32¢ 20,21( 14,13¢ 9,75¢€ 6,267

Total operating expen: 102,94. 75,46( 66,86« 49,51. 33,71

Operating income (los 6,281 6,92¢ (359 (1,639 (4,669
Interest expense and other, (5,507 (4,52¢) (2,152 (1,510 (508)
Net income (loss) before tax 78€ 2,401 (2,50€) (3,149 (5,172)
Income tax expense (benet 71¢ (26,029 702 — —
Net income (loss $ 67 $ 28,42¢ $ (3209 $ (3,149 % (5,179)
Net (loss) income attributable

common stockholder:

Basic $ 2,87) % 10,61: $ (1065) % 9,14) $ (10,590

Diluted $ (2,87) % 10,61: $ (1065) % (9,14 $ (10,590
Net (loss) income per share attributa

to common stockholder

Basic $ 0.0 % 0.4¢ $ ©07H % 08) % (1.0¢)

Diluted $ (0.0 % 0.42 $ ©07) % 08 % (1.0¢)
Weighted average shares used in

computing net (loss) income per

share attributable to common

stockholders

Basic 39,73} 23,93 13,88t¢ 10,22 10,01:

Diluted 39,737 25,51 13,88t 10,22; 10,01:
Consolidated Balance Sheet Date
Cash and cash equivalents $ 118,01 $ 4,427 $ 4,24¢ $ 2,731 $ 2,49:
Total current asse 170,52. 51,00: 49,11¢ 30,41« 18,84:
Total asset 342,79: 142,11: 102,34( 59,51¢ 32,51
Total current liabilities 93,97 78,05( 75,70¢ 54,96¢ 44,17¢
Total deferred revent 55,66¢ 49,42¢ 47,23: 41,05: 36,28
Current and lon-term debt(2] 66,03¢ 53,99( 48,94: 23,80¢ 6,682
Total liabilities 170,20t 136,75 129,62: 87,95¢ 59,48¢
Preferred stoc — 71,83: 71,67¢ 78,53¢ 72,30(
Total stockholder (deficit) equity 172,58« (66,47¢) (98,957 (106,969 (99,279
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Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(in thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited’

Other Financial Data:
Adjusted EBITDA(3) $ 35,30 $ 25,59: $ 13,06 $ 5,98¢ $ (692)
Operating cash floy 27,69( 24,75¢ 7,962 4,441 96¢
Capital expenditure 12,17¢ 9,50¢ 10,26: 7,12z 5,591
Selected Operating Data:
Number of on demand customers

period enc 6,922 5,03z 2,66¢ 2,19¢ 1,46¢
Number of on demand units at per

end 6,06¢€ 4,551 3,83¢ 2,80( 1,70¢
Total number of employees at period

end 1,75¢ 1,141 92z 654 53z

(1) Excludes restricted cas
(2) Includes capital lease obligatior

(3) We define Adjusted EBITDA as net (loss) income pliepreciation and asset impairment, amortizatiomtafngible asset
interest expense, net, income tax expense (bersfigl-based compensation expense and acqui-related expensi

We believe that the use of Adjusted EBITDA is uséduinvestors and other users of our financialesteents in evaluating ¢
operating performance because it provides them avithdditional tool to compare business performacess companies ¢
across periods. We believe th

*  Adjusted EBITDA provides investors and other usdrsur financial information consistency and congtmlity with oul
past financial performance, facilitates periodstriod comparisons of operations and facilitatesgarisons with our pe
companies, many of which use similar -GAAP financial measures to supplement their GAASuls; anc

. it is useful to exclude certain naash charges, such as depreciation and asset ingrajramortization of intangible as:
and stock-based compensation and non-core opeahtahrarges, such as acquisiticiated expense, from Adjus
EBITDA because the amount of such expenses in gegific period may not directly correlate to thedarlyinc
performance of our business operations and thepensrs can vary significantly between periods assalt of ney
acquisitions, full amortization of previously acopd tangible and intangible assets or the timinghefv stockbase!
awards, as the case may

We use Adjusted EBITDA in conjunction with traditi@ GAAP operating performance measures as paiofverall assessment
our performance, for planning purposes, includimg preparation of our annual operating budgetyatuate the effectiveness of
business strategies and to communicate with owdbafedirectors concerning our financial performanc

We do not place undue reliance on Adjusted EBITBAoar only measure of operating performance. Adfi§EBITDA should nc
be considered as a substitute for other measurkguadity or financial performance reported in acdance with GAAP. There ¢
limitations to using norGAAP financial measures, including that other conmiea may calculate these measures differently e
do, that they do not reflect our capital expendisuor future requirements for capital expenditames that they do not reflect chan
in, or cash requirements for, our working capide compensate for the inherent limitations assediatith using Adjusted EBITD
measures through disclosure of these limitatiorssgntation of our financial statements in accozdamith GAAP and reconciliatic
of Adjusted EBITDA to the most directly comparalB&AP measure, net (loss) income.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of (less) income to Adjusted EBITDA:

Year Ended December 31

Net (loss) incom $
Depreciation and asset impairmi
Amortization of intangible asse
Interest expense, n
Income tax expense (benel
Stocl-based compensation expel
Acquisitior-related expens

Adjusted EBITDA $

The following table presents stock-based compemséaticluded in each expense category:

Cost of revenu $
Product developmel

Sales and marketir

General and administrati

Total stock-based compensation
expense $

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(in thousands)

67 $ 28,42¢ $ 3,209 $ (3,149 (5,179
10,37: 9,231 9,847 4,85¢ 3,26¢
10,67¢ 5,78¢ 2,09t 2,27: 67C

5,51( 4,52¢ 2,15z 1,51( 50¢
71¢ (26,02¢) 703 — —
7,34C 2,80t 1,47¢ 49C 33
621 844 — — —
35,30¢ $ 25,59! $ 13,06« $ 5,98¢ (692)
Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(in thousands)
63¢ $ 367 $ 104 $ 48 —
2,56¢ 1,17¢ 7217 251 —
2,49: 49¢ 277 11C —
1,64¢ 76E 36¢ 81 33
7,34( $ 2,80¢ $ 1,47¢ $ 49C 33
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ITEM 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations should bad together with Selecte(
Consolidated Financial Dataand our audited consolidated financial statememd accompanying notes included elsewhere in
filing. This discussion contains forwelooking statements, based on current expectatioisralated to our plans, estimates, bel
and anticipated future financial performance. Thesatements involve risks and uncertainties and actual results may diffe
materially from those anticipated in these forwdodking statements as a result of many factorduiting those set forth und
“Risk Factors,” “Special Note Regarding Forward-Lkimg Statements” and elsewhere in this filing.

Overview

We are a leading provider of on demand softwaretols for the rental housing industry. Our broatge of propert
management solutions enable owners and managesmgie-family and a wide variety of muli@mily rental property types !
manage their marketing, pricing, screening, legsiegounting, purchasing and other property oparatiWe deliver our on dema
software solutions via the Internet through andrated software platform that provides a singlenpaif access and a shal
repository of prospect, resident and property data.

We derive a substantial majority of our revenuerfreales of our on demand software solutions. We @¢ésive revenue froi
our professional and other services. A small peeggnof our revenue is derived from sales of oup@mise software solutions
our existing on premise customers. Our on demafid/ace solutions are sold pursuant to subscriplitense agreements, and our
premise software solutions are sold pursuant tm ter perpetual license agreements and associatéutemance agreemen
Typically, we price our solutions based primarily the number of units the customer manages wittsolutions. For our insuran
and transactiotrased solutions, we price based on a fixed comamssite of earned premiums or a fixed rate perstetion,
respectively. We sell our solutions through ouedirsales organization and derive substantiallpfatiur revenue from sales in t
United States. Our revenue has increased from 6Xtlion in 2008 to $188.3 million in 2010. Theciease in revenue h
primarily been driven by increased sales of oudemand software solutions, a substantial amoumtha¢h has been derived fra
purchases of additional on demand software solsitignour existing customers. In 2010, our on denrardnue represented 90.:
of our total revenue.

While the adoption of on demand software solutionthe rental housing industry is growing rapidlyremains at a relativel
early stage of development. Additionally, thereaisow level of penetration of our on demand sofewvaolutions in our existin
customer base. We believe these factors presenithisignificant opportunities to generate revettu®ugh sales of additional «
demand software solutions. Our existing and paténtistomers base their decisions to invest insolutions on a number of facto
including general economic conditions. Accordingtyacroeconomic conditions negatively impacted aisifess in 2010 and m
continue to negatively impact our business.

Our company was formed in 1998 to acquire Rent,Radl., which marketed and sold on premise proper@pagement syster
for the conventional and affordable mutimily rental housing markets. In June 2001, weaséd OneSite, our first on dem:
property management system. Since 2002, we havandegd our on demand software solutions to incluseiraber of software-
enabled valuedded services that provide complementary salesredeting, asset optimization, risk mitigationljibg and utility
management and spend management capabilities. nmection with this expansion, we have allocatedaigmeresources to ti
development and infrastructure needs of developimg) increasing sales of our suite of on demandvaoét solutions. In additiol
since July 2002, we have completed 15 acquisitcdrcomplementary technologies to supplement owrital product developme
and sales and marketing efforts and expand theesabpur solutions, the types of rental housingpprties served by our solutio
and our customer base. As of December 31, 2010agepproximately 1,759 employees.

On July 22, 2010, the board of directors approvedmended and restated certificate of incorporattian effected a rever:
stock split of every two outstanding shares of gmefd stock and common stock into one share oepef stock or common stoc
respectively. The par value of the common and cuitke preferred stock was not adjusted as a reduhe reverse stock split. A
issued and outstanding common stock, restricteckstmnvertible preferred stock, and warrants fmmmon stock and per she
amounts contained in the financial statements Haen retroactively adjusted to reflect this revestmk split for all period
presented. The reverse stock split was effectetltyn23, 2010.

On August 11, 2010, our registration statement onmFS-1 (File No 333:66397) relating to our initial public offering w
declared effective by the Securities and Exchangmm@ission, or SEC. We sold 6,000,000 shares of cmmstock in our initia
public offering. Our common stock began tradingfargust 12, 2010 on the NASDAQ Global Select Stockkét under the symb
“RP,” and the offering closed on August 17, 2010. Upasiolg of our initial public offering, all outstamdj shares of our convertik
preferred stock, including a portion of accrued baopaid dividends on our outstanding shares ofeSékj Series A1 and Series
convertible preferred stock, were converted intb@9,952 shares of common stock.
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Recent Acquisitions

In February 2010, we acquired the assets of Dd@nlinterprise Solutions, Inc. The acquisition ofsthessets improved ¢
ability to serve our multi-family clients with migeportfolios that include smaller, centraltyanaged apartment communities.
aggregate purchase price at closing was $12.%mijliiet of cash acquired, which was paid upon a@én of the assets.

In July 2010, we acquired 100% of the outstandinglsof eReal Estate Integration, Inc., or eREIEER core products provi
phone and Internet lead tracking and lead manageseevices, as well as syndication services thahgroperty content to sea
engines, Internet listing services and classifisd websites. The addition of these products a@avgnl our lead management and
syndication capabilities within our CrossFire prodéamily. The purchase price of eREI was approxéetya$8.6 million, whicl
included a cash payment of $3.8 million at closegstimated cash payment payable upon the achievesheertain revenue targ
and the issuance of 499,999 restricted common shatdch vest as certain revenue targets are asthi@as defined in the purch
agreement.

In November 2010, we acquired certain of the assfetevel One, LLC and L1 Technology, LLC, or Lev@he, subsidiaries
IAS Holdings, LLC. Level One services property mgaaent companies by providing centralized leadwapgervices designed
enable owners to lease more apartments, reducalbnearketing spend and free up site leasing staff. We plan to integrate L¢
One with our CrossFire product family and contimséng the Level One brand. Level Os&ervices are utilized in the manager
of approximately one million rental property unit$ie purchase price of Level One was approxima6élly.9 million, which include
a cash payment of $53.9 million and a deferred magrof up to approximately $8.0 million, payablecash or the issuance of |
common stock eighteen months after the acquisidate. To facilitate the acquisition, we borrowed $3million under our delay:
draw term loans and utilized $24.0 million of thet proceeds from our initial public offering.

Key Business Metrics

In addition to traditional financial measures, wenitor our operating performance using a numbefirgncially and non-
financially derived metrics that are not includedour consolidated financial statements. We morfterkey performance indicat
reflected in the following table:

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008
(in thousands, except dollar per unit data

Revenue

Total revenue $ 188,27: $ 140,90: $ 112,56t

On demand revent $ 169,67¢ $ 128,37 $ 95,19:

On demand revenue as a percentage of total re 90.1% 91.1% 84.¢%
Ending on demand uni 6,06¢ 4,551 3,83:
Average on demand uni 5,24¢ 4,12¢ 3,13¢
Annualized on demand revenue per average on deorar $ 32.3¢ $ 31.1C $ 30.3¢
Adjusted EBITDA $ 35,30: $ 25,59! $ 13,06¢
Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of total reve 18.£% 18.2% 11.€%

On demand revenud@his metric represents the license and subscrigges for accessing our on demand software soky
typically licensed for one year terms, commissiooome from sales of rentsrinsurance policies and transaction fees for icedt
our on demand software solutions. We consider omaghel revenue to be a key business metric becaubeligge the market for o
on demand software solutions represents the lagyesitth opportunity for our business.

On demand revenue as a percentage of total rev@iie metric represents on demand revenue for thedgpresented divide
by total revenue for the same period. We use oraddmevenue as a percentage of total revenue tsureeaur success in execut
our strategy to increase the penetration of oudemand software solutions and expand our recurgagnue streams attributable
these solutions. We expect our on demand revenuentain a significant percentage of our total resmemlthough the actt
percentage may vary from period to period due tmmmber of factors, including the timing of acqudits, professional and ott
revenue and on premise perpetual license salesyamdenance fees resulting from our February 2@biaition.
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Ending on demand unitsThis metric represents the number of rental haushits managed by our customers with one or
of our on demand software solutions at the enti@period. We use ending on demand units to medsergiccess of our strateg
increasing the number of rental housing units madagth our on demand software solutions. Propaniy counts are provided to
by our customers as new sales orders are proceBsmukrty unit counts may be adjusted periodicaflyinformation related to c
customersproperties is updated or supplemented, which coegdlt in adjusting the number of units previouglgorted. We expe
ending on demand units will continue to increasdhl and 2012.

On demand revenue per average on demand. dmits metric represents on demand revenue fopéhied presented divided
average on demand units for the same period. Ferinm periods, the calculation is performed on anualized basis. We calcul
average on demand units as the average of theriegiand ending on demand units for each quartéheénperiod presented. \
monitor this metric to measure our success in axirg the number of on demand software solutioilized by our customers
manage their rental housing units, our overall nexeeand profitability.

Adjusted EBITDA We define this metric as net (loss) income plegrdciation and asset impairment; amortizatiomtarigible
assets; interest expense, net; income tax expbesef{t); stock-based compensation expense andsa#gourelated expense. V
believe that the use of Adjusted EBITDA is usefulavaluating our operating performance becausediudes certain nonast
expenses, including depreciation, amortization stotkbased compensation. Adjusted EBITDA is not deteeaiim accordant
with accounting principles generally accepted ie thnited States, or GAAP, and should not be comnsias a substitute for
superior to financial measures determined in a@we with GAAP. For further discussion regardingusted EBITDA and
reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income,fee to the table below. Our Adjusted EBITDA grewvorfr approximatel
$13.1 million in 2008 to approximately $35.3 mitlian 2010, as a result of our efforts to expandkmishare and increase revenue.

The following provides a reconciliation of net @sncome to Adjusted EBITDA:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)

Net (loss) incom $ 67 $ 28,42¢ $ (3,209
Depreciation and asset impairmi 10,37: 9,231 9,841
Amortization of intangible asse 10,67¢ 5,78¢ 2,09t
Interest expense, n 5,51( 4,52¢ 2,152
Income tax expense (benel 71¢ (26,029 703
Stocl-based compensation expel 7,34C 2,80t 1,47¢
Acquisitior-related expens 621 844 —

Adjusted EBITDA $ 35,30: $ 25,591 $ 13,06¢
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Key Components of our Results of Operations
Revenue

We derive our revenue from three primary sources:om demand software solutions; our on premisevsoé solutions; ar
our professional and other services. In 2010, 20098, we generated revenue of $188.3 million, $.4dillion and $112.6 millior
respectively.

On Demand Revenue

Revenue from our on demand software solutions maptised of license and subscription fees for adegssur on demar
software solutions, typically licensed for one yeEams, commission income from sales of rest@rsurance policies, and transac
fees for certain on demand software solutions, fgpayment processing, spend management andysiirvices. Typically, w
price our on demand software solutions based piliynan the number of units the customer manageh witr solutions. For o
insurance and transactitised solutions, we price based on a fixed comonisgate of earned premiums or a fixed rate
transaction, respectively.

In 2010, 2009 and 2008, revenue from our on densafigvare solutions was approximately $169.7 millih28.4 million an
$95.2 million, respectively, representing approxieha90.1%, 91.1% and 84.6% of our total revenuettie same periods. Revel
from our on demand software solutions has contirtoeidcrease in absolute dollars and as a percerghgur total revenue as
have ceased actively marketing our legacy on pemigtware solutions to new customers and as maopyroexisting on premit
customers have transitioned to our on demand saftwalutions. We expect our on demand revenue mbirage to increase
absolute dollars and as a percentage of reven2@lih, although the actual percentage of revenuevayfrom period to period d
to a number of factors, including the impact ofusifions and revenue derived from our professi@mal other services related to
on demand software solutions.

On Premise Revenue

Our on premise software solutions are distributedur customers and maintained locally on the coste’ hardware. Reveni
from our on premise software solutions is comprisklicense fees under term and perpetual licegseements. Typically, we ha
licensed our on premise software solutions purstanterm license agreements with an initial termooie year that inclue
maintenance and support. Customers can renewtérairlicense agreement for additional grear terms at renewal price levels
February 2010, we completed a strategic acquisitibmssets that included on premise software swiatithat were historical
marketed and sold pursuant to perpetual licensseaggnts and related maintenance agreements.

We no longer actively market our legacy on prensieware solutions to new customers, and only Beeaur on premit
software solutions to a small portion of our exigton premise customers as they expand their fiortidrental housing propertie
For the on premise software solutions acquireddhr&ary 2010, we expect many of these customensigoate to our on dema
solutions over time; however, we will continue tgport these on premise software solutions forftheseeable future and integi
our software-enabled value-added services into them

In 2010, 2009 and 2008, revenue from our on prersifevare solutions was approximately $8.5 millié3.9 million an
$7.6 million, respectively, representing approxieiat4.5%, 2.7% and 6.7%, and of our total revenoe the same perioc
respectively. Revenue from our on premise softwaitations has continued to decrease in absolutard@s we have ceased acti
marketing our legacy on premise software solutitm$iew customers and as many of our existing omijse customers ha
transitioned to our on demand software solutions.&kpect our legacy on premise revenue to decmaseime in absolute dolle
and as a percentage of our total revenue; howeueiFebruary 2010 acquisition has resulted, anéxpect will continue to result
the nearterm, in an increase in on premise revenue in tef®th absolute dollars and as a percentage rofotal revenue until w
transition these customers to our on demand softsalutions. In addition, the actual percentageeeénue may vary from period
period due to a number of factors, including theaat of our recent and potential future acquisitbon premise software solutions.

Professional and Other Revenue

Revenue from professional and other services dsnefsconsulting and implementation services, trajrand other ancillas
services. Professional and other services engadgsramntypically time and material.
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We complement our solutions with professional atipservices. In 2010, 2009 and 2008, revenue prfessional and oth
services was approximately $10.1 million, $8.7 imill $9.8 million, respectively, representing appmeately 5.3%, 6.1% and 8.7
of our total revenue for the same periods, respelgti We expect professional and other servicebrefiresent 10.0% or less of |
total revenue in 2011 and 2012 consistent withpauformance for the previous three years.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists primarily of personneltsoslated toour operations, support services, training and émantatio
services, expenses related to the operation oflatar center and fees paid to thparty service providers. Personnel costs inc
salaries, bonuses, stobksed compensation and employee benefits. Costvehue also includes an allocation of facilitiests
overhead costs and depreciation, as well as amatiaiiz of acquired technology related to strategigussitions and amortization
capitalized development costs. We allocate fagdlitosts, overhead costs and depreciation basegaoicount. We expect our cos
revenue in 2011 and 2012 to increase in absolutargo

Operating Expenses

We classify our operating expenses into three ocaieg; product development, sales and marketing, general ar
administrative. Our operating expenses primarilpsist of personnel costs, which include compensatinployee benefits a
payroll taxes, costs for thirgarty contracted development, marketing, legal,oantng and consulting services and o
professional service fees. Personnel costs for eatelgory of operating expenses include salar@msides, stockased compensati
and employee benefits for employees in that cayedoraddition, our operating expenses include leotation of our facilities cost
overhead costs and depreciation based on headimwuhat category, as well as amortization of pasgd intangible assets resul
from our acquisitions.

Our operating expenses increased in absolute doitereach of 2010 and 2009 as we have built iniragire and add:
employees across all categories in order to aatelemd support our growth and to expand our mark#e expect our operati
expenses in 2011 and 2012 to continue to increaabsdolute dollars as compared to 2010 but decesaagpercentage of revenue
the capacity we have added in prior years is malig fitilized and we continue to create operatiengrage.

Product developmentProduct development expense consists primarily efsqnnel costs for our product developr
employees and executives and fees to contract a@weint vendors. Our product development effortsfaceised primarily o
increasing the functionality and enhancing the edsese of our on demand software solutions anéueding our suite of on deme
software solutions. In 2008, we established a prbdavelopment and service center in Hyderabada liodtake advantage of strc
technical talent at lower personnel costs compéoetie United States. We expect our product devedo expenses in 2011 ¢
2012 to increase in absolute dollars.

Sales and marketingales and marketing expense consists primarilyeasgnnel costs for our sales, marketing and bus
development employees and executives, travel atedtaimment and marketing programs. Marketing paoty consist of advertisir
tradeshows, user conferences, public relationsysingd sponsorships and affiliations and productketimg. In addition, sales a
marketing expense includes amortization of cenairchased intangible assets, including customatioglships and key vendor ¢
supplier relationships obtained in connection vathr acquisitions. We expect our sales and marketikmgense in 2011 and 2012
increase in absolute dollars.

General and administrativeGeneral and administrative expense consists ofopeed costs for our executive, finance
accounting, human resources, management informaty@ems and legal personnel, as well as legalpuating and othe
professional service fees and other corporate esgzenNe expect our general and administrative esqp@m 2011 and 2012
increase in absolute dollars as compared to 20htapty due to the increased costs of operating pablic company.
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Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net, consists primarily of irdeiecome and interest expense. Interest incomeesepts earnings from ¢
cash, cash equivalents and shertn investments. Interest expense is associatéd aur term loan, revolver, secured promis
note, promissory note issued to preferred stoclkdieldcapital lease obligations and certain acdusielated liabilities. Tot:
amounts outstanding under our interest-bearingatitins at December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 include

As of December 31,

2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)
Term loan $ 66,03¢ $ 33,68¢ $ 12,65(
Revolver — — 10,00(
Secured promissory ng — 10,00( 10,00(
Promissory notes issued to preferred stockhol — 8,17: 11,06¢
Capital lease obligatior 59C 2,12¢ 5,22¢
Interest bearing acquisiti-related liabilities 1,95¢ 2,47(C 2,96¢

Based on our current operations, we expect ourdstexpense in 2011 to decline in absolute dodarsompared to 2010 ¢
to the early extinguishment of notes issued to meferred stockholders and early extinguishmenbwf secured subordinai
promissory notes during the third quarter of 2010.

Income Taxes

Prior to 2009, we incurred annual operating losgés.did not benefit from these losses and only iglexy for state and foreis
income taxes. In December 2009, based on curremtizgeome and projected future year income, we looied that it is more like
than not that a portion of the net deferred taxe@ssecorded would be realized. As such, we deédtragapropriate to decrease
valuation allowance by $27.0 million.

As of December 31, 2010, we had net operating dasty forwards for federal and state income taxppses of approximate
$82.7 million. If not utilized, our federal net apéng loss carry forwards will begin to expire2020 and the state operating lo:
begin to expire in 2011. Net operating losses gardrby us are not currently subject to the Se@Rlimitation; however certe
net operating losses generated by subsidiaries faritheir acquisition by us are subject to thet®ec382 limitation. The limitatio
on these prexcquisition net operating loss carryforwards willyf expire in 2016. A cumulative change in ownépsimong materi
shareholders, as defined in Section 382 of tharateRevenue Code, during a thigear period may limit utilization of the fede
net operating loss carryforwards.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are prepareatcordance with GAAP. In many cases, the acéogriteatment of
particular transaction is specifically dictated ®AP and does not require managemefudgment in its application, while in ot
cases, managemestjudgment is required in selecting among availadlkernative accounting standards that allow dfife
accounting treatment for similar transactions. Ppreparation of our consolidated financial statemeamd related disclosures req
us to make estimates, assumptions and judgmeritaffbat the reported amount of assets, liabiljttegenue, costs and expenses,
related disclosures. We base our estimates andhasisns on historical experience and other factioas we believe to be reasone
under the circumstances. In some instances, wal gqealsonably use different accounting estimated,iarsome instances resi
could differ significantly from our estimates. Weaduate our estimates and assumptions on an ongaisig. To the extent that th
are differences between our estimates and actsaltse our future financial statement presentatforgncial condition, results
operations and cash flows will be affected.

We believe that the assumptions and estimates iasstevith revenue recognition, accounts receivailisiness combinatiol
goodwill and other intangible assets with indeénitives, impairment of long-lived assets, intangitdssets, stodiase!
compensation, income taxes and capitalized prodewelopment costs have the greatest potential impacour consolidate
financial statements. Therefore, we believe theating policies discussed below are critical t@enstanding our historical a
future performance, as these policies relate tontbee significant areas involving our managemgejidgments, assumptions i
estimates.

Revenue Recognition

We derive our revenue from three primary sources:om demand software solutions; our on premisewvsoé solutions; ar
professional and other services. We commence revesaognition when all of the following conditioage met:

» there is persuasive evidence of an arranger

»  the solution and/or service has been provideddcatistomer
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»  the collection of the fees is probable; ¢
»  the amount of fees to be paid by the customexé&ifor determinable

For multielement arrangements that include multiple solstiand/or services, we allocate arrangement coradiderto al
deliverables that have staatbne value based on their relative selling pridessuch circumstances, we utilize the follow
hierarchy to determine the selling price to be usedllocating revenue to deliverables as follows:

*  Vendor specific objective evidence (VSOE), if add. The price at which we sell the element in a sepastandalone
transaction

*  Third-party evidence of selling price (TPE), if VIBOf selling price is not availabl&vidence from us or other compar
of the value of a largely interchangeable elemeiat fransaction; ar

. Estimated selling price (ESP), if neither VSOE M&E of selling price is availablOur best estimate of the staalbne
selling price of an element in a transacti

Our process for determining ESP for deliverableshovit VSOE or TPE considers multiple factors thatynvary
depending upon the unique facts and circumstanekded to each deliverable. Key factors primarignsidered i
developing ESP include prices charged by us foilainofferings when sold separately, pricing pa@iiand approve
from standard pricing and other business object

From time to time, we sell on demand software smhstwith professional services. In such casesalleeate arrangeme
consideration based on our estimated selling miche on demand software solution and VSOE ofsiléng price of th
professional service

On Demand Revenue

Our on demand revenue consists of license and sptign fees, transaction fees related to certdimw softwareenablel
value-added services and commissions derived froselling certain risk mitigation services.

License and subscription fees are comprised ofaagehbilled at the initial order date and monthtyaanual subscription fe
for accessing our on demand software solutions.

The license fee billed at the initial order dategsognized as revenue on a straiijie-basis over the longer of the contrac
term or the period in which the customer is exmbdte benefit, which we consider to be four yearsc#ynition starts once t
product has been activated. Revenue from monthdyaaimual subscription fees is recognized on agitréine basis over the acct
period.

As part of our risk mitigation services to the @dnhiousing industry, we act as an insurance agedtdgrive commissic
revenue from the sale of insurance products toviddals. The commissions are based upon a percemathe premium that t
insurance company charges to the policyholder aadabject to forfeiture in instances where a pbladder cancels prior to the €
of the policy. If the policy is cancelled, our comssions are forfeited as a percent of the uneapneahium. As a result, we recogn
the commissions related to these services ratalgythe policy term as the associated premiumsaneed.

We recognize revenue from transaction fees derik@a certain of our software-enabled valagded services as the rele
services are performed.

On Premise Revenue

Revenue from our on premise software solutionsoimprised of an annual term license, which includesntenance ai
support. Customers can renew their annual termdiedor additional ongear terms at renewal price levels. We recognieeatinue
term license on a straight-line basis over thenkeeterm.

In addition, we have arrangements that include gteg licenses with maintenance and other sentizdse provided over
fixed term. We allocate and defer revenue equivalerthe VSOE of fair value for the undeliveredmeénts and recognize 1
difference between the total arrangement fee aadithount deferred for the undelivered element®esnue. We have determir
that we do not have VSOE of fair value for our ousér support and professional services in theseifsparrangements. As a res
the elements within our multiplelement sales agreements do not qualify for treattrag separate units of accounting. Accordir
we account for fees received under multiplement arrangements with customer support or git@fessional services as a sir
unit of accounting and recognize the entire arreregd ratably over the longer of the customer supperiod or the period duril
which professional services are rendered.
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Professional and Other Revenue

Professional and other revenue is recognized asaihsces are rendered for time and material cotstrdraining revenues ¢
recognized after the services are performed.

Accounts Receivable

For several of our solutions, we invoice our custmnprior to the period in which service is proddéccounts receivak
represent trade receivables from customers whelmawe invoiced for software solutions and/or serwiaed we have not yet recei
payment. We present accounts receivable net ofi@wamce for doubtful accounts. We maintain anwaflace for doubtful accour
for estimated losses resulting from the inabilifycastomers to make required payments, or the metaancelling prior to tt
service being rendered. In doing so, we considerctirrent financial condition of the customer, #ipecific details of the custon
account, the age of the outstanding balance, tirertuieconomic environment and historical credihtts. As a result of a portion
our allowance being for services not yet rendeagportion of our allowance is charged as an ofiseteferred revenue, which di
not have an effect on the statement of operatidng. change in the assumptions used in analyzingegific account receivat
might result in an additional allowance for doubtducounts being recognized in the period in whighchange occurs.

Business Combinations

When we acquire businesses, we allocate the totalideration to the fair value of tangible assets labilities and identifiab
intangible assets acquired. Any residual purchasme ps recorded as goodwill. The allocation of fhgrchase price requir
management to make significant estimates in detengpithe fair values of assets acquired and litddliassumed, especially w
respect to intangible assets. These estimates agedbon the application of valuation models usiigjotical experience a
information obtained from the management of theuaeq companies. These estimates can include,reuta limited to, the ca
flows that an asset is expected to generate ifutiiee, the appropriate weighted average cost pitalaand the cost savings expec
to be derived from acquiring an asset. These etsnare inherently uncertain and unpredictableaddition, unanticipated evel
and circumstances may occur which may affect tiearacy or validity of these estimates.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets with IndefimitLives

We test goodwill and other intangible assets wittiefinite lives for impairment separately on an wairbasis in the four
quarter of each year. Additionally, we test goothaitd other intangible assets with indefinite livasthe interim if events ai
circumstances indicate that goodwill and otherrigtale assets with indefinite lives may be impair€de events and circumstan
that we consider include the significant ungerformance relative to projected future operatiggplts and significant changes in
overall business and/or product strategies. Weuatalimpairment of goodwill using a tvebep process. The first step involve
comparison of the fair value of a reporting unithwits carrying amount. If the carrying amount log treporting unit exceeds its 1
value, the second step of the process involvesrgpadson of the fair value and carrying amounthef goodwill of that reporting ut
and determination of the impairment charge, if aMe evaluate other intangible assets with indefifiites by estimating the fi
value of those assets based on estimated futurgngarderived from the assets using an income agpronodel. If the carryir
amount of the other intangible assets with indeditives exceeds the fair value, we recognize grairment loss equal to the amc
by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair mavikéue of the asset. If an event occurs that Gauseo revise our estimates
assumptions used in analyzing the value of our gilbdnd other intangible assets with indefinitegs, the revision could result ii
non-cash impairment charge that could have a na&ierpact on our financial results.

We recorded goodwill and other intangible asseth widefinite lives in conjunction with all sevefi@ur business acquisitio
completed since the beginning of 2007. We test gibtbr impairment based on a single reportingtukiVe believe we operate it
single reporting unit because our chief operatiegislon maker does not regularly review our opetatiesults other than a
consolidated level for purposes of decision makagarding resource allocation and operating perdoica.
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Impairment of Long-lived Assets

We perform an impairment review of lofiged assets held and used whenever events or esangircumstances indicate 1
the carrying value may not be recoverable. Faat@ergonsider important that could trigger an impa&intreview include, but are 1
limited to, significant undeperformance relative to projected future operatigplts, significant changes in the manner of @er @
the acquired assets or our overall business apdéoluct strategies and significant industry or @oit trends. When we determ
that the carrying value of a loriyed asset may not be recoverable based uponxibterece of one or more of these indicators
determine the recoverability by comparing the dagyamount of the asset to net future undiscouctesh flows that the asse
expected to generate. We would then recognize paiiment charge equal to the amount by which theyicey amount exceeds t
fair market value of the asset.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of acquired developedymtatechnologies, acquired customer relationshipsdor relationships, non-
competition agreements and trade names. We regtadgible assets at fair value and amortize thaefimite lives over the short
of the contractual life or the estimated usefu.liiVe estimate the useful lives of acquired dewsoproduct technologies &
customer relationships based on factors that irctbid planned use of each developed product teagmaind the expected pattert
future cash flows to be derived from each develgmeduct technology and existing customer relatigys We include amortizatii
of acquired developed product technologies in obsévenue, amortization of acquired customer i@bahips in sales and market
expenses and amortization of vendor relationshijgb roneompetition agreements in general and adminisgagixpenses in o
consolidated statements of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for stotlonp to employees using the intrinsic value methdater the intrinsic vall
method, compensation expense was measured on tthefdaward as the difference, if any, betweendbemed fair value of o
common stock and the option exercise price, migiipby the number of options granted. The opticereise prices and fair value
our common stock are determined by our board dcdcttirs based on a review of various objective anuestive factors. N
compensation expense was recorded for stock opsngd to employees prior to January 1, 2006 tsecall options were grani
in fixed amounts and with fixed exercise pricekast equal to the fair value of our common stdaka date of grant.

Effective January 1, 2006, we changed our accogriteatment to recognize compensation expense lms#te fair value «
all share-based awards granted, modified, repuechascancelled on or after that date.

Our sharesased compensation is measured on the grant dede ba the fair value of the award and is recoghizean expen
over the requisite service period, which is gemgthk vesting period, on a straight-line basis.

The fair value of option awards is calculated tlglouhe use of option pricing models. These modetsiire subjectiv
assumptions regarding future share price volatdiiy the expected life of each option grant.

The fair value of employee stock options grantedesiJanuary 1, 2006 was estimated at the grantudatg the Blackschole:
option pricing model by applying the following wéigd average assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 1.5-5.1%
Expected option life (in year: 6

Dividend yield 0%
Expected volatility 49-60%

At each stock option grant date, we utilized peeug data to calculate our expected volatility. Eged volatility was based
historical and expected volatility rates of comi@egoublicly traded peers. Expected life is comguising the migoint between tt
vesting period and contractual life of the optigranted. The risiree interest rate was based on the treasury yakl with
maturity corresponding to the expected optiondfsumed at the grant date.

Changes to the underlying assumptions may havgnifisant impact on the underlying value of thecktoptions, which cou
have a material impact on our consolidated findrat&ements.
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Prior to our initial public offering, we grantecbsk options at exercise prices above the fair vafusur common stock as of
grant date, as determined by our compensation ctig@yon a contemporaneous basis. Given the abséacg active market for o
common stock, the fair value of the common stoolfeulying stock options granted was determined bycompensation committe
with input from our management. In arriving at thesluations, our compensation committee and manegealso consider
contemporaneous thingarty valuations. Options granted subsequent toirgtial public offering have been granted at faiarke
value as of the date of grant.

The fair value of our time-based restricted stostrs is based on the closing price on the datgaft. For our performance-
based restricted stock awards, we recognized cosafien expense based on the probability of achiemerof the performan
condition.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided based on the liabilitthad, which results in income tax assets and lt#slarising from tempora
differences. Temporary differences are differenoesveen the tax basis of assets and liabilitiesthait reported amounts in 1
financial statements that will result in taxabledeductible amounts in future years. The liabititgthod requires the effect of tax 1
changes on current and accumulated deferred in¢cares to be reflected in the period in which the hange was enacted. *
liability method also requires that the deferreddasets be reduced by a valuation allowance uitlessmore likely than not that t
assets will be realized.

We may recognize the tax benefit from uncertainpgasitions only if it is at least more likely thaot that the tax position w
be sustained on examination by the taxing autlestithased on the technical merits of the posifitie. tax benefits recognized in
financial statements from such a position shouldntEasured based on the largest benefit that hagaeg than fifty perce
likelihood of being realized upon settlement witte ttaxing authorities. Upon our adoption of theatedl standard, there was
liability for uncertain tax positions due to thecfahat there were no material identified tax b@seahat were considered uncer
positions.

We record net deferred tax assets to the exteriteleve these assets will more likely than notdmdized. We consider whetl
a valuation allowance is needed on our deferrechtamets by evaluating all positive and negativeende relative to our ability
recover deferred tax assets, including scheduledrsels of deferred tax liabilities, projected fatuaxable income, tax planni
strategies and recent financial operations. Ingutajg future taxable income, we begin with histakiresults, if any, and incorpor
assumptions including the amount of future stagdefal and foreign pretax operating income, thensal of temporary differenci
and the implementation of feasible and prudentplarning strategies, if any. These assumptionsimregignificant judgment abc
the forecasts of future taxable income and areistam with the plans and estimates we are usinghamage the underlyil
businesses. Given the nature of our recurring n@westreams, we believe we have a reasonable lmasistitnate future taxat
income.

Capitalized Product Development Costs

We capitalize specific product development costsluiding costs to develop software products orsibféware components
our solutions to be marketed to our customers, elsag software programs to be used solely to meeinternal needs. The cc
incurred in the preliminary stages of developmesiated to research, project planning, training, mesiance and general
administrative activities, and overhead costs apersed as incurred. The costs of relatively mupmgrades and enhancements tc
software are also expensed as incurred. Once dicapm has reached the development stage, intanthexternal costs incurrec
the performance of application development stadgigities, including materials, services and payrelated costs for employees
capitalized, if direct and incremental, until theftevare is substantially complete and ready foiritended use. Capitalization cee
upon completion of all substantial testing. We alapitalize costs related to specific upgradesemtthncements when it is probe
the expenditures will result in additional functadity. Capitalized costs are recorded as part operty and equipment. Internal |
software is amortized on a straidinte basis over its estimated useful life, gengr#iree years. We capitalized $1.4 million
$1.4 million of product development costs during thears ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, resggctand recognize
amortization expense of $1.3 million, $1.3 milliamd $0.9 million, during the years ended Decembter2®10, 2009 and 20(
respectively, included as a component of costwémae. Unamortized product development cost waa i8lion, $3.1 million and ¢
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Managemeriuates the useful lives of these assets oananal basis and tests
impairment whenever events or changes in circurastaccur that could impact the recoverabilityhafse assets. There were
impairments to internal use software during theyeaded December 31, 2010, 2009 or 2008.
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Results of Operations

The following tables set forth our results of opienas for the specified periods. The periodpriod comparison of financ
results is not necessarily indicative of futureutess
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Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Revenue
On deman
On premise
Professional and oth
Total revenue
Cost of revenue(1
Gross profit
Operating expens:
Product development(:
Sales and marketing(
General and administrative(
Total operating expen:
Operating (loss) incom
Interest expense and other,
Net (loss) income before tax
Income tax expense (benel
Net (loss) incomi

1)

Includes stoc-based compensation expense as follc

Cost of revenu

Product developmel
Sales and marketir
General and administrati

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)
$ 169,67 $ 128,37 $ 95,19
8,54t 3,86( 7,58z
10,05 8,66¢ 9,794
188,27: 140,90: 112,56¢
79,04« 58,51 46,05¢
109,23( 82,38¢ 66,51(
36,92: 27,44¢ 28,80¢
37,69 27,80« 23,92
28,32¢ 20,21( 14,13t
102,94: 75,46( 66,86
6,287 6,92¢ (359
(5,500 (4,52¢) (2,159
78€ 2,401 (2,506
71¢ (26,02%) 703
$ 67 $ 28,42¢ $ (3,209
Year Ended December 31
2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)
$ 632 $ 367 $ 104
2,56¢ 1,17¢ 7217
2,49: 49¢ 271
1,64¢ 76E 36¢

The following table sets forth our results of opienas for the specified periods as a percentagaiofevenue for those perio
The period-to-period comparison of financial resigtnot necessarily indicative of future results.

Revenue
On deman
On premise
Professional and oth
Total revenue
Cost of revenu
Gross profit
Operating expens:
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
General and administratiy
Total operating expens
Operating (loss) incom
Interest expense and other,
Net (loss) income before tax
Income tax expense (benel
Net (loss) incomi

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
(as a percentage of total revenue
90.1% 91.1% 84.6%
4.5 2.7 6.7
5.3 6.1 8.7
100.C 100.( 100.(
42.C 41t 40.¢
58.C 58.t 59.1
19.€ 19.5 25.€
20.C 19.7 21.2
15.C 14.5 12.¢
54.7 53.t 59.t
3.3 4.9 0.3
(2.9 (3.2 (1.9
0.4 1.7 (2.2
04 (18.5) 0.€
0.0 20.2 (2.9
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Year Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Revenue
Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 Change % Change
(in thousands, except dollar per unit data
Revenue
On deman $ 169,67 $ 128,37 $ 41,30: 32.2%
On premise 8,54¢ 3,86( 4,68¢ 121.¢
Professional and oth 10,05: 8,66¢ 1,38¢ 16.C
Total revenue $ 188,27: $  140,90: $ 47,37: 33.¢
On demand unit metric
Ending on demand uni 6,06¢ 4,551 1,51¢ 33.¢
Average on demand uni 5,24¢ 4,12¢ 1,121 27.2
On demand revenue per average on demanc $ 32.3: $ 31.1C $ 1.2¢ 4.C

On demand revenu@ur on demand revenue increased $41.3 million2d2%, in 2010 compared to 2009, primarily due t
increase in rental property units managed with @udemand solutions and an increase in the nunfbeuroon demand solutio
utilized by our existing customer base.

On premise revenu@n premise revenue increased $4.7 million, or 1%1 # 2010 compared to 2009, primarily as a resf
our February 2010 acquisition. During February 200@ completed a strategic acquisition of asse#d ihcluded on premi
software solutions that have been historically rate#d and sold pursuant to perpetual license agmsnaed related maintenal
agreements. For the year ended December 31, 204 ebruary 2010 acquisition contributed $6.6 oillof revenue related
maintenance agreements and perpetual license $alesevenue increase from the February 2010 atiquisvas partially offset k
our decision to cease actively marketing our legaypremise solutions in 2003 and our efforts tgrate customers of our
premise solutions to our on demand solutions. Reran premise software solutions acquired in Fera@10, we expect many
these customers to migrate to our on demand sokitiwer time; however, we will continue to suppbese software solutions
the foreseeable future and integrate our softwaedled value-added services into them.

Professional and other revenuerofessional and other services revenue increakddniillion, or 16.0%, in 2010 comparec
2009, primarily due to an increase in revenue fammsulting services, partially offset by lower astructure services and train
volumes.

Total revenueQur total revenue increased $47.4 million, or 33.6%2010 compared 2009, primarily due to an insees
rental property units managed with our on demargtisos and improved penetration of our on demasidt®ns into our custom
base.

On demand unit metrica\s of December 31, 2010, one or more of our on aehsmlutions was utilized in the managemel
6.1 million rental property units, representingimerease of 1.5 million units, or 33.3% compare@®09. The increase in the num
of rental property units managed by one or moreusfon demand solutions was due to new customes saild marketing efforts
our 2010 acquisitions in which contributed 14.1%néling on demand units as of December 31, 2010.

As of December 31, 2010, our annualized on demewenue per average on demand unit was $32.33 seiheg an increa
of $1.23, or 4.0%, compared to 2009, primarily ttuénproved penetration of our on demand solutiats our customer base.

Cost of Revenue

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 Change % Change
(in thousands)
Cost of revenu $ 66,67 $ 51,26( $ 15,417 30.1%
Depreciation and amortizatic 12,361 7,252 5,114 70.t
Total cost of revenu $ 79,04 $ 58,51¢ $ 20,53: 35.1
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Cost of revenueTotal cost of revenue increased $20.5 million, 6r1%6, in 2010 compared to 2009. The increase ih af
revenue was primarily due to: a $15.1 million irae from costs related to the increased sales roautions, which include
investments in infrastructure and other suppontises; a $4.3 million increase in n@ash amortization of acquired technology
result of our 2009 and 2010 acquisitions; a $0M8aniincrease in property and equipment depreaiatxpense resulting frc
expanding our infrastructure to support revenuévest activities; and a $0.3 million increase indtbased compensation relate:
our professional services personnel and data cepgmations personnel. Cost of revenue as a pagermf total revenue was 42.
for the year ended December 31, 2010 as compardd.&% for the same period in 2009. The increasa psrcentage of to
revenue was primarily due to an increase in cash amortization of acquired technology as a tresulour 2009 and 20:
acquisitions.

Operating Expenses

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 Change % Change
(in thousands)
Product developmel $ 34,69: $ 25,27 $ 9,41¢ 37.2%
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,23( 2,16¢ 61 2.8
Total product development exper $ 36,92: $ 27,44¢ $ 9,47¢ 34.F

Product developmerifotal product development expense increased $9llmior 34.5%, in 2010 compared to 2009.
increase in product development expense was ptimduie to: a $7.0 million increase in personnelenge primarily related
product development groups added as a result o0200® and 2010 acquisitions combined with the aasst costs to support ¢
growth initiatives; a $1.4 million increase in dtdmased compensation related to product developmersopnel; a $0.6 millic
increase in third-party software maintenance exgeasd $0.5 million increase in other general pobdievelopment expense.

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 Change % Change
(in thousands)
Sales and marketir $ 32,89: $ 23,74« $ 9,14¢ 38.5%
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,80( 4,06( 74C 18.2
Total sales and marketing expel $ 37,691 $ 27,80/ $ 9,88¢ 35.€

Sales and marketinglotal sales and marketing expense increased $di8rmior 35.6%, in 2010 compared to 2009.
increase in sales and marketing expense was plyntare to: a $4.0 million increase in personnelenge. We have increased
sales force head count from 95 at December 31, 89096 at December 31, 2010, which includes gagesonnel added as a re
of our 2010 acquisitions. Additional factors cobtiting to the increase in sales and marketing esgoérclude a $1.8 million incree
in marketing program expense as part of our styate@xpand our market share and further penettatexisting customer base w
sales of additional on demand solutions; a $2.0aniincrease in stockased compensation related to sales and markegisgnme
a $0.6 million increase in travel related expers®0.6 million increase in narash amortization expense as a result of our 206@
2010 acquisitions; and a $0.9 million increasethreogeneral sales and marketing expense.

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 Change % Change
(in thousands)
General and administratiy $ 26,76 $ 18,92: $ 7,84¢ 41.5%
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,561 1,28i 274 21.5
Total general and administrative expe $ 28,32¢ $ 20,21( $ 8,11¢ 40.2

General and administrativelotal general and administrative expense incre&8etl million, or 40.2%, in 2010 comparec
2009. The increase in general and administratipeese was primarily due to: a $4.3 million incre@spersonnel expense relate:
accounting, management information systems, leyad, human resources staff to support the growtbumnbusiness as well
provide the necessary organizational structureupipert public company requirements; a $0.9 milliocrease in facilities exper
primarily as a result of our 2009 and 2010 acdois#t, a $0.9 million increase in stoblsed compensation related to genera
administrative personnel; a $0.6 million increasgrofessional fees; a $0.3 million in depreciatapense; a $0.3 million increass
insurance expense; and $0.8 million increase iaragbneral and administrative expense.
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Interest Expense and Other, Net

Interest expense, net, increased $1.0 million, 106%, in 2010 compared to 2009. The change in@steexpense, net, w
primarily due to: $0.5 million of accelerated irget expense associated with the early extinguishofamtes issued to our prefer
stockholders in payment of dividends payable dutigthird quarter of 2010; $0.2 million of penadtiincurred in connection w
the early extinguishment of our secured subordth@i@missory notes during the third quarter of 2048d higher average di
balances related to the financing of our 2009 &iDZacquisitions.

Provision for Taxes
As of December 31, 2010, we incurred tax expensk0df million resulting from net income in foreigurisdictions; deferre
income taxes at a federal level as a result ofopetating loss utilization; and state taxes wheig ¢onsidered an income tax
financial reporting purposes but is assessed arstat] gross revenue rather than adjusted net income

Year Ended December 31, 2008 and 2009

Revenue
Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 Change % Change
(in thousands, except dollar per unit data)

Revenue

On deman $ 128,37 $ 95,19: $ 33,18¢ 34.%

On premise 3,86( 7,582 (3,7272) (49.7)

Professional and othi 8,66¢ 9,79¢ (1,129 (11.5)

Total revenue $ 140,90: $ 11256t $ 28,33¢ 25.2

On demand unit metric

Ending on demand uni 4,551 3,83: 71€ 18.7

Average on demand uni 4,12¢ 3,13¢ 99C 31.t

On demand revenue per average on demanc $ 31.1C $ 30.3¢ $ 0.7¢ 2.5

On demand revenu@ur on demand revenue increased $33.2 million4d®9%, in 2009 as compared to 2008, primarily due
31.5% increase in the average on demand units rednaigh our on demand software solutions and arease in the number of ¢
on demand software solutions utilized by our emgsttustomer base.

On premise revenu@n premise revenue decreased $3.7 million, or }#8.in 2009 as compared to 2008, primarily duehg
impact of our decision to cease actively marketing on premise software solutions and our effatmigrate customers of our
premise software solutions to our on demand soéwgatutions. In addition, our on premise softwankeition for conventional multi-
family properties, RentRoll, was discontinued arabwo longer supported after July 2009.

Professional and other revenuProfessional and other services revenue decreasdd riillion, or (11.5)%, in 2009
compared to 2008, primarily due to a decreasevamge from training and consulting services anéeaahse in revenue from sub-
meter installations.

Total revenueOur total revenue increased $28.3 million, or 25.292009 as compared to 2008, primarily due tinarease i
rental property units managed with our on demarfitiveoe solutions and improved penetration of ourdemand software solutic
into our customer base.

On demand unit metricAs of December 31, 2009, one or more of our on aehwsoftware solutions was utilized in
management of 4.6 million rental housing unitsrespnting an increase of approximately 718,000supit 18.7%, as comparec
2008. The increase in the number of rental unitsagad by one or more of our on demand softwardgisniiwas primarily due
new customer sales and marketing efforts, our 2@@@iisitions, which contributed approximately 3.8%ending on demand uni
and to a lesser degree, migration of our currestorners from our on premissftware solutions to our on demand softy
solutions. In 2009, our on demand revenue per geeom demand unit was $31.10, representing anaseref $0.76, or 2.5%,
compared to 2008, primarily due to improved pertietnaof our on demand software solutions into austomer base.
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Cost of Revenue

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 Change % Change
(in thousands)
Cost of revenu $ 51,26( $ 40,78 $ 10,47" 25.7%
Depreciation and amortizatic 7,25 5,27¢ 1,97¢ 37.t
Total cost of revenu $ 58,51 $ 46,05¢ $ 12,45¢ 27.C

Cost of revenueCost of revenue increased $12.5 million, or 27.0862009 as compared to 2008. The increase in ck
revenue was primarily due to: a $10.2 million irage from costs related to the increased sales obautions; a $1.1 millic
increase in nomwash amortization of acquired technology as a reffubur 2008 and 2009 acquisitions; a $0.9 millioarease i
property and equipment depreciation expense ragultom expanding our infrastructure to supporterae delivery activities; al
$0.3 million increase in stock-based compensattated to our professional services and data ceptnations personnel.

Operating Expenses

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 Change % Change
(in thousands)
Product developmel $ 25,27 $ 26,51« $ (1,237) 4.7%
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,16¢ 2,292 (123 (5.9
Total product development exper $ 27,44¢ $ 28,80¢ $ (1,360 4.7

Product developmen®roduct development expense decreased $1.4 millior{4.7)%, in 2009 as compared to 2008.
decrease in product development expense was plyndak to: the absence of noaeurring charges related to the discontinuana
business development project in 2008; a decread@irotparty development costs; and a decrease in depioeciaf property an
equipment. The decrease was partially offset binarease in stockased compensation in 2009 related to our prodextldpmer

personnel.
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008 Change % Change
(in thousands)
Sales and marketir $ 23,74+ $ 21,64¢ $ 2,09t 9.7%
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,06( 2,27¢ 1,78¢€ 78.5
Total sales and marketing expel $ 27,80« $ 23,92! $ 3,881 16.2

Sales and marketing@ales and marketing expense increased $3.9 mitioh6.2%, in 2009 as compared to 2008. The ine
in sales and marketing expense was primarily dua ®il.7 million increase in narash intangible amortization related to our Z
and 2009 acquisitions, which included acquired @ustr relationships and key supplier and vendortiogiships; a $1.5 millic
increase in personnel expense and a $1.0 milliore@se in marketing program expense in 2009 aparr strategy to expand ¢
market share and further penetrate our existingoouer base with sales of additional on demand so#wsolutions; and
$0.2 million increase in stock-based compensattated to our sales and marketing personnel.

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 Change % Change
(in thousands)
General and administrati $ 18,92: $ 12,97¢ $ 5,94 45.8%
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,28i 1,15¢ 131 11.2
Total general and administrative expe $ 20,21( $ 14,13t $ 6,07¢ 43.C

General and administrativéseneral and administrative expense increased $lidrmor 43.0%, in 2009 as compared to 2(
The increase in general and administrative expamseprimarily due to: a $2.8 million increase irrqmnel expense and expe
related to accounting, management information systéegal, human resources and business develomtaghto support the grow
in our business; a $0.7 million increase in legalsf primarily related to pursuing and closing asitjoh opportunities; a $0.4 millic
increase in stockased compensation; and an increase in various gémeral and administrative expenses driven byrestment
in our administrative functions.
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Interest Expense and Other, Net

Interest expense and other, net, increased $2libmilor 110.4%, in 2009 as compared to 2008. Tiweiase in intere
expense, net, was primarily due to higher averagp bdalances related to the financing of our adiijpis and the issuance of nc
payable to holders of our preferred stock in Decem@®08 in payment of accrued dividends.

Provision for Taxes

We have not incurred federal income taxes duedathry forward of net operating losses. At Decan®ie 2009, we had a t
operating loss carry forward for federal income paxposes of approximately $67.2 million that viagin to expire in 2018. V
have historically offset all of our net deferred &ssets by a valuation allowance. However, in Bdxgr 2009, based on current )
income and our projections of future income, wecbathed it was more likely than not that certairoaf deferred tax assets woulc
realizable, and therefore the valuation allowanas veduced by $27.0 million.

Quarterly Results of Operations

The following table presents our unaudited consddéid quarterly results of operations for the eififtal quarters end
December 31, 2010. This information is derived frour unaudited consolidated financial statementd, includes all adjustmen
consisting only of normal recurring adjustmentsttive consider necessary for fair statement offioancial position and operati
results for the quarters presented. Operating teefol these periods are not necessarily indicativiéhe operating results for a 1
year. Historical results are not necessarily inilieaof the results to be expected in future pesiotbu should read this data toge
with our consolidated financial statements andrét@ted notes to these financial statements indedigewhere in this filing.

Three Months Ended,
December 31  September 3C  June 30 March 31, December31 September3C  June 30 March 31,
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009 2009
(in thousands)

Revenue
On demant $ 49,28t $ 43,097 $40,08 $ 37,200 $ 35,19: $ 33,06¢ $30,85: $ 29,26¢
On premise 2,12¢ 2,127 2,42¢ 1,86¢ 514 46€ 1,441 1,437
Professional and oth 2,64¢ 2,804 2,29¢ 2,308 2,431 2,117 2,17¢ 1,942
Total revenue 54,05¢ 48,02¢ 44,80¢ 41,37¢ 38,131 35,654 34,46¢ 32,64
Cost of revenue(1 22,44¢ 20,20: 18,53¢ 17,85¢ 15,70¢ 15,20! 14,56¢ 13,03t
Gross profit 31,61( 27,82t 26,27t 23,52( 22,42¢ 20,45: 19,90( 19,60¢
Operating expens:
Product development(: 10,491 9,127 8,98¢ 8,31¢ 7,17: 6,67¢ 6,881 6,711
Sales and marketing( 11,90( 9,42¢ 8,82t 7,54( 7,42¢ 7,368 6,832 6,18(
General and administrative( 8,09¢ 6,96¢ 6,73¢ 6,522 6,93 4,552 4,18 4,53€
Total operating expens 30,48¢ 25,524 24,55 22,370 21,53¢ 18,59( 17,90% 17,42%
Operating (loss) incom 1,121 2,301 1,722 1,143 892 1,862 1,99: 2,181
Interest expense and other, (752) (1,8272) (1,467) (1,469 (1,4272) (1,127 (99§) (985)
Net (loss) income before tax 36¢ 47¢ 25¢ (321) (530) 74C 99t 1,19¢
Income tax expense (benef 55E 187 95 (11€) (26,24¢6) 64 85 69
Net (loss) incom $ (186) $ 292 $ 164 $ (209 % 25,71¢ $ 67€ $ 91C $ 1,12

Net (loss) income attributable
common stockholdel

(1) Includes stoc-based compensation expense as follc

Three Months Ended,
December 31  September 3C  June 30 March 31, December31 September 3C  June 30 March 31,

2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009 2009
(in thousands)
Cost of revenur $ 226 % 14C $ 144 % 122 % 112 $ 102 $ 85 $ 67
Product developmel 904 627 53C 507 40C 277 252 24¢€
Sales and marketir 1,952 201 17¢€ 164 14¢ 13t 117 98
General and administrati\ 512 391 442 30C 241 211 15¢ 154
Total stock-based compensatic
expense $ 359 $ 135¢ $ 1292 $ 1094 $ 901 $ 72 $ 612 $ 565

The following table sets forth our results of opienas for the specified periods as a percentagaiofevenue for those perio
The period-to-period comparison of financial resigtnot necessarily indicative of future results.

Three Months Ended,
December 31 September 3C June 30 March 31, December 31 September 3C June 30 March 31,
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009 2009
(as a percentage of total revenue)

Revenue
On demanc 91.2% 89.7% 89.5% 89.%% 92.2% 92.7% 89.5% 89.6%
On premise 3.¢ 4.4 5.4 4.5 1.3 1.3 4.2 4.4
Professional and othi 4. 5.8 5.1 5.6 6.4 5.9 6.3 5.9
Total revenue 100.( 100.( 100.( 100.C 100.C 100.C 100.C 100.(

Cost of revenue



Software and service 41.5 42.1 41.4 43.2 41.2 42.€ 42.2 39.¢
Gross profit 58.k 57.¢ 58.€ 56.€ 58.€ 57.4 57.7 60.1
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Three Months Ended,
December 31 September 3C June 30  March 31, December 31 September 3C June 30  March 31,
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009 2009
(as a percentage of total revenue

Operating expens:

Product developmel 19.4 19.C 20.1 20.1 18.¢ 18.7 20.C 20.€
Sales and marketir 22.C 19.€ 19.7 18.Z 19.5 20.7 19.¢ 18.¢
General and administrati\ 15.C 14.F 15.C 15.€ 18.2 12.¢ 12.1 13.¢
Total operating expens: 56.4 53.1 54.¢ 54.1 56.5 52.1 52.C 53.4
Operating (loss) incom 2.1 4.8 3.¢ 2.8 2.3 5.2 5.8 6.7
Interest expense and other, (1.9 (3.9 (3.9 (3.5 (3.7) (3.7) (2.9 (3.0
Net (loss) income before tax 0.7 1.0 0.€ (0.9) (1.9 2.1 2.8 3.7
Income tax expense (benef 1.0 0.4 0.2 (0.3 (68.€) 0.2 0.2 0.2
Net (loss) incom (0.3) 0.6 0.4 (0.5) 67.4 1.6 2.6 3.5

Our revenue increased in each of the quarters mieb@bove primarily as a result of increases imateproperty units manag
with our on demand software solutions, succesdfolts to increase the number of on demand softvgatations utilized by ol
customer base and our 2010, 2009 and 2008 acquiitio date, we have not experienced any signifitapact on our results
operations due to seasonality.

Cost of revenue increased over the course of thetens presented above primarily due to increasgpé@rating costs related
the increased sales of our solutions; higher teldgyosupport costs in order to support our growitle; cost of revenue added by
acquisitions; and higher narash amortization of technology acquired through amquisitions. While cost of revenue increase
absolute dollars, gross margin has remained relgtisonsistent in each of the quarters presentedt &f revenue as a percentag
total revenue increased during 2010 compared t8 p@gnarily due to an increase in noash amortization of acquired technolog
a result of our acquisitions and our investmeribfrastructure and other support services.

Operating expense has steadily increased in alesdhltars over the course of the quarters presesibede primarily due
increased personnel related expenses in suppotrajrowth initiatives in addition to incrementajpenses associated with acqu
companies. Operating expense may vary as a refstiiediming of sales and marketing activities, timing of acquisitions or tt
discontinuance of projects, among other factors.example, operating expense decreased from ththfquarter of 2008 to the fil
quarter of 2009 primarily due to a decline in produevelopment expense attributable to the disnoatice of a busine
development project during the fourth quarter d&Q0Additionally, during the fourth quarter of 2Q@fperating expense increase
a percentage of revenue when compared to the thmiee quarters primarily as a result of an incréasgeneral and administrati
expense associated with higher professional feek adher costs related to pursuing acquisition oppdties combined wit
incremental general and administrative expensecaed with the acquisitions we completed during tiird and fourth quarters
2009. Since our inception, we have made signifigaméstments in developing new solutions, enhan@rigting solutions, ar
expanding our sales and marketing efforts in otdencrease our market share and to further peteetnar existing customer be
with additional on demand software solutions. Aeesult of these investments, we have experiengguifisiant revenue growt
which has resulted in a trend of decreased operatipense as a percentage of our total revenue.

Reconciliation of Quarterly Non-GAAP Financial Meases

Our investor and analyst presentations include gtépi EBITDA. We define Adjusted EBITDA as net ([pgsecome plu
depreciation and asset impairment, amortizatiomtfngible assets, interest expense, net, incomexpense (benefit), stodlase!
compensation expense and acquisitielated expense. We believe that the use of AdJUSE®ITDA is useful to investors and ot
users of our financial statements in evaluatingaperating performance because it provides thefn antadditional tool to comps
business performance across companies and acricdsgp&Ve believe that:

e Adjusted EBITDA provides investors and other usgrsur financial information consistency and congtmlity with oui
past financial performance, facilitates periodstriod comparisons of operations and facilitatesgarisons with our pe
companies, many of which use similar -GAAP financial measures to supplement their GAASuls; anc

. it is useful to exclude certain n@ash charges, such as depreciation and asset ingrajramortization of intangible as:
and stock-based compensation and non-core opeahtararges, such as acquisiticlated expense, from Adjus
EBITDA because the amount of such expenses in gegific period may not directly correlate to thedarlyinc
performance of our business operations and thegenses can vary significantly between periods assalt of ney
acquisitions, full amortization of previously acopd tangible and intangible assets or the timinghefv stockbase!
awards, as the case may

We use Adjusted EBITDA in conjunction with traditi@ GAAP operating performance measures as paxuofoveral

assessment of our performance, for planning pugpaseluding the preparation of our annual opetptiudget, to evaluate t
effectiveness of our business strategies and tavagritate with our board of directors concerning fimancial performance.
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We do not place undue reliance on Adjusted EBITBAar only measure of operating performance. Adpi&BITDA shouls
not be considered as a substitute for other measirkquidity or financial performance reportedancordance with GAAP. The
are limitations to using no@GAAP financial measures, including that other comea may calculate these measures differently
we do, that they do not reflect our capital expamds or future requirements for capital expendguand that they do not refl
changes in, or cash requirements for, our workiagital. We compensate for the inherent limitati@ssociated with using t
Adjusted EBITDA measures through disclosure of ¢hésnitations, presentation of our financial stagents in accordance w
GAAP and reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to theost directly comparable GAAP measure, net (loss)rime.

The following table presents a reconciliation ot less) income to Adjusted EBITDA for the eighsdal quarters end
December 31, 2010:

Three Months Ended,
December 31 September 3C June 30  March 31, December 31 September 3C June 30  March 31,

2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009 2009
(in thousands)

Net (loss) incomi $ (18¢) $ 29z $ 164 $ (209 % 25,71¢ % 67€¢ $ 91C $ 1,12i
Depreciation and asset

impairment 2,714 2,60¢ 2,59t 2,45¢ 2,29¢ 2,41¢ 2,47 2,04%
Amortization of intangible

asset 3,41¢ 2,76( 2,28 2,214 1,821 1,27¢ 1,322 1,362
Interest expense, n 751 1,82t 1,472 1,46¢ 1,42z 1,12: 99¢ 98t
Income tax expense (benel 558 187 95 (119) (26,24¢) 64 85 69
Stock-based compensation

expense 3,59¢ 1,35¢ 1,292 1,094 901 72€ 613 56¢
Acquisitior-related expens 16¢ 60 69 324 824 20 — —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 11,01¢  $ 9,087 $ 796t $ 7231 $ 6,731 % 6,307 $ 6,39%¢ $ 6,157

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Prior to our initial public offering, we financeduo operations primarily through private placemeoftconvertible preferre
stock and common stock, secured credit facilitiéth wommercial lenders, a private placement of sdipated debt securities ¢
cash provided by operating activities. On August2d10, our registration statement on Form S-le(Rib. 333166397) relating 1
our initial public offering was declared effectilog the SEC. We sold 6,000,000 shares of commotk gtogur initial public offering
resulting in proceeds, net of transaction expense$57.5 million. On December 3, 2010, our registm statement on Form B5-
(File No 333170667) relating to a public stock offering wasldesd effective by the SEC. We sold an addition@0@,000 shares
common stock in the offering resulting in net pred®, net of transaction expenses, of $98.4 million.

Our primary sources of liquidity as of December 2D10 consisted of $118.0 million of cash and casfuivalents
$10.0 million available under our revolving line @kdit and $100.2 million of current assets lagsent liabilities (excluding $118
of cash and cash equivalents and $47.7 million eferded revenue). To facilitate our acquisitiontioé assets of Level One
November 2010, we borrowed $30.0 million under delayed draw term loans and utilized $24.0 milladrthe net proceeds frc
our initial public offering.

Our principal uses of liquidity have been to fundr mperations, working capital requirements, capitgoenditures ar
acquisitions and to service our debt obligationg &pect that working capital requirements, captgdenditures and acquisitic
will continue to be our principal needs for liguidiover the near term. In addition, we have madersg acquisitions in which
portion of the cash purchase price is payable abws times through 2014. We expect to fund thddigations from cash provid
by operating activities or, with respect to a defdrpayment of up to $8.0 million 18 months aftee date of our Level O
acquisition, the issuance of shares of our comnarksat our election.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equit@levorking capital (excluding deferred revenue amash and ca
equivalents) and our cash flow from operations| kel sufficient to fund our operations and plannegital expenditures and sen
our debt obligations for at least the next 12 men@ur future capital requirements will depend amgnfactors, including our rate
revenue growth, the timing and size of acquisitidhe expansion of our sales and marketing aasitthe timing and extent
spending to support product development effores tittning of introductions of new solutions and emt&ments to existing solutic
and the continuing market acceptance of our saigti®Ve may enter into acquisitions of complemenkarsinesses, applications
technologies, in the future, which could requiredaseek additional equity or debt financing. Adial funds may not be availal
on terms favorable to us, or at all.
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The following table sets forth cash flow data foe periods indicated therein:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 27,69( $ 24,75¢ $ 7,962
Net cash (used) in investing activiti (84,119 (24,67¢) (32,32()
Net cash provided by financing activiti 170,02¢ 97 25,87¢

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

In 2010, we generated $27.7 million of net cashmfroperating activities representing an increas&20® million, or 11.8%
compared to 2009. Our net cash from operating iiesvconsisted of our net income of $0.1 milliomdanet norcash charges
$28.1 million partially offset by a $0.5 million @of operating cash flow resulting from changesvarking capital. Net norast
charges to income primarily consisted of depremmtamortization and stodkased compensation expense. The $0.5 million L
operating cash flow resulting from the changes arking capital was primarily due to higher accourgseivable balances, gent
timing differences in other current assets, accopayable and other current liabilities, offsetnyincrease in deferred revenue.

In 2009, we generated $24.8 million of net casimfr@perating activities, which consisted of our mebme of $28.4 millior
offset by net non-cash income of $8.5 million, esggEmting an increase of $16.8 million, or 211.0%¢c@mpared to 2008. Net non-
cash charges primarily consisted of a non-cashrgeféax benefit offset by depreciation, amortiaatand stockbbased compensati
expense. The increase in our net cash from opgratitivities in 2009 was primarily due to our netame, cash inflows fro
changes in working capital and greater collectibagzounts receivable, which resulted in an impnoest in the number of days t
sales were outstanding from 68 days in 2008 todys ¢h 2009. This decrease in accounts receivatderced despite an increast
revenues during the fourth quarter.

In 2008, we generated $8.0 million of net cash fiaparating activities, which consisted of our messl of $3.2 million, offset
net non-cash charges of $13.9 million, represergmgncrease of $3.5 million, or 79.3%, as comp&oe2007. Net norash charge
to income primarily consisted of depreciation, atization and stoclkased compensation expense. The increase in ouasietfron
operating activities in 2008 was primarily due tsle outflows from changes in working capital indhgdan increase in accou
receivable of $7.6 million from increased salesimyrthe fourth quarter, partially offset by an iease in deferred revenues
$5.6 million. The increase in our net cash fromraprg activities in 2008 was primarily due to aluwetion in our net loss, .
increase of $6.3 million in nocash charges and an increase in deferred reveoae ificreased sales during the fourth que
partially offset by increases in accounts recei@abl

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

In 2010, our investing activities used $84.1 millidnvesting activities consisted of acquisitiomsideration of $70.4 millic
net of cash acquired for our 2010 acquisitionsugition-related payments of $1.5 million for contmeénts related to prior years’
acquisitions and $12.2 million of capital expendiai The increase in cash used in investing aesvitrom 2009 relates to t
consideration paid net of cash acquired for out028dquisitions combined with an increase in cagip@nding.

In 2009, our investing activities used $24.7 millidnvesting activities consisted of acquisitiomseration of $11.6 millic
net of cash acquired for our 2009 acquisitionsuaition-related payments of $3.6 million for contmeénts related to prior years’
acquisitions and $9.5 million of capital expendisirThe decrease in cash used in investing aetvitom 2008 relates to a decre
in capital spending of $0.8 million combined witklecrease in acquisition-related payments of $6lfbm

In 2008, our investing activities used $32.3 millidnvesting activities consisted of $20.1 milliéer our 2008 acquisition
acquisition-related payments of $1.9 million fornmmitments related to prior yeargicquisitions and capital expenditures
$10.3 million. The increase in cash used in inngstctivities from 2007 relates to an increaseaipital spending of $3.1 million a
an increase in acquisition-related payments ofG8llion.

Capital expenditures as of December 31, 2010, 20092008 were primarily related to investmentseishhology infrastructu
to support our growth initiatives.
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Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Our financing activities provided $170.0 million 2010, representing an increase of $169.9 millamcompared to the sa
period of 2009. Cash provided by financing actdstiduring 2010 was used to support our operatiassa funding source 1
acquisitions and for capital expenditures relatedhe expansion of our technology infrastructurasiC provided by financit
activities in 2010 was primarily related to net ggeds from our initial public offering on August,2D10, a subsequent public st
offering on December 10, 2010 and $40.0 millionpobceeds as a result of borrowing from our creddility. Related to ot
August 11, 2010 initial public offering, we sold80,000 shares of common stock resulting in prageeek of transaction expen:
of $57.5 million. Related to our December 3, 2010l stock offering, we sold an additional 4,0@@Ghares of common stock
the offering resulting in net proceeds, net of $eation expenses, of $98.4 million. Cash proceests wartially offset by payments
extinguish our secured subordinated promissorysnatel our preferred stockholder notes payable @f0$dillion and $6.5 millior
respectively, in the third quarter of 2010, combingith aggregate principal payments of $11.3 millimr scheduled term de
maturities, capital lease obligations and prefersamtkholder notes payable. Additionally, duringl@Qwe paid $0.7 million
preferred stock dividends that had accrued on onvertible preferred stock, which were offset by4saiillion in proceeds from tl
issuance of common stock.

Our financing activities provided $0.1 million i®@9, representing a decrease of $25.8 million,908%, as compared to 20
Cash provided by financing activities in 2009 wasnarily related to net proceeds from refinancing aredit facility, offset b
payments for scheduled term debt maturities, chpié@e obligations and preferred stockholder npsssble.

Our financing activities provided $25.9 million 2008, representing an increase of $13.9 million118.5%, as compared
2007. On February 22, 2008, in order to securetalafor future growth and business developmentviigs, we entered into
securities purchase agreement whereby investochased an aggregate of 1,512,498 shares of Sedesvertible preferred stock
a purchase price of $9.00 per share resulting §14tillion of net proceeds. Additionally, we haelt proceeds of $4.5 million frc
our credit facility, $10.0 million of proceeds fromprivate placement of a note purchase agreemeht@mmon stock issuances
$0.6 million resulting from employees’ and thirdrfies’ exercise of stock options and warrants. These pdwxaevere offset t
$2.6 million of scheduled payments of capital lealskgations.

Cash provided by financing activities during 2018swsed to support our operations until we achi@esitive operating ca
flow, as a funding source for acquisitions anddapital expenditures related to the expansion otexhnology infrastructure.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Contingenies

The following table summarizes, as of December2810, our minimum payments for longrn debt and other obligations
the next five years and thereafter:

Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
(in thousands)

Long-term debt obligation $ 66,03¢ $ 10,78: $ 21,56 $ 33,69¢ $ —
Interest payments on long-term debt

obligations(1) 7,03t 2,532 3,74¢ 754 —

Capital (finance) lease 604 53¢ 65 — —

Operating lease obligatiol 27,71 5,771 9,91¢ 9,35( 2,67¢

Acquisitior-related liabilities(2, 12,55¢ 2,05¢ 10,21¢ 28€ —

$ 113,94 $ 21,68! $ 45,50; $ 44,08t $ 2,67¢

(1) The amount of interest payments on loeign debt obligations represents current obligatiosing rates in effect as
December 31, 201!

(2) We have made several acquisitions in which a poxitcthe cash purchase price is payable at vatimes through 201¢
Long-Term Debt Obligations

In September 2009, we entered into a credit fgodihich provided for a $35.0 million term loan aad210.0 million revolvin
line of credit. A portion of the proceeds from tbedit facility was used to repay the balance awiding under our prior cre
facility. The term loan and revolving line of credre collateralized by substantially all our pe@gproperty. Prior to the June 2(
amendment discussed below, the term loan and riegpline of credit bore interest at rates of theager of 7.5%, a stated rate
5.0% plus LIBOR (or, if greater, 2.5%), or a statatk of 5.0% plus the barskprime rate (or, if greater, 3.5%, the federaburat
plus 0.5% or three month LIBOR plus 1.0%).
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In February 2010, we entered into an amendmenmteatedit facility. Under the terms of the amendintre original term loe
was increased by an additional $10.0 million. Thecpeds from the amendment were primarily usednnte the February 20
acquisition of certain assets of Don@riEnterprise Solutions, Inc. The related interagts and maturity periods remained consi
with the terms of the credit facility. Until therdei2010 amendment discussed below, we made primmEgpenents on the term loan
quarterly installments of approximately $1.8 mitlion June 2010, we entered into a subsequent amentdto the credit facilit
Under the terms of the June 2010 amendment, arti@uhli $30 million in term loans was made availafide borrowing unti
December 22, 2011. After the June 2010 amendntemtierm loan and revolving line of credit bear liegt at a stated rate of 3.
plus LIBOR, or a stated rate of 0.75% plus Wellsgb& prime rate (or, if greater, the federal fundg nalus 0.5% or three mor
LIBOR plus 1.0%). Interest on the term loans aredriéfvolver is payable monthly, or for LIBOR loaasthe end of the applicable, 1-
2-, or 3month interest period. Under the terms of the RO amendment, principal payments on the term loidinbe paid ir
quarterly installments equal to 3.75% of the ppatiamount of term loans, with the balance ofeiit loans and the revolver due
June 30, 2014.

In September 2010, we entered into an amendmaehetoredit facility. Under the terms of the Septem®010 amendment, 1
definition of “fixed charges’under the credit facility was amended to specificakclude the cash dividend and debt repayn
made with the proceeds of our initial public offeyi

In November 2010, we entered into an additional redneent to the credit facility and obtained consenthe Level On
acquisition. Under the terms of the November 20h@radment, we increased the maximum allowable “sdaierage ratio'Uunde
the credit facility as further described below andended the definition of “permitted indebtedndssthe credit facility to perm
amounts payable in the future pursuant to the L&ved acquisition. In addition, we borrowed $30.0ian on our delayed draw tel
loans to facilitate the acquisition.

In February 2011, we entered into a further ameminte the Credit Agreement. Under the terms of Eebruary 201
amendment, our revolving line of credit was incezghffom $10.0 million to $37.0 million. In additipthe interest rates on the te
loan and revolving line of credit were amendedrovjule for a rate that is dependent on our semeerdage ratio and will range fr
a stated rate of 2.75% — 3.25% plus LIBOR or, ataption, a stated rate of 0.0% — 0.5% plus a lbate(Wells Farg® prime rat
or, if greater, the federal funds rate plus 0.5%hoee month LIBOR plus 1.0%). Principal paymenigtee term loan and outstand
revolver balance remain consistent with the previmmendments.

Our credit facility contains customary covenantsolhHimit our and certain of our subsidiarieability to, among other thing
incur additional indebtedness or guarantee indeletesl of others; create liens on our assets; emi@miergers or consolidatiol
dispose of assets; prepay indebtedness or makgeh&m our governing documents and certain of greeanents; pay dividends ¢
make other distributions on our capital stock, esdkem and repurchase our capital stock; maketmeess, including acquisitior
enter into transactions with affiliates; and malepital expenditures. Our credit facility additiolyatontains customary affirmati
covenants, including requirements to, among othiegs, take certain actions in the event we formaaguire new subsidiaries; h
annual meetings with our lenders; provide copiemaferial contracts and amendments to our lendterate our collateral only
specified locations; and use commercially reasaneffiorts to ensure that certain material contraetsnits the assignment of
contract to our lenders; subject in each case $tooary exceptions and qualifications. We are edspiired to comply with a fixe
charge coverage ratio, which is a ratio of our HBATto our fixed charges as determined in accordavitle the credit facility, ¢
1.225:1.00 for the 12-month period ended SepterBBef010 and 1.25:1:00 for each m&nth period ending at the end of a fi
quarter thereafter, and a senior leverage ratidclwis a ratio of the outstanding principal balarafeour term loan plus o
outstanding revolver usage to our EBITDA as deteediin accordance with the credit facility, of 2880 for each period fro
July 31, 2010 until October 31, 2010, then 2.3 Xdr each period until December 31, 2010, the®:2.00 for each fiscal quar
after December 31, 2010.

We have obtained waivers under our credit facilityich were not related to a decline in our castwflAs a result of o
ongoing communications with the lenders under oedit facility, our lenders were aware of the ti@rt®ns and circumstanc
leading up to the waivers and we expected to recdigir approval with regard to such transactioms@rcumstances, whether in
form of a consent, waiver, amendment or otherwSgcifically, we have obtained waivers under owdirfacility in connectio
with procedural requirements under our credit agesg relating to: two acquisition transactions wéseed into in September 20
an update to the credit agreement schedules todea certain arrangement we have in place, andhhgldce at the time of closi
of the credit facility, with our subsidiary thatrges as a special purpose vehicle for processiggeats, including a guaranty m:
by us for the benefit of our subsidiary in favorWwells Fargo Bank; the payment of cash dividendapgroximately $16,000 mc
than the amount agreed to by the lenders; andresthect to our fixed charge coverage ratio asudtrespayments approved by ¢
board of directors and discussed with our lendarsafcash dividend paid in December 2009 and fgmgats on promissory notes
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held by holders of our preferred stock in connectioth a prior declared dividend. The fixed chaogeerage ratio is a ratio of ¢
EBITDA to our fixed charges as determined in acaac® with the credit facility, and was requiredbt® 1.225:1.00 for the three-
month period ending September 30, 2009 and thensixth period ended December 31, 2009. Our actaedi ftharge coverage re
for such periods was 1.22 to 1.00 and 1.22 to Ir&&pectively. However, excluding the impact ofidiénd related payments «
fixed charge coverage ratio for such periods w&@2 10 1:00 and 1.44 to 1.00 respectively. In additio the waivers we obtain
from our lenders, on February 10, 2010, we entaredan amendment to the credit facility with tleaders to, among other thin
amend the definition of “fixed chargesd specifically exclude the cash dividend payménthe event the lenders did not waive tt
defaultsor fail to waive any other default under our creditility, the obligations under the credit fagilitould be accelerated,
applicable interest rate under the credit faciibuld be increased, and our subsidiaries that baaeanteed the credit facility col
be required to pay the obligations in full, and tmnders would be permitted to exercise remedidis kespect to all of the collate
that is securing the credit facility, including stdntially all of our and our subsidiary guarant@ssets. Any such default that is
cured or waived could have a material adverse effeour liquidity and financial condition.

In August 2008, we entered into a note purchaseesgent with a separate lender. Under the termisecAgreement, we isst
secured promissory notes, or the Notes, in the amafu$10.0 million with an interest rate of 13.75p@&yable quarterly. The No
were collateralized by all of our personal propemyd are subordinated to the Credit Agreement.ugust 2010, with the procee
from our initial public offering, we repaid the $00million balance on the Notes.

On December 30, 2008 and April 23, 2010, in corinaclith a declaration of payment of dividends thad accrued on ¢
convertible preferred stock, we issued promissaries to the holders of our convertible preferragtistin an aggregate princij
amount of $11.1 million and $0.4 million, respeeti The preferred stockholder notes bore an isteaé a rate of 8% and wi
payable in 16 consecutive quarterly payments afgipal and interest. Upon closing of our initialbfia offering, we repaid tt
$6.5 million balance on our preferred stockholdates with the proceeds from our initial public ofifg.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any offalance sheet financing arrangements and we dbawvet any relationships with unconsolidated en
or financial partnerships, such as entities ofteferred to as structured finance or special purpas#ies, which have be
established for the purpose of facilitating offdrate sheet arrangements or other contractuallpwanr limited purposes.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting Standards Codification

In September 2009, we adopted the Accounting Stdad@odification, or ASC, established by the Finahéccounting
Standards Board, or FASB. The FASB established ABE as the single source of authoritative mgowernmental GAAF
superseding various existing authoritative accogntironouncements. It eliminates the previous GAkdParchy and establishes
level of authoritative GAAP. All other literature considered noauthoritative. The FASB will not issue new standardthe form c
Statements, FASB Staff Positions or Emerging IsJissk Force Abstracts. Instead, it will issue amdmting Standards Update
ASU. The FASB will not consider ASUs as authoritatin their own right. ASUs will serve only to ugdathe ASC, provic
background information about the guidance and giothe bases for conclusions on the change(spiA8C.

Business Combinations

In December 2007, the FASB issued guidance regautgiisiness combinations, which significantly chantie principles ar
requirements for how the acquirer of a businessgeizes and measures in its financial statemestgltntifiable assets acquired,
liabilities assumed, any nawentrolling interest in the acquiree, and the godidvequired. This statement is effective prospesdi,
except for certain retrospective adjustments temefl tax balances, for fiscal years beginningr dfecember 15, 2008. We app!
these provisions to our 2009 acquisitions whiclilted in expensing related transaction costs ahdngacontingent consideration
the date of acquisition.

Fair Value Measurements

In September 2009, the FASB issued an ASU providiagfication for measuring the fair value of aHility when a quote
price in an active market for the identical liatyilis not available. It also clarifies that wherimesiting the fair value of a liability,
reporting entity is not required to include a sepaiinput or adjustment to other inputs relatingh existence of a restriction t
prevents the transfer of the liability. This ASUeBective for fiscal periods beginning after Aug@g, 2009. We do not believe t
update will have a material impact on its consdéddinancial statements.
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Multiple Element Arrangements

In October 2009, the FASB issued an ASU that ametritle accounting rules addressing revenue recognitr multiple-
deliverable revenue arrangements by eliminatingettisting criteria that objective and reliable eande of fair value for undeliver
products or services exist in order to be ablesfzagately account for deliverables. Additionallye tASU provides for elimination
the use of the residual method of allocating areamgnt consideration and requires that arrangenuersideration be allocated at
inception of the arrangement to all deliverablest tan be accounted for separately based on #lative selling price. A hierarc
for estimating such selling price is included ie thpdate. This ASU will be effective prospectivédy revenue arrangements ente
into or materially modified in fiscal years begingion or after June 15, 2010. Early adoption ismiiged. We adopted the
accounting standards for all periods herein.

In October 2009, the FASB issued an ASU that chsutige criteria for determining when an entity sldoatcount for transactio
with customers using the revenue recognition guidaapplicable to the selling or licensing of softevaThis ASU is effectiv
prospectively for revenue arrangements enteredantoaterially modified in fiscal years beginning or after June 15, 2010. Ec
adoption is permitted. We do not believe this upduaitl have a material impact on its consolidatedcial statements.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss that mapauot our financial position due to adverse changdgmancial market price
and rates. Our market risk exposure is primaritgsault of fluctuations in interest rates. We do heold or issue financial instrume
for trading purposes.

We had cash and cash equivalents of $118.0 m#éli@h$4.4 million at December 31, 2010 and 200eetively.

We hold cash and cash equivalents for working ahpiirposes. We do not have material exposure tkehesk with respect’
investments, as our investments consist primafilgighly liquid investments purchased with origimaaturities of three months
less. We do not use derivative financial instruraeiot speculative or trading purposes; however,nay adopt specific hedgi
strategies in the future. Any declines in interasts, however, will reduce future interest income.

We had total outstanding debt of $66.0 million &5d.9 at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectiVéky.interest rate on tt
debt is variable and adjusts periodically basedhenthreemonth LIBOR rate. If the LIBOR rate changes by I%r annual intere
expense would change by approximately $0.6 million.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
RealPage, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of RealPage, Inc. (the “Comparmag’)of December 31, 20
and 2009, and the related consolidated statemérmparations, in redeemable convertible prefertedksand stockholdersgquity
(deficit) and cash flows for each of the three geiarthe period ended December 31, 2010. Our aathts included the financ
statement schedule listed in the index under ItBfm)l These financial statements and schedule laerdsponsibility of tr
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpian opinion on these financial statements ametisite based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBio(United States
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenatidit to obtain reasonable assurance about whiiaéinancial statements ¢
schedule are free of material misstatement. We wetengaged to perform an audit of the Compsimternal control over financ
reporting. Our audits included consideration oéinal control over financial reporting as a basisdesigning audit procedures 1
are appropriate in the circumstances, but notHerpurpose of expressing an opinion on the effentigs of the Comparsyinterna
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, wgpeess no such opinion. An audit also includes eéxang, on a test basis, evidel
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fiisdustatements, assessing the accounting prirscided and significant estime
made by management, and evaluating the overalhdiahstatement presentation. We believe that odlits provide a reasonal
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respech® tonsolidated financ
position of RealPage, Inc. at December 31, 20102888, and the consolidated results of its opematand its cash flows for eact
the three years in the period ended December 310 20 conformity with United States generally adegpaccounting principle
Also, in our opinion, the related financial statemschedule, when considered in relation to thécfasancial statements taken ¢
whole, presents fairly in all material respects, ithiformation set forth within.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrat@ements, the Company changed its method afuating for busine:
combinations on January 1, 2009.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 28, 2011
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RealPage, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 31

2010 2009
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 118,01 $ 4,427
Restricted cas 15,34¢ 14,88t
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfaloamts of $1,370 and $2,222 at
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respecti' 29,57: 25,84
Deferred tax asset, net of valuation allowa 1,52¢ 3,11(
Other current asse 6,06( 2,73¢
Total current asse 170,52: 51,00:
Property, equipment, and software, 24,51t 20,74¢
Goodwill 73,88¢ 27,36¢
Identified intangible assets, r 54,36 22,89
Deferred tax asset, net of valuation allowa 17,32 17,80:
Other asset 2,18 2,301
Total asset $ 342,79 $ 142,11
Liabilities, redeemable convertible preferred stockand stockholder¢ (deficit) equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 4,781 $ 3,70t
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 15,43¢ 10,83(
Current portion of deferred reven 47,71 39,97¢
Current portion of lon-term debt 10,78: 8,412
Customer deposits held in restricted acco 15,25 15,127
Total current liabilities 93,97¢ 78,05(
Deferred revenu 7,94 9,452
Long-term debt, less current portir 55,25¢ 43,44¢
Other lon¢-term liabilities 13,02¢ 5,80¢
Total liabilities 170,20¢ 136,75

Commitments and contingencies (Note
Redeemable convertible preferred stock, Seriesd¥€n $0.001 par value: zero and

25,906,250 shares authorized, issued and outstaatiiDecember 31, 2010 and 2009,

respectively (liquidation value zero and $51,82Batember 31, 2010 and 2009,

respectively’ — 51,78t¢
Redeemable convertible preferred stock, SerieDB par value: zero and 1,625,000 shai

authorized, issued and outstanding at Decembe&2@®1 and 2009, respectively (liquidatic

value zero and $6,500 at December 31, 2010 and, 28§%ectively — 6,491
Redeemable convertible preferred stock, Serie9@0% par value: zero and 1,512,498 shares

authorized, issued and outstanding at Decembe2@®1 and 2009, respectively (liquidation

value zero and $13,613 at December 31, 2010 an@l, 288pectively — 13,55¢
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 10,000,000 sharthorized and zero shares outstanding

December 31, 2010 and 2009, respecti' — —
Stockholder’ (deficit) equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value: 125,000,000 are067900 shares authorized, 68,703,

and 26,667,319 shares issued and 68,490,277 a@2B31 shares outstanding at

December 31, 2010 and 2009, respecti' 69 27
Additional paic-in capital 263,21¢ 24,23
Treasury stock, at cost: 213,089 and 206,538 sl@f@ecember 31, 2010 and 2009,

respectively (95¢) (93¢)
Accumulated defici (89,730 (89,797
Accumulated other comprehensive i (16) —

Total stockholder equity (deficit) 172,58« (66,476

Total liabilities, redeemable convertible preferstdck and stockholde' (deficit) equity $  342,79. $ 142,11

See accompanying notes
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RealPage, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Revenue:

On demanc $ 169,67 $ 128,37 $ 95,19:

On premise 8,54¢ 3,86( 7,582

Professional and oth 10,05: 8,66¢ 9,794

Total revenue 188,27- 140,90: 112,56¢

Cost of revenue(1 79,04« 58,51 46,05¢
Gross profit 109,23( 82,38 66,51(
Operating expense:

Product development(: 36,92: 27,44¢ 28,80¢

Sales and marketing( 37,69: 27,80« 23,92

General and administrative( 28,32¢ 20,21( 14,13t

Total operating expen: 102,94: 75,46( 66,86¢

Operating (loss) income 6,28 6,92¢ (359)
Interest expense and other, (5,507 (4,529 (2,152)
(Loss) income before income taxe 78€ 2,401 (2,50€6)
Income tax expense (benel 71¢ (26,02¢) 703
Net (loss) income $ 67 $ 28,42¢ $ (3,209
Net (loss) income attributable to common stockholds

Basic $ 2,87) % 10,61: $ (10,659

Diluted $ 2,87) % 10,61: $ (10,659
Net (loss) income per share attributable to commostockholders

Basic $ 0.0 % 0.44 $ (0.77)

Diluted $ 0.0 % 0.4z $ (0.77)
Weighted average shares used in computing nej (lossme per share

attributable to common stockholde

Basic 39,73} 23,93¢ 13,88¢

Diluted 39,737 25,51 13,88t
(1) Includes stoc-based compensation expense as follc

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008

Cost of revenu $ 633 $ 367 $ 104
Product developmel 2,56¢ 1,17¢ 727
Sales and marketir 2,49: 49¢ 271
General and administrati\ 1,64¢ 765 36¢

See accompanying notes
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Consolidated Statements of Redeemable Convertibledferred Stock and Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity

Balance as of January 1, 2C
Issuance of redeemable
convertible preferred stoc
Accretion of redeemable
convertible preferred stoc
Exercise of stock optior
Exercise of stock warran
Conversion of redeemable
convertible preferred stock
dividends
Treasury stock purchase, at ¢
Stocl-based compensatic
Net (loss)
Balance as of December 31, 2(
Accretion of redeemable
convertible preferred stoc
Exercise of stock optior
Exercise of stock warran
Common stock warrants
convertec
Conversion of redeemable
convertible preferred stock
dividends
Issuances related to acquisitic
Treasury stock purchase, at ¢
Stocl-based compensatic
Net income
Balance as of December 31, 2(
Comprehensive income (los:
Foreign currency translatic
Net income
Total comprehensive incon
Accretion of redeemable
convertible preferred stoc
Exercise of stock optior
Common stock warrants
convertec
Conversion of redeemable
convertible preferred stock
dividends
Conversion of redeemable
convertible preferred stock
due to initial public offerin¢
Issuance of restricted sto
Treasury stock purchase, at ¢
Issuance of common stock
through public offerings, net
of issuance cos
Excess tax benefit from stock
options
Stocl-based compensatic
Balance as of December 31, 2(

RealPage, Inc.

(in thousands)

Redeemable Accumulated
Convertible Additional Other Total
Preferred Stock _ Common Stock Paid-in  Comprehensive Accumulated _Treasury Shares  Stockholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Shares Amount (Deficit) Equity
27,53. 78,53« 10,63¢ 11 8,037 — (115,01°) — — (106,96
1,51z 13,35% — — — — — — — —
— 7,69¢ — — (7,69¢) — — — — (7,69¢)
— — 33z 1 77C — — — — 771
— —  4,65¢ 4 267 — — — — 271
(27,914 8,14¢ 9 16,84 — — — — 16,85(
— — — — — — — 69 $ (449 (449
— — — — 1,47¢ — — — — 1,47¢
— — — — — — (3,209 — — (3,20¢
29,04¢ 71,67 23,77 25 19,69¢ — (118,22¢) (69) (449) (98,957
— 5,67¢ — — (5,67¢ — — — — (5,67¢)
— — 17¢ — 543 — — — — 543
— — 20C — 4 — — — — 4
— — 16 — — — — — — —
—  (5,521) 1,41¢ 1 3,00¢ — — — — 3,00t
— — 1,08 1 3,861 — — — — 3,86=
— — — — — — — (137 (48¢) (48¢9)
— — — — 2,80t — — — — 2,80t
— — — — — — 28,42¢ — — 28,42¢
29,04« 71,83. 26,66 27 24,23. — (89,797 (20€) (93¢) (66,47€)
— — — — — (16) — — — (16)
— — — — — — 67 — — 67
51
— 3,03( — — (3,030 — — — — (3,030
— —  1,60¢ 2 2,401 — — — — 2,40:
— — 8 — — — — — — —
—  (1,16)) 34z — 72€ — — — — 72€
(29,044 (73,707) 29,56¢ 30 73,00¢ — — — — 73,03t
— — 51z — 3,27¢ — — — — 3,27¢
— — — — - 20 20
10,00( 10  155,16: 155,17:
11C 11C
— — — 7,34C — — — — 7,34(C
— $ — 68,70: $ 69 $ 263,21¢ $ (16) $ (89,73() (213) $ (958 % 172,58:

See accompanying notes.
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RealPage, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31
2010 2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss $ 67 $ 28,42¢ $ (3,209
Adjustments to reconcile net income(loss) to nehgarovided by
operating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic 20,95¢ 14,76¢ 10,991
Deferred tax expense (bene (85) (26,309 48¢
Stocl-based compensatic 7,34( 2,80t 1,47¢
Excess tax benefit from stock optic (161) — —
Loss on disposal of ass¢ 57 127 11t
Impairment of asse 33 11¢ 83C
Acquisitior-related contingent considerati 8 — —

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of assejisid and liabilities
assumed in business combinatic

Accounts receivabl (2,06¢) 2,407 (7,622
Customer deposit (339 25E (20%)
Other current asse (3,162 55¢ (209)
Other asset 15& (1,140 (290)
Accounts payabl 69¢ 64t (579
Accrued compensation, taxes and ben 404 (461) 934
Deferred revenu 1,31¢ 1,094 5,561
Other current and loi-term liabilities 2,46z 1,45¢ (432)
Net cash provided by operating activit 27,69( 24,75¢ 7,962
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, equipment and softy (12,179 (9,509 (10,267)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu (71,949 (15,167 (22,057
Net cash used by investing activit (84,119 (24,676 (32,32()

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from public offerings, net of underwritifigcount and offering

costs 155,94¢ — —
Proceeds from notes payal 40,00( 35,00( 15,52:
Payments on notes payal (26,257 (16,857 (2,459
Proceeds from (payments on) revolving credit fagilet — (20,000 1,41€
Payments on capital lease obligatit (1,539 (5,599 (2,55¢%)
Issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stoetkof cost: — — 13,357
Preferred stock dividen (66€) (2,51¢ —
Issuance of common sto 2,40 547 1,042
Excess tax benefit from stock optic 161 — —
Purchase of treasury sto (20) (48€) (449)
Net cash provided by financing activiti 170,02¢ 97 25,87¢
Net increase in cash and cash equival 113,59¢ 17¢ 1,515
Effect of exchange rate on ce (16) — —
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of perioc 4,42 4,24¢ 2,731
End of perioc $ 118,01 $ 4,42 $ 4,24¢
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for intere: $ 5,26¢ $ 3,83: $ 2,651
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refu $ 192 $ 22¢ $ 117
Non-cash financing activities:
Fixed assets acquired under capital lei $ — $ 2,462 $ 2,07
Accrued dividends and accretion of preferred s $ 3,03( $ 5,67¢ $ 7,69¢
Conversion of preferred stock to common sh $ 73,76! $ 3,00t $ 16,85(

See accompanying notes.
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RealPage, Inc.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
1. The Company

RealPage, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and itsididries, (the “Company” or “we” or “us”)s a provider of proper
management solutions that enable owners and manafsingle-family and a wide variety of multimily rental property types
manage their marketing, pricing, screening, leasaegounting, purchasing and other property opmratiOur on demand softw.
solutions are delivered through an integrated sm#wplatform that provides a single point of accasd a shared repository
prospect, resident and property data. By integgadind streamlining a wide range of complex processel interactions among
rental housing ecosystem of owners, managers, @ctspresidents and service providers, our platfoptimizes the proper
management process and improves the experiened fufrthese constituents. Our solutions enabl@@ny owners and manager:
optimize revenues and reduce operating costs thrbigher occupancy, improved pricing methodologiesy sources of reven
from ancillary services, improved collections andrenintegrated and centralized processes.

Reverse Stock Split

On July 22, 2010, the board of directors approvedmended and restated certificate of incorporatian effected a rever
stock split of every two outstanding shares of gmefd stock and common stock into one share obpeaf stock or common sto
respectively. The par value of the common and nexddde convertible preferred stock was not adjuated result of the reverse st
split. All issued and outstanding common stockirieted stock, redeemable convertible preferredistwarrants for common stc
and per share amounts contained in the finana#tstents have been retroactively adjusted to tetthés reverse stock split for
periods presented. The reverse stock split wastefleon July 23, 2010.

Initial Public Offering

On August 11, 2010, our registration statement omFS-1 (File No 333:66397) relating to our initial public offering w
declared effective by the Securities and Exchange@ission (“SEC”).We sold 6,000,000 shares of common stock in odial
public offering. Our common stock began tradingfargust 12, 2010 on the NASDAQ Global Select Stockkét under the symt
“RP,” and our initial public offering closed on August, ZD10. Upon closing of our initial public offeringll outstanding shares
our preferred stock, including a portion of accrbed unpaid dividends on our outstanding share3eoies A, Series Al and Serie
convertible preferred stock, were converted intb@9,952 shares of common stock.

In connection with the consummation of our init@lblic offering, our Board of Directors and stoclders approved o
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporattbe (Restated Certificate"yyhich was filed with the Delaware Secretary of &
and became effective on August 17, 2010. The Rsbt@ertificate provides for two classes of capgimck to be designate
respectively, Common Stock and Preferred Stock. Wtal number of shares which the Company is aighdrto issue
135,000,000 shares: 125,000,000 shares are Comtook, par value $0.001 per share, and 10,000,08feshare Preferred Sto
par value $0.001 per share.

On December 6, 2010, our registration statemenfFanm S-1 (File No 333-70667) relating to a public stock offering \
declared effective by the SEC. We sold an additi@n@00,000 shares of common stock in the offerifige offering closed ¢
December 10, 2010.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated balance sheets d3eoémber 31, 2010 and 2009 and the accompanyingobdate
statements of operations and cash flows for eatheothree years in the period ended December@i),2009 and 2008 repres
our financial position, results of operations aadttflows as of and for the periods then ended.cbheolidated financial stateme
include the accounts of RealPage, Inc. and our lydmtned subsidiaries. All material intercompany actswand transactions hz
been eliminated in consolidation.
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Accounting Reclassification

In the second quarter of 2010, an adjustment wakert@reclassify amounts previously reported aseotiportion of deferre
revenue. This adjustment resulted in increase éoldhg term portion of deferred revenue of $4.0iamland $3.5 million as
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and goraling decreases in the current portion of deferevenue. These changes
not have an impact on our consolidated statemdmparations or statements of cash flows for anyopepresented.

Segment and Geographic Information

Our chief operating decision maker is our Chief &xve Officer, who reviews financial informatiomgsented on a company-
wide basis. As a result, we determined that the fizomw has a single reporting segment and operatiitgtucture.

Principally, all of our revenues for the periodsled December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were in Mortérica.

Net longlived assets held were $24.0 million and $20.3iarillin North America, and $0.5 million and $0.5lioih in oul
international subsidiaries at December 31, 2010289, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedtlie United State
(GAAP) requires our management to make certaimastis and assumptions that affect the reported rimofi assets and liabiliti
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liegsilat the date of the financial statements, hedéported amounts of revenues
expenses during the reporting periods. Signifiestimates include the allowance for doubtful actsuthe useful lives of intangit
assets and the recoverability or impairment of italagand intangible asset values; purchase acawmyrallocations and relat
reserves; revenue and deferred revenue; diaskd compensation; and our effective income téx aad the recoverability
deferred tax assets, which are based upon our &tjpes of future taxable income and allowable atidus. Actual results coL
differ from these estimates.

Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments with atority date, when purchased, of three months & tede cash equivalents.
Concentrations of Credit Risk

Our cash accounts are maintained at various fiahintstitutions and may, from time to time, excdederally insured limit:
The Company has not experienced any losses inagfunts.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to actteueceivable result from substantially all of customers being in the multi-
family rental housing market. Our customers, howgsaee dispersed across different geographic aWasdo not require collate
from customers. We maintain an allowance for lodsased upon the expected collectability of accowat®ivable. Accoun
receivable are written off upon determination oh+uwollectability following established Company poéisibased on the aging fr
the accounts receivable invoice date.

No single customer accounted for 5% or more ofrewenue or accounts receivable for the years ebdsgmber 31, 201
2009 or 2008.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities with carrying amisuapproximating fair value include cash and aghivalents, restricted ca
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accxeshses and other current liabilities. The carngangpunt of these financial ass
and liabilities approximates fair value becausthefr short maturities. The carrying amount of dabt and other longgrm liabilities
approximates their fair value. The fair value obtdeas based upon our managenehest estimate of interest rates that woul
available for similar debt obligations as of DecemB1, 2010 and 2009 and was consistent with ttexdst rates we received
connection with the refinancing of our debt obligas in June 2010.
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Accounts Receivable

For several of our solutions, we invoice custonpeisr to the period in which service is providedtchunts receivable repres
trade receivables from customers when we have ¢eddior software solutions and/or services and awe ot yet received payme
We present accounts receivable net of an allowdaceloubtful accounts. We maintain an allowance doubtful accounts fi
estimated losses resulting from the inability oftomers to make required payments, or the custoarerelling prior to the servi
being rendered. In doing so, we consider the ctifreancial condition of the customer, the specditails of the customer accot
the age of the outstanding balance, the currenhan@ environment and historical credit trends. &sesult, a portion of o
allowance is for services not yet rendered andefbee, is charged as an offset to deferred revembih does not have an effect
the statement of operations. Any change in thenagians used in analyzing a specific account red#® might result in ¢
additional allowance for doubtful accounts beingognized in the period in which the change occurs.

Property, Equipment and Software

Property, equipment and software are recorded sit less accumulated depreciation and amortizatidrich are compute
using the straight-line method over the followirggimated useful lives:

Leasehold improvemen 1-10 year
Data processing and communications equipr 3-10 year
Furniture, fixtures and other equipm 3-5 year:
Software 3 year

Software includes purchased software and internddlyeloped software. Leasehold improvements areedieyped over tr
shorter of the lease term or the estimated usieks bf the assets.

Business Combinations

When we acquire businesses, we allocate the totadideration paid to the fair value of the tangibisets, liabilities, al
identifiable intangible assets acquired. Any realdaurchase consideration is recorded as goodWik allocation of the purche
price requires our management to make significatitn@ates in determining the fair values of assetpimed and liabilities assum:
in particular with respect to identified intangibdssets. These estimates are based on the amplictivaluation models usi
historical experience and information obtained frilve management of the acquired companies. Théiseagss can include, but :
not limited to, the cash flows that an asset iscetgd to generate in the future, the appropriatghtedaverage cost of capital &
the cost savings expected to be derived from aoguian asset. These estimates are inherently @amteshd unpredictable.
addition, unanticipated events and circumstanceg ow@ur which may affect the accuracy or validity tbese estimates.
accordance with new accounting guidance, beginim2§09, we began including the fair value of cogént consideration to be p
within the total consideration allocated to ther faalue of the assets acquired and liabilities a1 This requires us to mz
estimates regarding the fair value of the amountsetpaid. Additionally, we expense acquisitrefated costs as incurred rather 1
including as a component of purchase price.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We perform an impairment review of lofiged assets held and used whenever events or ekangircumstances indicate 1
the carrying value may not be recoverable. Fast@rgonsider important that could trigger an impaintreview include, but are 1
limited to, significant undeperformance relative to projected future operatigplts, significant changes in the manner of @er @
the acquired assets or our overall business apddoiuct strategies. When we determine that the/iogrivalue of a londived asse
may not be recoverable based upon the existenoreobr more of these indicators, we determineebewerability by comparing t
carrying amount of the asset or asset group téutete undiscounted cash flows that the assetsetasre expected to generate.
would then recognize an impairment charge equ#théoamount by which the carrying amount exceeddaimenarket value of tf
asset or assets.

In December 2008, we decided to sell certain assedsciated with one of our service offerings wédtmet book value
$1.8 million. Assets identified for sale were weiitdown to their estimated market value at Decer@be008, resulting in a loss
$0.8 million. The estimated market value of $1.0Uian was based on observable prices for similaets We have recorded th
assets in other current assets in the consolidetizahce sheet at December 31, 2008. During 2008rteon of these assets were s
The balance of these assets at December 31, 2@8%@v2 million. As the held for sale criteria watelonger met, these assets v
reclassified to fixed assets at December 31, 2009.
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets with IndefimitLives

We test goodwill and other intangible assets wittiefinite lives for impairment separately on an wairbasis in the four
quarter of each year. Additionally, we will testogiwill and other intangible assets with indefirlitees in the interim if events a
circumstances indicate that goodwill and otherrigtale assets with indefinite lives may be impair€de events and circumstan
that we consider include significant ungerformance relative to projected future operatiegults and significant changes in
overall business and/or product strategies. Weuatalimpairment of goodwill using a tvebep process. The first step involve
comparison of the fair value of a reporting unithwits carrying amount. If the carrying amount loé reporting unit exceeds its 1
value, the second step of the process involvesrgpadson of the fair value and carrying amounthef goodwill of that reporting ut
and determination of the impairment charge, if aMe evaluate other intangible assets with indefifiites by estimating the fi
value of those assets based on estimated futuréngarderived from the assets using the incomeaggbr model. If thesarrying
amount of the other intangible assets with ind&difives exceeds the fair value, we would recogaizémpairment loss equal to
excess of carrying value over fair value. If anrgveccurs that would cause us to revise our estisnahd assumptions uset
analyzing the value of our goodwill and other imjidfdte assets with indefinite lives, the revisionultbresult in a norcash impairmel
charge that could have a material impact on owarfiial results. There was no impairment of goodwillintangible assets w
indefinite lives in 2010, 2009 or 2008.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of acquired developedymtatechnologies, acquired customer relationshipsdor relationships, non-
competition agreements and tradenames. We rectandgible assets at fair value and amortize thode fiviite lives over the short
of the contractual life or the estimated usefut.liiWe estimate the useful lives of acquired dewdoproduct technologies &
customer relationships based on factors that irctbid planned use of each developed product teogmaind the expected pattert
future cash flows to be derived from each develgmeduct technology and existing customer relatigys We include amortizatii
of acquired developed product technologies in obsévenue, amortization of acquired customer i@iahips in sales and market
expenses and amortization of vendor relationshijgb roneompetition agreements in general and adminisgagxpenses in o
consolidated statements of operations.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided based on the liabilitthod, which results in income tax assets and ligslarising from tempora
differences. Temporary differences are differenoesveen the tax basis of assets and liabilitiesthait reported amounts in 1
financial statements that will result in taxabledeductible amounts in future years. The liabititgthod requires the effect of tax 1
changes on current and accumulated deferred in¢cares to be reflected in the period in which the hange was enacted. -
liability method also requires that deferred tazeds be reduced by a valuation allowance unleissnitore likely than not that t
assets will be realized.

We may recognize a tax benefit from uncertain tasitons only if it is at least more likely thantrtbat the tax position will t
sustained upon examination by the taxing authsritiesed on the technical merits of the positidre fx benefits recognized in
financial statements from such a position are measbased on the largest benefit that has a grédsrar50% likelihood of beir
realized upon settlement with the taxing authaitldpon our adoption of the related standard, tive® no liability for uncertain t:
positions due to the fact that there were no idiedttax benefits that were considered uncertasitjgms.

We establish valuation allowances when necessargdoce deferred tax assets to the amounts experted realized. W
evaluate the need for, and the adequacy of, valuatiiowances based on the expected realizatiovuofdeferred tax assets. ~
factors used to assess the likelihood of realimaiticlude historical earnings, our latest foreadstaxable income and available
planning strategies that could be implemented dbze the net deferred tax assets.

Revenue Recognition

We derive our revenue from three primary sources:om demand software solutions; our on premisevsoé solutions; ar
professional and other services. We commence revesaognition when all of the following conditioage met:

» there is persuasive evidence of an arranger

» the solution and/or service has been provideddatstomer
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» the collection of the fees is probable; ¢
e the amount of fees to be paid by the customexéifor determinable

For multielement arrangements that include multiple softveatations and/or services, we allocate arrangemamsideratio
to all deliverables that have staalbne value based on their relative selling pri¢essuch circumstances, we utilize the follow
hierarchy to determine the selling price to be usedllocating revenue to deliverables as follows:

»  Vendor specific objective evidence (VSOE), if add. The price at which we sell the element in a sepas&tndalone
transaction

«  Third-party evidence of selling price (TPE), if VIBOf selling price is not availabl&vidence from us or other compar
of the value of a largely interchangeable elemeat fransaction; ar

. Estimated selling price (ESP), if neither VSOE M&E of selling price is availablOur best estimate of the staalbne
selling price of an element in a transacti

Our process for determining ESP for deliverablethouit VSOE or TPE considers multiple factors thatymary dependir
upon the unique facts and circumstances relatezhttn deliverable. Key factors primarily consideneddeveloping ESP inclut
prices charged by us for similar offerings whendsséparately, pricing policies and approvals fraandard pricing and oth
business objectives.

From time to time, we sell on demand software smhgt with professional services. In such casegaab element has st
alone value, we allocate arrangement considerdtas®ed on our estimated selling price of the on densoftware solution ai
VSOE of the selling price of the professional seesi

On Demand Revenue

Our on demand revenue consists of license and sptign fees, transaction fees related to certdimw softwareenablel
value-added services and commissions derived froselling certain risk mitigation services.

License and subscription fees are comprised ofaagehbilled at the initial order date and monthtyaanual subscription fe
for accessing our on demand software solutions.litkase fee billed at the initial order date isagnized as revenue on a straight-
line basis over the longer of the contractual temthe period in which the customer is expectedeanefit, which we consider to
four years. Recognition starts once the productbess activated. Revenue from monthly and annuaiption fees is recogniz
on a straight-line basis over the access period.

We recognize revenue from transaction fees derix@u certain of our software-enabled valagded services as the rele
services are performed.

As part of our risk mitigation services to the @dniousing industry, we act as an insurance agedtdrive commissic
revenue from the sale of insurance products toviddals. The commissions are based upon a percemfathe premium that tl
insurance company charges to the policyholder aadabject to forfeiture in instances where a bladder cancels prior to the €
of the policy. If the policy is cancelled, our comssions are forfeited as a percent of the uneapneaiium. As a result, we recogn
the commissions related to these services ratalgythe policy term as the associated premiumganeed.

On Premise Revenue
Revenue from our on premise software solutionsoimprised of an annual term license, which includesntenance ai

support. Customers can renew their annual termdiedor additional ongear terms at renewal price levels. We recognieeatimuz
term license on a straight-line basis over theremtterm.
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In addition, we have arrangements that include gtegd licenses with maintenance and other sentwdse provided over
fixed term. We allocate and defer revenue equitalerthe VSOE of fair value for the undeliveredmsénts and recognize 1
difference between the total arrangement fee aadathount deferred for the undelivered elementeesnue. We have determir
that we do not have VSOE of fair value for our onsér support and professional services in thesefgparrangements. As a res
the elements within our multiplelement sales agreements do not qualify for treattras separate units of accounting. Accordir
we account for fees received under multiplement arrangements with customer support or gifefessional services as a sit
unit of accounting and recognize the entire arrareye ratably over the longer of the customer supperiod or the period duril
which professional services are rendered.

Professional and Other Revenue

Professional & other revenue is recognized as éneices are rendered for time and material cordraltaining revenues ¢
recognized after the services are performed.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue primarily consists of billingspayments received in advance of revenue recognit@mn our subscriptic
service described above and is recognized as themwe recognition criteria are met. For severabwf solutions, we invoice o
customers in annual, monthly or quarterly instalitsein advance of the commencement of the servic®g Accordingly, th
deferred revenue balance does not represent gilectoitract value of annual subscription agreements

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists primarily of salaries eldted personnel expenses of our operations gopbsupersonnel, includi
training and implementation services, expensesewlao the operation of our data center, fees paidhird-party provider:
allocations of facilities overhead costs and deptiEm, amortization of acquired technologies amdogization of capitalize
software.

Customer Acquisition Costs
The costs of obtaining new customers are experséattarred.
Share-Based Compensation

We record stockased compensation expense for options grantetipiogees based on the estimated fair value foatterds
using the BlackScholes option pricing model on the date of gravi. recognize expense over the requisite servidegewhich i
generally the vesting period, on a straight-linsisa

At each stock option grant date, we utilize pe@ugrdata to calculate our expected volatility. Ectpd volatility is based ¢
historical volatility rates of publicly traded pserExpected life is computed using the mpalnt between the vesting period .
contractual life of the options granted. The rigde rate is based on the treasury yield rate witimaturity corresponding to 1
expected option life assumed at the grant date.d@/aot estimate forfeitures as the awards vesttepyarover the related servi
term.

Changes to the underlying assumptions may havgnifisant impact on the underlying value of thecktoptions, which cou
have a material impact on our consolidated findrat&ements.

We have granted stock options at exercise pricksvied to be equal to or above the fair market @afiour common stock,
of the grant date. Given the absence of any aatiaket for our common stock before our initial palgffering, the fair market vali
of the common stock underlying stock options grdanteas determined by our compensation committeeh wiput from ou
management, and considered contemporaneous thindyaduations.

The fair value of our timdased restricted stock awards is based on thenglgsice on the date of grant. We recognize exy
over the requisite service period, which is gemegithle vesting period, on a straight-line basist &ar performancéased restricte
stock awards, we recognized compensation expensetbe requisite service period when it becomedabte the performan
condition will be achieved.
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Capitalized Product Development Costs

We capitalize specific product development costsluding costs to develop software products orstbiéware components
our solutions to be marketed to external usersyelsas software programs to be used solely to raetinternal needs. The cc
incurred in the preliminary stages of developmesiated to research, project planning, training, megiance and general
administrative activities, and overhead costs apersed as incurred. The costs of relatively mupmgrades and enhancements tc
software are also expensed as incurred. Once dicatam has reached the development stage, irtarmmhexternal costs incurrec
the performance of application development stagjgities, including costs of materials, servicesl gayroll and payroltelated cos
for employees, are capitalized, if direct and inveatal, until the software is substantially comglahd ready for its intended
Capitalization ceases upon completion of all suliigth testing. We also capitalize costs related specific upgrades a
enhancements when it is probable the expendituiksesult in additional functionality. Capitalizedosts are recorded as par
property and equipment. Internal use software ieréimed on a straightne basis over its estimated useful life, gengrdilee year:
We capitalized $1.4 million and $1.4 million of piect development costs during the years ended Deeei, 2010 and 20(
respectively, and recognized amortization expefig§d @ million, $1.3 million and $0.9 million dumnthe years ended December
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, included as mpoment of cost of revenue. Unamortized productetigpment cost wi
$3.2 million and $3.1 million at December 31, 2Gi@ 2009, respectively. Our management evaluagessiful lives of these ass
on an annual basis and tests for impairment wherexents or changes in circumstances occur thadl doypact the recoverability
these assets. There were no impairments to intessasoftware during the years ended December03D, 2009 or 2008.

Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred andetbt&7.7 million, $5.9 million and $4.9 million fothe years ends
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities istead of the following:

December 31

2010 2009
(in thousands)
Accrued compensation, payroll taxes, and ben $ 6,94¢ $ 5,034
Current portion of capital leas 52t 1,54(
Current portion of liabilities related to acquisitis 2,05¢ 1,90:
Other current liabilitie: 5,907 2,35:
Total accrued expenses and other current lials $ 15,43¢ $ 10,83(

Other Long-Term Liabilities
Other long-term liabilities consisted of the follmg:

December 31,

2010 2009
(in thousands)
Capital leases, less current port $ 65 $ 58¢
Long-term liabilities related to acquisitions, less emtrportion 10,50: 2,45¢
Other lon¢-term liabilities 2,46% 2,762
Total other lon-term liabilities $ 13,02¢ $ 5,80¢

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2009, we adopted the Financial Acéogir8tandards Boarsl'(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (AS
The FASB established the ASC as the single soufcauthoritative norgovernmental GAAP, superseding various exis
authoritative accounting pronouncements. It eliréeahe previous GAAP hierarchy and establishedeared of authoritative GAAF
All other literature is considered n@uthoritative. The FASB will not issue new standainl the form of Statements, FASB S
Positions or Emerging Issues Task Force Abstrémssead, it will issue an Accounting Standards UpdASU). The FASB will nc
consider ASUs as authoritative in their own righ®Us will serve only to update the ASC, provide kzround information about tl
guidance and provide the bases for conclusionb®@ghiange(s) in the ASC.

88




Table of Contents

In December 2007, the FASB issued guidance regatdiisiness combinations, which significantly chantie principles ar
requirements for how the acquirer of a businessgeizes and measures in its financial statemeptgtntifiable assets acquired,
liabilities assumed, any narontrolling interest in the acquiree and the godidadquired. This statement is effective prospeiiy
except for certain retrospective adjustments temefl tax balances, for fiscal years beginningr dfecember 15, 2008. We app!
these provisions to our 2010 and 2009 acquisitioh&h resulted in expensing related transactiortscasd valuing continge
consideration at the date of acquisition. See [Sote

In September 2009, the FASB issued an ASU providiagfication for measuring the fair value of aHility when a quote
price in an active market for the identical liatyilis not available. It also clarifies that, whestimating the fair value of a liability,
reporting entity is not required to include a sepainput or adjustment to other inputs relatinghte existence of a restriction t
prevents the transfer of the liability The adopti@d no impact on our consolidated results of dpera or financial position.

3. Acquisitions
2010 Acquisitions

In November 2010, we acquired certain of the assietevel One, LLC and L1 Technology, LLC (colleatly “Level One’),
subsidiaries of IAS Holdings, LLC, for approximatéi61.9 million, which included a cash payment 68 ® million at closing and
deferred payment of up to approximately $8.0 millipayable in cash or the issuance of our commmrk gtighteen months after -
acquisition date. The acquisition of Level Oneliertexpanded our ability to provide on demand feasenter services. To faciliti
the acquisition, we borrowed $30.0 million on oelayed draw term loans and utilized $24.0 millidrthee net proceeds from ¢
initial public offering. In addition, we amendedraDredit Agreement to modify certain financial coaats to consider the impact
the acquisition.

Acquired intangibles were recorded at fair valusdohon assumptions made by us. The acquired dedefmpduct technologi
have a useful life of three years amortized onraigtttdine basis. Acquired customer relationships hawesetul life of nine yea
which will be amortized proportionately to the egfel discounted cash flows derived from the a3swt.tradenames acquired h
an indefinite useful life as we do not plan to esasing the tradenames in the marketplace. Allctieequisition costs we
approximately $0.3 million and expensed as incurk¥é included the results of operations of thisuggition in our consolidate
financial statements from the effective date ofdbquisition. Goodwill associated with this acctisi is deductible for tax purpose

We allocated the purchase price for Level One Bavis:

Level One
(in thousands
Intangible asset:

Developed product technologi $ 692
Customer relationshiy 18,30(
Tradename 3,74(
Goodwill 36,897
Deferred revenu (352
Net other asse 2,57
Total purchase price, net of cash acqu $ 61,85(

In July 2010, we purchased 100% of the outstanditagk of eReal Estate Integration, Inc. (“eREfdy approximatel
$8.6 million, net of cash acquired, which includedash payment of $3.8 million and an estimatett payment payable upon -
achievement of certain revenue targets (acquisititated contingent consideration) and the issuanet9,999 restricted comm
shares, which vest as certain revenue targetschievad as defined in the purchase agreement.eAathuisition date, we recorde
liability for the estimated fair value of the acsjtionrelated contingent consideration of $0.8 million.addition, we recorded t
fair value of the restricted common shares of $3ilBon. These fair values were based on managemestimate of the fair value
the cash and the restricted common shares usimghelglity weighted discounted cash flow model ba aichievement of cert:
revenue targets. The cash payment and the relaséicted common shares have a maximum value 8frfilllion and $4.4 millior
respectively.
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This acquisition was financed from proceeds fromrewmolving line of credit and cash flows from ogons. The acquisition
eREI improved our lead management and lead synmalicatpabilities. Acquired intangibles were recardg fair value based
assumptions made by us. The acquired developedigtréechnologies have a useful life of three yeam®rtized on a straiglie
basis. Acquired customer relationships have a udiééuof ten years which will be amortized progortately to the expect
discounted cash flows derived from the asset. Tdmehames acquired have an indefinite useful ifev@ do not plan to cease us
the tradenames in the marketplace. All direct aitjon costs were approximately $0.1 million andexsed as incurred. \
included the results of operations of this acquigitn our consolidated financial statements frdm éffective date of the acquisiti
Gooduwill associated with this transaction is nadwigtible for tax purposes.

We allocated the purchase price for eREI as follows

eREIl
(in thousands’
Intangible asset:

Developed product technologi $ 5,27¢
Customer relationshiy 49¢
Tradename 844
Goodwill 4,664
Net other asse (2,662
Total purchase price, net of cash acqu $ 8,628

The liability established for the acquisition-reldtcontingent consideration will continue to beev@duated and recorded at
estimated fair value based on the probabilitiegieisrmined by management, of achieving the rela@egbts. This evaluation will
performed until all of the targets have been meteoms of the agreement expire. As of Decembe2B10, our liability for th
estimated cash payment was $1.0 million. During02@ie recognized costs of $8,000 due to changéseirestimated fair value
the cash acquisition-related contingent considenati

In February 2010, we acquired the assets of Domlinterprise Solutions, Inc. (“Domin-8"The acquisition of these ass
improved our ability to serve our multi-family afies with mixed portfolios that include smaller, traly-managed apartme
communities. The aggregate purchase price at gasas $12.9 million, net of cash acquired, whiclswaid upon acquisition of t
assets. We acquired deferred revenue as a coratiigation, which was recorded at its assesagd/élue of $4.5 million. The fe
value of the deferred revenue was determined basesktimated costs to support acquired contracts plreasonable margin. ~
acquired intangibles were recorded at fair valugedaon assumptions made by us. The customer redhts have useful lives
approximately six years and are amortized in prijgorto the estimated cash flows derived from tke&ationship. Acquire
developed product technologies have a useful fitree years and are amortized straigte-over the estimated useful life. We h
determined that the tradename has an indefinieg 6 we anticipate keeping the tradename for dheséeable future given
recognition in the marketplace. Approximately $tiflion and $0.7 million of transaction costs reldtto this acquisition we
expensed as incurred during 2010 and 2009, respbctiWe included the operating results of thisuasition in our consolidate
results of operations from the effective date @& #tquisition. This acquisition was financed frdm proceeds from the amen
credit facility (See Note 6) and cash flow from ogg@ns.

We made this acquisition because of the immediedéadoility of product offerings that complementedr existing product
We accounted for this acquisition by allocating tb&al consideration to the fair value of assetereed and liabilities assum
Gooduwill associated with this acquisition is dedhletfor tax purposes.

We allocated the purchase price for Domin-8 a®vedl
Domin-8

(in thousands
Intangible asset:

Developed product technologi $ 3,67¢
Customer relationshiy 6,41¢
Tradename 1,27¢
Goodwill 4,89¢
Deferred revenu (4,502
Net other asse 1,15¢
Total purchase price, net of cash acqu $ 12,92:
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2009 Acquisitions

In September 2009, we purchased substantiallyfate assets of Evergreen Solutions, Inc. (“Evergfe The acquisition ¢
Evergreen further advanced our ability to offermpecess to our products for clients and certifiadners, and improves our abi
to offer integration of our products and servicathwhird-party solutions. The aggregate purchase priceoatng was $0.9 milliol
which included a cash payment of $0.7 million ahd fair value of contingent consideration of $0iliom, which was paid i
March 2010 and is based on the collection of gmguisition accounts receivable balances from cwsts. The $0.2 million
recorded within the current portion of acquisiticglated liabilities on the balance sheet at Decer@ibe 2009. The custon
relationships have useful lives of four years aredaanortized in proportion to the estimated castvsl derived from the relationsh
We have determined that the tradename has an mitgelife, as we anticipate keeping the tradenaongHe foreseeable future gi
its recognition in the marketplace. All direct aiition costs were immaterial and expensed as irduMWe included the operati
results of this acquisition in our consolidatedutssof operations from the effective date of tkquasition.

In September 2009, we purchased 100% of the oulisigrstock of A.L. Wizard, Inc. (“ALW").The acquisition of ALV
immediately provided us with an application of amthnd software and services for residential prgpaenagement customers v
manage senior living properties. The aggregatehase price at closing was $2.8 million, net of castjuired of $0.2 million, whic
included a cash payment of $2.5 million upon adtjais and additional cash payments of $0.5 millibalf of which is due on tl
first anniversary of the acquisition date and wasdpn September 2010, with the remaining amourg @8 months from tt
acquisition date and is included in acquisition related liabilities at December 31, 2010. We acgflideferred revenue a:
contractual obligation, which was recorded at #sessed fair value of $0.5 million. The fair valuas determined by incorporati
the total cost to service the revenue and a nopmodit margin for the industry. The customer redaghips have useful lives of se’
years and are amortized in proportion to the eséichaash flows derived from the relationship. Acedi developed prodt
technologies have a useful life of three years amedamortized straighine over the estimated useful life. We have deteedh tha
the tradename has an indefinite life, as we ardteifkeeping the tradename for the foreseeableefigiven its recognition in tl
marketplace. All direct acquisition costs were inen@l and expensed as incurred. We included therating results of th
acquisition in our consolidated results from thieetive date of the acquisition.

In November 2009, we purchased 100% of the outsignstock of Propertyware, Inc. (“PropertywareThe acquisition ¢
Propertyware provided an entry into the single-fgrand small, centrally managed mutimily property markets. The acquisit
also expanded the breadth of products Propertywméliemake available to its residential property ragement customers. 1
aggregate purchase price at closing was $11.%mijllnet of cash acquired, which included a cashmgay of $9.0 million an
additional cash payments of $0.5 million payabletton first anniversary of the acquisition date &b million payable 18 mont
after the acquisition date. The $1.0 million wasoreled in acquisitiomelated liabilities on the balance sheet, of wiéhs millior
was distributed during 2010. In addition, the pasdn price included the issuance of 500,000 restiicommon shares which ves
certain revenue targets are achieved as definggtipurchase agreement. The fair value of theseslaestimated to be $2.2 mill
and is based on our managemerdstimate of the fair value of the stock and thabability of the achievement of these reve
targets. These shares have a maximum value ofn§ilidn. We acquired deferred revenue as a coniedabbligation, which we
recorded at its assessed fair value of $0.5 millidre acquired intangibles were recorded at fduesbased on assumptions mad
us. The customer relationships have useful livegofyears and are amortized in proportion to gienated cash flows derived fre
the relationship. Acquired developed product tettgies have a useful life of three years and arertized straightine over th
estimated useful life. We have determined thattthdename has an indefinite life, as we anticipateping the tradename for
foreseeable future given its recognition in the kagglace. All direct acquisition costs were immgtleand expensed as incurred.
included the operating results of this acquisifioour consolidated results of operations fromeffective date of the acquisition.

We made each of these acquisitions because ofrtimediate availability of product offerings that quemented our existir
products. We accounted for the Evergreen, ALW amg&tyware acquisitions by allocating the totatsideration, including the f
value of contingent consideration to the fair vahiiessets received and liabilities assumed. Gdbdesociated with the Evergre
acquisition is deductible for tax purposes; howevbke goodwill associated with the ALW and Propesdye acquisitions is n
deductible for tax purposes.
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We allocated the purchase prices for Evergreen, Adid Propertyware as follows:

Evergreen ALW Propertyware
(in thousands)

Intangible asset:

Developed product technologi $ — $ 1,192 $ 7,421
Customer relationshiy 154 964 1,05(C
Tradename 34 373 1,08(
Goodwill 47C 1,281 6,14¢
Deferred revenu — (58%) (457)
Deferred tax (liability) — (869) (3,40%)
Net other asse 227 41F 78
Total purchase price, net of cash acqu $ 88t $ 2,78: $ 11,92:

2008 Acquisitions

In January 2008, we entered into an asset purdgsement with WebRoomz, LLC (“WebRoomtd)acquire technology f
an on demand leasing system for the student andtizéd military housing markets. WebRoomz is a \vabed portal that alloy
tenants to match roommates and manages the edgand process using a document management syBtenaggregate purchz
price was $1.2 million, which included the paymehtash and acquisition related costs of $0.1 amlliwe included the operati
results in our consolidated results of operatisomfthe effective date of the acquisition.

In October 2008, we completed an acquisition obélihe issued and outstanding stock of OpsTeclyyolmc. (“Ops”). Ops
offers three on demand products designed to impedfieiencies and reduce costs for miétmily companies. The aggreg
purchase price at closing, net of acquired casbk,$24.6 million, which included a cash payment20.8 million, acquisitiorrelatec
costs of $0.3 million and an additional cash payneéi$2.7 million, which was paid on the first anaisary of the acquisition date.
addition, certain former owners of Ops earned 3&3shares of our common stock by achieving ceraipnue targets in 2009. T
increased the overall consideration by $1.7 millidhe fair value of this contingent consideratioaswnot included within tot
consideration at the acquisition date. This paymext recorded as additional goodwill.

We made both of these acquisitions because ofntingediate availability of product offerings that qoemented our existir
products. We accounted for the WebRoomz and Opgigitigns using the purchase method of accounBapdwill associated wi
the WebRoomz acquisition is deductible for tax pggs; however, the goodwill associated with the &jgiisition is not deductit
for tax purposes.

We allocated the purchase prices for WebRoomz greded follows:

WebRoomz Ops
(in thousands)

Intangible asset:

Developed product technologi $ 22¢ $ 2,45
Customer relationshiy — 4,88¢
Vendor relationship — 5,65(
Tradename — 1,84(
Goodwill 952 7,25:
Deferred revenu — (619)
Deferred tax liability (644)
Net other assets (liabilitie — 80¢
Total purchase price, net of cash acqu $ 1,181 $ 21,63(

Acquisition-Related Liabilities from Pre-2008 Acsjtion

In connection with a 2002 acquisition, a liabilitsas recorded for a $6.0 million eaont payable to the seller, as payment
considered probable. At December 31, 2010 and 2889%wed $2.0 million and $2.5 million, respectiyeih remaining earmui
fees relating to this acquisition, of which $1.4lion and $2.0 million are included in other lotgym liabilities on the consolidat
balance sheets at December 31, 2010 and 2009¢ctaghe
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Pro Forma Results of Acquisitions

The following table presents unaudited pro formsuls of operations for 2010, 2009 and 2008 aséf aforementione
acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of epehod presented. We prepared the pro forma fimhrioformation for th
combined entities for comparative purposes onlg, iairs not indicative of what actual results wotlave been if the acquisitions |
taken place at the beginning of the periods presemir of future results.

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Pro Forma Pro Forma Pro Forma
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
Revenue
On deman $ 191,21¢ $ 157,48 $ 125,73
On premise 9,29¢ 13,03t 16,67:
Professional and oth 10,07¢ 12,08( 15,04:
Total revenue 210,59( 182,59¢ 157,44
Net (loss) incomi 3,51¢ 33,24 (12,049
Net (loss) income attributable to common stockhidt
Basic and dilute 57C 15,42¢ (19,499
Net (loss) income per share attributable to comstonkholders
Basic $ 0.01 $ 0.64 $ (0.70)
Diluted $ 0.01 $ 0.6C $ (0.70)

The acquisitions in 2010, 2009 and 2008 were firdnaith cash flows from operations and financintvéees.
4. Property, Equipment and Software
Property, equipment and software consist of thieohg:

December 31

2010 2009
(in thousands)
Leasehold improvemen $ 8,77z $ 6,03¢
Data processing and communications equipr 31,71 26,96¢
Furniture, fixtures, and other equipmi 8,012 6,251
Software 26,61" 21,80°
75,11 61,06¢
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza (50,59¢) (40,317
Property, equipment and software, $ 24,51t $ 20,74¢

Depreciation and amortization expense for propertgipment and software was $11.5 million, $10.Bioni and $9.2 milliol
for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 an8, 288pectively. This includes depreciation foreéspurchased through cap
leases.

5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill isa®ws:

(in thousands
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 17,84¢
Contingent consideratic 1,67¢
Goodwill acquirec 7,83¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 27,36¢
Goodwill acquirec 46,45
Other 62
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 73,88¢
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Other intangible assets consisted of the follovah®ecember 31, 2010 and 2009:

December 31, 201I December 31, 200!
Amortization Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Period Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net

(in thousands)
Finite-lived intangible asse’

Developed technologie 3yearr $ 21,08 $ (7,61¢) $13,46¢ $ 11,42 $ (1,87() $ 9,557

Customer relationshiy 1-10 year 34,92: (6,932 27,99: 9,701 (4,30])) 5,40¢

Vendor relationship 7 year: 5,65( (2,480 3,17( 5,65( (1,500  4,15(

Option to purchase buildir 1yea 131 (22 10¢ — — —

Non-competition agreeme! 4-5 year: 12C (112) 8 12C (83) 37
Total finite-lived intangible asse 61,90¢ (17,164 44,74 26,89¢ (7,759 19,14«
Indefinite-lived intangible asse

Tradename 9,61¢ — 9,61¢ 3,74 — 3,74
Total intangible asse $ 7152t $ (17,164 $54,36. $ 30,64 $ (7,754 $22,89:

There was no impairment of goodwill or trade naindgcated during 2010 or 2009.

Amortization of finitelived intangible assets was $9.4 million, $4.5 ioilland $1.8 million for the years ended Decemlig
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

As of December 31, 2010, the following table seuthf the estimated amortization of intangible as$et the years endil
December 31:

(in thousands
2011 $ 14,32:
2012 12,47¢
2013 7,03:
2014 4,51¢
2015 2,87¢

6. Debt

The following table summarizes the components ot ds of:

December 31,

2010 2009
(in thousands)
Term loan $ 66,03¢ $ 33,68¢
Promissory notes issued to preferred stockhol — 8,17:
Secured promissory not — 10,00(

$ 66,03¢ $ 51,86

Term Loan

In September 2009, we entered into a Credit Agreenfé&Credit Agreement”)with two lenders, which provided for
$35.0 million term loan and a $10.0 million revalgiline of credit. A portion of the proceeds frone tCredit Agreement was use!
repay the balance outstanding under our prior tegfieement. The term loan and revolving line eflidrbear interest at rates of
greater of 7.5%, a stated rate of 5.0% plus LIBOR: stated rate of 5.0% plus the bangrime rate (or, if greater than 3.5%,
federal funds rate plus 0.5% or three month LIBOW#S 1.0%). The term loan and revolving line of dr&dere collateralized by all
our personal property and are subject to finarmaknants, including meeting certain financial niees.

In February 2010, we entered into an amendmeritecCredit Agreement. Under the terms of the amentrtiee original terr
loan was increased by an additional $10.0 millibine related interest rates and maturity periodsaneet consistent with the ter
of Credit Agreement.

In June 2010, we entered into a subsequent amendm#re Credit Agreement. Under the terms of tineeJ2010 amendme
an additional $30 million in delayed draw term Isamas made available for borrowing until Decemir2D11. After the June 20
amendment, the term loan and revolving line of iteelar interest at a stated rate of 3.5% plus LRBOr a stated rate of 0.75% [
Wells Fargos prime rate (or, if greater, the federal funde paius 0.5% or three month LIBOR plus 1.0%). Unither terms of th
June 2010 amendment, principal payments on the keam will be paid in quarterly installments equal3.75% of the princip
amount of term loans, with the balance of all tésams and the revolver due on June 30, 2014. la dud July 2010, we borrowe
total of $7.6 million from our revolving line of edit in order to partially facilitate an acquisitidJsing the proceeds from our ini
public offering, we repaid the outstanding balaatthe revolver loan
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In August 2010, the lenders under our Credit Agrerginconsented to our using proceeds from our imptidlic offering to repa
the Notes and the Stockholder Notes (each as defiebow) and to pay cash dividends due upon comrersf our redeemak
convertible preferred stock.

In September 2010, we entered into an amendmehetGredit Agreement. Under the terms of the Sepéer@010 amendme
the repayment of the Notes and Stockholder Notestlam payment of the cash dividends due upon csioreinf our redeemat
convertible preferred stock were excluded fromdagnition of “fixed charges” under the Credit Agraent.

In November 2010, we increased our term loan byadditional $30.0 million by exercising the delaydchw provisiol
established in June 2010. The related interess eatd maturity periods remained consistent withtehes of Credit Agreement.

As of December 31, 2010, we have $10.0 million lakdéé under our revolving line of credit. Debt iasge costs incurred
connection with the Credit Agreement are defermed @nortized over the remaining term of the arramg@. We have unamortiz
debt issuance costs of $1.8 million and $1.3 il December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.fAcember 31, 2010, we wi
in compliance with our debt covenants.

In February 2011, we entered into an amendmertieadCredit Agreement. See Note 15 for further infation relating to thi
subsequent event.

Promissory Notes Issued to Preferred Stockholders

On December 30, 2008 and April 23, 2010, in corinaclvith a declaration of payment of dividends thad accrued on ¢
redeemable convertible preferred stock, we issuedhigsory notes to the holders of our redeemablesexdible preferred sto
(“Stockholder Notes”)n an aggregate principal amount of $11.1 milliovd &0.4 million, respectively. The Stockholder Nob®re
an interest at a rate of 8% and were payable icob8ecutive quarterly payments of principal andrieét. Upon closing of our init
public offering, we repaid the $6.5 million balarae our Stockholder Notes with the proceeds fromimitial public offering.

Secured Promissory Notes
In August 2008, we entered into a note purchaseesgent with a separate lender. Under the termisecAgreement, we isst
secured promissory notes (“Notegi)the amount of $10.0 million with an interesteraff 13.75%, payable quarterly. The Notes \
collateralized by all of our personal property amd subordinated to the Credit Agreement. In Aug040, with the proceeds frc
our initial public offering, we repaid the $10.0lloin balance on the Notes.

As of December 31, 2010, principal payments areiddiee five years ending December 31 as follows:

(in thousands

Year ending December 3
2011 $ 10,78:
2012 10,78:
2013 10,78:
2014 33,69¢

2015 —
7. Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

Prior to conversion, each holder of preferred stgekerally voted with our common stock and wastlentito the number
votes equal to the number of shares of common stdokvhich the preferred stock could be converteath share of preferred st
was convertible at the option of thwlder at the liquidation preference, as definetbwe divided by the original issue prir
Conversion was mandatory upon written consent fiinzitive vote at a meeting of the holders of aornigy of the then outstandii
shares of Series A Preferred, or, with such coneétiihe holders of the Series A Preferred, immetijaprior to the closing of
qualified initial public offering (IPO), as defindd our certificate of incorporation. The holderks Series A Preferred, Series
Preferred and Series B Preferred were entitle@deive cumulative cash dividends at the rate ofpg@¥annum of the original iss
price if and when declared out of funds legallyitalde by the board of directors. To the extentlaer, the dividends were paya
quarterly. Upon conversion, the holders may hasge alected to convert an amount equal to 62.5%l ¢hien accrued and unpi
dividends into common stock at the applicable cosive rate. The holders of Series C Preferred wetiled to receive cumulati
cash dividends at the rate of 8% per annum of tiginal issue price if and when declared by therbaat directors, for the fir
18 months after issuance and were entitled to nontative dividends thereafter. Dividends on Se@eBreferred shares were no
be paid until dividends have been declared and fgaitlders of the Series A Preferred, Series AdfdPred and Series B Prefert
On December 31, 2008, dividends of $27.9 milliorrevéeclared by the board of directors. These diddevere distributed throu
the issuance of 8,147,441 common shares and sabtedinotes of $11.1 million. On December 31, 2@d8dends of $5.5 millio
were declared by the board of directors. Theseddivds were distributed through the issuance of8l66D common shares ¢
payment of $2.5 million in cash. On April 23, 201diyidends of $1.2 million were declared by the fdobaf directors. The:
dividends were distributed through the issuanc&@,632 common shares and subordinated notes 4#hdidion.
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Upon any liquidation, dissolution, or winding up thie Company, the holders of the Series A Prefersedies A1 Preferre
Series B Preferred and Series C Preferred werdeghto receive the original issue price plus altraed and unpaid divider
(Liquidation Preference). The holders of the Sefidareferred, Series B Preferred and Series C Peefavere entitled to receive
full Liquidation Preference prior to any distribori to the holders of the Series Al Preferred. Umpridation, after the holders of t
Series A Preferred, Series B Preferred, SeriesefefPed and Series Al Preferred were paid in fdl tiquidation Preference, ¢
remaining assets would be distributed ratably antbadiolders of the common stock then outstanditbthe holders of the Serie:
Preferred, Series Al Preferred and Series B Pezfean an asenverted basis, until the holders of such serfiggeferred stock ha
received an aggregate of three times the issue pgc share of each such series of preferred $Rakicipation Payment). After t
holders of the Series A Preferred, Series A1 Prefleand Series B Preferred would have receivedPtmicipation Payment, t
holders of such series of preferred stock would hrete had any further right as holders of prefestatk to participate in al
distributions of our remaining assets, which wauwde been distributed ratably solely to the holdéiommon stock.

The Series A Preferred, Series B Preferred andkeS€&iPreferred were redeemable at the option ofidkaers of the Series
Preferred beginning on December 31, 2011, if we f@tdcompleted a liquidation or qualified IPO. Upelection by the holders
the Series A Preferred to redeem the Series A Reeffethe holders of the Series B Preferred anieS$€r Preferred could he
elected to redeem such series of preferred stb¢kelholders of the Series A Preferred, Series@&dPred and Series C Prefer
elected to redeem, the redemption price would gdliyenrave been paid over four years. The Serie®reterred was redeemable
would have been paid over a fr#3nth period once the holders of the Series A Piedeand, if applicable, the Series B Preferrec
Series C Preferred had elected and been paidrideanption. The redemption price was the greatéhebriginal purchase price |
share plus all accrued dividends or the fair maviedtte per share as of the most recent fiscal guartded prior to the date that
initial redemption notice was sent to the Company.

8. Share-based Compensation

Our Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive (8amck Incentive Plan) and 2010 Equity IncentivarPprovides fc
awards which may be granted in the form of incenstock options, nonqualified stock options, retd stock, stock appreciat
rights and performance units. Our board of directond stockholders approved increases to the nuaiftsdrares of common stc
reserved for issuance under our 1998 Stock IncerRian in April 2010 and June 2010 and under tH ZBquity Incentive Ple
upon consummation of our initial public offering.

Stock Option Plan

Stock options generally vest ratably over four gefatiowing the date of grant and expire ten ydesm the date of the gra
We also grant awards to our directors, generalthéform of stock options, in accordance with Board of Directors Policy (Boa
Plan). The options generally vest immediately aadeha fouryear term. Should a director leave the board, wee lihe right t
repurchase shares as if the options vested on eatadasis. In 2009, we began issuing optionsuést over four years with 7&
vesting ratably over 15 quarters and the remai@ifp vesting on the 16th quarter. All outstandingas were granted at exerc
prices equal to or exceeding our estimate of thierfarket value of our common stock at the datgrant.

The following table summarizes stock option tratisas under our 2010 Equity Plan, Stock IncentilsanRand Board Plan:

Weighted

Range of Average

Number of Exercise Exercise

Shares Prices Price

Balance at December 31, 2C 5,011,922 $ 2.00- 5.5( $ 2.4z
Granted 1,987,00! 6.00- 7.0C 6.5¢
Exercisec (332,459 2.00- 7.0C 2.3
Forfeited/cancelle (431,909 2.00- 7.0C 3.4¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 6,234,56: 2.00- 7.0C 3.67
Granted 2,284,001 6.0C 6.0C
Exercisec (177,89) 2.00- 6.0C 3.0t
Forfeited/cancelle (411,949 2.00- 7.0C 4.1¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 7,928,72! 2.00- 7.0C 4.3¢
Granted 2,460,601 7.50-27.1¢ 10.6¢
Exercisec (778,74 2.0C- 9.0C 3.0¢
Forfeited/cancelle (479,089 2.0C-27.1¢ 6.21
Balance, December 31, 20 9,131,49. $ 2.0(-27.1¢ $ 6.0¢
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The weighted average gratiéte fair value of options granted during the yearded December 31, 2010, 2009 and 200¢
$5.19, $2.63 and $2.73, respectively. The aggrdg#iasic value of stock options exercised in flears ended December 31, 2(
2009 and 2008 was $22.9 million, $0.4 million ar@6smillion, respectively. The aggregate intrinsglue of outstanding sto
options was $227.2 million and $12.9 million as@cember 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The ggtgeintrinsic value «
options exercisable was $133.4 million and $12 ianias of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respegtivel

The following table summarizes outstanding stockoms that are vested and expected to vest,vasted, and stock optic
that are currently exercisable.

December 31, 201! December 31, 200!
Fully Vested Fully Vested
and and
Expected to Expected to
Vest Non-Vestec Exercisable Vest Non-Vestec Exercisable
Number of shares outstandi 8,744,85. 4,211,06! 4,920,42! 7,647,13 3,577,91! 4,350,80:
Weighted average remaining
contractual life 7.0E 8.8C 5.7C 7.2C 9.0z 5.8¢
Weighted average price per sh $ 59C % 8.6 $ 382 % 42¢ $ 58¢ $ 3.04

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the total fuaar@pensation cost related to neested stock options to be recognize
the consolidated statement of operations was $hlibn and $6.9 million, respectively, with a whigd average period over wh
these awards are expected to be recognized of2rk and 2.4 years, respectively.

The total number of stock options that vested duthe year ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 waé1#58and 1,490,06
respectively. The fair value of these options whis.6 million and $5.9 million, respectively.

Stock Option Valuation Assumptions

We have utilized the Black-Scholes option pricingdal as the appropriate model for determining gievalue of stocksase!
awards. The awards granted were valued using tleeving assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 1.5-5.1%
Expected option life (in year: 6

Dividend yield 0%
Expected volatility 49-60%

Risk-free interest ratélhis is the average U.S. Treasury rate (havingra that most closely approximates the expectedof
the option) for the period in which the option vgmanted.

Expected life of the optionghis is the period of time that the options grardesl expected to remain outstanding.

Dividend yield.We have never declared or paid dividends on oumeomstock and do not anticipate paying dividendthé
foreseeable future.

Expected volatility Volatility is a measure of the amount by which maficial variable such as a share price has flust

(historical volatility) or is expected to fluctuatexpected volatility) during a period. We arrivata volatility rate after consideri
historical and expected volatility rates of publitladed peers.
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Restricted Stock Awards

Restricted stock is an award that entitles the drold receive shares of our common stock as thedawests. The fair value
each restricted stock award is based on the clqgwicg on the date of grant. Our tirhased restricted stock awards generally
ratably over four years following the date of grand expire ten years from the date of the graotmg@nsation expense for time-
based restricted stock awards is recognized oeevéisting period on a straiglite basis. We have also granted certain emplc
performancebased restricted stock awards. These shares veshdient upon attainment of various levels of perforce that equ
or exceed targeted levels and generally vest iin &mtirety two years from the date of grant. Comgagion expense for performance-
based restricted stock awards is recognized baséukegrobability of achievement of the performaaecrdition. As of December &
2010, there was $14.0 million of unrecognized camspéon cost related to both time-based restristeck awards and performance-
based restricted stock awards. That cost is expéctee recognized over a weighted-average pefiddsoyears.

A summary of time-based restricted share awardsligcis presented in the table below.

Weighted
Number of Average
Shares Price
Balance at December 31, 2C — $ —
Granted 100,00( 5.04
Vested — —
Forfeited/cancelle — —
Balance at December 31, 2C 100,00( 5.04
Granted 274,13: 19.21
Vested (51,33)) 5.1C
Forfeited/cancelle (1,100 27.1¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 321,70( $ 20.5¢
A summary of performance-based restricted sharedsiactivity is presented in the table below.
Weighted
Number of Average
Shares Price

Balance at December 31, 2C — $ —
Granted 161,17 5.04
Vested — —
Forfeited/cancelle — —
Balance at December 31, 2C 161,17 5.04
Granted 564,00( 27.1¢
Vested — —
Forfeited/cancelle: (3,146 5.04
Balance at December 31, 2C 722,02 $ 22.3¢

The aggregate intrinsic value of time-based anfbpaancebased restricted stock awards was $10.0 million$&2®i3 millior
as of December 31, 2010, respectively.

Stock Purchase Warrants

In July 2007, we issued onear fully exercisable warrants to purchase 7548l@res of common stock at $3.50 per shar¢
customer. The estimated fair value of the warrargs $47,000. The value of the warrants was recoaded discount to unearr
revenue and was amortized into revenue over thegerf expected benefit with an order signed at tirae. In June 2008, tl
warrants were exercised.

In connection with the issuance of the Series AdPred, we issued to current and prior stockholdgosk purchase warra
representing the right to purchase an aggrega#e53®,000 shares of our common stock, at an exepise of $0.002 per sha
These warrants contained a wath settlement provision and accordingly were rommb as a liability; however, due to vari
measures determining exercisability and vesting,fdir value of this liability was nominal. In Fefary 2008, these warrants w
amended to be fully vested at the time of the issaaf the Series C Preferred. In 2008, stockhsldgercised warrants to purch
4,553,000 shares of common stock, and the rema8r@00 warrants expired.
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We issued a fivgrear warrant to purchase 225,000 shares of comrmmk &t $0.02 per share in connection with a .
acquisition. As of December 31, 2008 and 2009, @D and zero shares, respectively, remained odlisgin connection with th
warrant.

We issued a fivgrear warrant to purchase 25,000 and 12,500 shaesronon stock at $2.00 per share in connectioh 200«
and 2005 amendments to our prior credit facilityMay 2009, the warrant to purchase 25,000 shaassantomatically net exercis
for 15,808 shares of common stock. As of DecemheB09, we had 12,500 warrants outstanding. Inch2010, the warrant
purchase 12,500 shares was automatically net egerdor 8,790 shares of common stock. As of Dece®be2010, we have |
warrants outstanding.

9. Commitments and Contingencies
Lease Commitments

We lease office space and equipment under capithbperating leases that expire at various timexitth 2016. We recogni
lease expense for these leases on a straightdsis bver the lease terms.

The assets under capital lease are as follows:

December 31

2010 2009
(in thousands)
Data processing and communications equipr $ 5,66¢ $ 5,67¢
Software 5,90 5,908
11,56¢ 11,58:
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza (9,610 (6,417
Assets under capital lease, $ 1,95¢ $ 5,171

Aggregate annual rental commitments at DecembeRB10, under operating leases with initial or rarraj noneancelabl
lease terms greater than one year and capitalsleases follows:

Operating
Capital Lease! Leases
(in thousands)

2011 $ 53¢ % 5,771
2012 65 5,071
2013 — 4,83¢
2014 — 4,70¢
2015 — 4,64:
Thereafte — 2,67¢
Total Minimum lease paymen $ 604 $ 27,71
Less amount representing average interest at (14)

59C
Less current portio (525
Long-term portion $ 65

Rent expense was $6.5 million, $5.1 million and53$4illion for the years ended December 31, 2010092@nd 200t
respectively.

Guarantor Arrangements

We have agreements whereby we indemnify our offi@erd directors for certain events or occurrenceievthe officer o
director is or was serving at our request in suapacity. The term of the indemnification periodfas the officer or directog
lifetime. The maximum potential amount of futureypeents we could be required to make under thesanindication agreements
unlimited; however, we have a director and officesurance policy that limits our exposure and eesbls to recover a portion of ¢
future amounts paid. As a result of our insuranobcp coverage, we believe the estimated fair vadfighese indemnificatic
agreements is minimal. Accordingly, we had no liibs recorded for these agreements as of DeceBhe2010 or 2009.
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In the ordinary course of our business, we entier standard indemnification provisions in our agneats with our custome
Pursuant to these provisions, we indemnify ourarasts for losses suffered or incurred in conneatidh thirdparty claims that ol
products infringed upon any U.S. patent, copyrigtedemark or other intellectual property right. 8 applicable, we genere
limit such infringement indemnities to those claidisected solely to our products and not in comtiamawith other software
products. With respect to our products, we alsoegly reserve the right to resolve such claimsdegigning a nomrfringing
alternative, by obtaining a license on reasonabteng, or by terminating our relationship with thestomer and refunding t
customer’s fees.

The potential amount of future payments to defewaslits or settle indemnified claims under theskeinnification provisior
is unlimited in certain agreements; however, wdelel the estimated fair value of these indemnityvigions is minimal, an
accordingly, we had no liabilities recorded forsgbegreements as of December 31, 2010 or 2009.

Litigation

From time to time, in the normal course of our bhass, we are a party to litigation matters andndailLitigation can k
expensive and disruptive to normal business omerstiMoreover, the results of complex legal progegsiare difficult to predict ai
our view of these matters may change in the fuagdhe litigation and events related thereto unfoleg expense legal fees
incurred. We record a provision for contingent &sss/hen it is both probable that a liability hasmécurred and the amount of
loss can be reasonably estimated. An unfavorableome in any legal matter, if material, could hare adverse effect on ¢
operations, financial position, liquidity and reisubf operations.

On January 24, 2011, Yardi Systems, Inc. filedveslat in the U.S. District Court for the Centralsict of California again
RealPage, Inc. and DC Consulting, Inc. This cass &n early stage and we are in the process dfzing the case and preparin
response.

We are involved in other litigation matters notdid above but we do not consider the matters tmditerial either individuall
or in the aggregate at this time. Our view of thettars not listed may change in the future asitlgation and events related thet
unfold.

10. Funds Held for Others

In connection with our payment processing serviees collect tenant funds and subsequently remigehenant funds to ¢
customers after varying holding periods. These $urde settled through our Originating DepositorynaRcial Institutiol
(ODFI) custodial account at a major bank. As péarthe processing, we earn interest from the tile money is collected from t
tenants until the time of remittance to our custshaccounts. This interest generated from the ODHFlocdlisl account balances
included in revenue and was $0.0 million, $0.0ianiland $0.1 million for the years ended DecemierZ)10, 2009 and 20(
respectively.

The ODFI custodial account balances were $14.5anikhnd $13.0 million at December 31, 2010 and 2089pectively. Tt
ODFI custodial account balances are included inammsolidated balance sheets as restricted caghcdiesponding liability fc
these custodial balances is reflected as custoepsits. In connection with the timing of our paymprocessing services, we
exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperforogahy other parties, such as returned checks. Weeutredit analysis and ot
controls to manage the credit risk exposure. Weshot experienced any credit losses to date. Apgard losses are includec
our accounts receivable allowances on our congelitlaalance sheet.

In January 2007, we established a wholly ownedididry, RealPage Payment Processing Services(RRPS), a bankruptcy-
remote, specigburpose entity, and transferred the ODFI custoddmiounts and all ACH transaction processing respitities to
RPPS. We provide processing and administrativa@sto RPPS through a services agreement.

The obligations of RPPS under the ODFI custodiabant agreement are guaranteed by us.

In connection with our resident insurance produets, collect premiums from policy holders and subsadly remit th
premium, net of our commission, to the underwrit#¥e maintain separate accounts for these transactiwe had $0.9 million a
$1.9 million in restricted cash for the periods emdecember 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, ar@irllion and $2.2 million i
customer deposits related to these insurance pi®ércperiods ended December 31, 2010 and 208pectively.

11. Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Net income (loss) per share is presented in corifpnrith the two€lass method required for participating securitiéslders o
Series A Preferred, Series A1 Preferred, Series&eRed and Series C Preferred are each entitdeteteive 8% per annt
cumulative dividends, payable prior and in prefeeetmo any dividends on any other shares of ourtalapiock. In the event
dividend is paid on common stock, holders of Seii¢xreferred, Series Al Preferred, Series B Prefer$eries C Preferred and non-
vested restricted stock are entitled to a propoate share of any such dividend as if they werddrslof common shares (on anifas-
converted basis). Holders of Series A PreferredeS®@L1 Preferred, Series B Preferred, Series @eResl and nornvested restricte
stock do not share in loss of the Compe
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Under the twaelass method, basic net income per share attriteutabcommon stockholders is computed by dividing he
income attributable to common stockholders by tleégited average number of common shares outstanidingg the period. N
income attributable to common stockholders is deiteed by allocating undistributed earnings, caladaas net income less curi
period Series A Preferred, Series Al PreferredeS& Preferred and Series C Preferred cumulaividahds, between the hold
of common stock and Series A Preferred, SeriesieRed, Series B Preferred and Series C Prefeiigted net income per shi
attributable to common stockholders is computedusing the weighted average number of common staressanding, includir
potential dilutive shares of common stock assuntivegdilutive effect of outstanding stock optionsngsthe treasury stock meth
Weighted average shares from common share equigatethe amount of 2,683,398 shares and 388,2d8:stwere excluded frc
the dilutive shares outstanding because their ieffas anti-dilutive for the years ended December2B10 and 2008, respectively.

The following table presents the calculation ofibasid diluted net income per share attributableotmmon stockholders:

Year Ended December 31
2010 2009 2008
(in thousands, except per share amount:

Numerator:
Net (loss) incom $ 67 $ 28,42¢ $ (3,209)
8% cumulative dividends on participating preferstack (2,949 (5,52)) (7,449
Undistributed earnings allocated to participatingferred and restricted
stock — (12,297 —
Net (loss) income attributable to common stockhide basic and
diluted $ 2,87) $ 10,61: $ (10,659
Denominator
Basic:
Weighted average common shares used in computsig bet income
(loss) per shar 39,731 23,93¢ 13,88¢
Diluted:
Weighted average common shares used in computsig bat income
(loss) per shar 39,731 23,93« 13,88¢
Add weighted average effect of dilutive securit
Stock options — 1,531 —
Stock warrant: — 46 —
Weighted average common shares used in computimgdinet income
(loss) per shar 39,731 25,51 13,88¢
Net (loss) income per common she
Basic $ 0.0y % 0.4¢ $ (0.77)
Diluted $ 0.0) % 0.4z $ (0.77)

12. Related Party Transactions

We purchased transportation services of approxi;n&®@ $44,000 and $34,000 for the years ended mbee 31, 2010, 20(
and 2008 from a significant stockholder and compaontrolled by our Chief Executive Officer.

In connection with the residential relocation ofoof our executives, in June 2010, we paid appratéig $0.9 million to a
independent thirgbarty relocation company to cover payment of eqpigceeds to the executive and costs associatbdhwveitketing
and selling the executive’s residence. This arraregg was entered into pursuant to the standard fsaeeassistance terms utili:
by us in the ordinary course of business. In JOY® we paid an additional $1.2 million to the ipdedent thirdsarty relocatio
company to acquire the executigeresidence. At December 31, 2010, this assetcgrded at fair value based on third p
appraisals and this asset is currently held far aatl included in other current assets on the balaheet.

13. Income Taxes
The domestic and foreign components of income Ylbsfore provision for income taxes were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)
Domestic 11¢ 2,111 (2,47%)
Foreign 667 29C (32)
Total 78¢€ 2,401 (2,50¢)
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Our provision (bengfit) for income taxes consistéthe following components:

Year Ended December 31
2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)

Current:
Federal — — —
State $ 384 $ 231 $ 197
Foreign 40¢ 49 17
Total current taxe 78¢ 28C 214
Deferred:
Federal 263 (25,14°) 48¢
State (15) (1,167 —
Foreign (31¢) — —
Total deferred taxe (70) (26,309¢) 48¢
Total income tax provision (benef $ 71¢ $ (26,02 $ 703

The reconciliation of our income tax expense (biénedmputed at the U.S. federal statutory tax tat¢he actual income t
expense (benefit) is as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)

Expense derived by applying the Federal incomeatecto (loss) income

before taxe: $ 27t $ 837 $ (872)
State income tax, net of federal ben 20z 152 197
Foreign income ta (78) (50) 17
Change in valuation allowan: 2,345 (27,03¢) —
Benefits of assets not previously recogni (2,347 — —
Nondeductible expens: 337 16€ 18t
Losses not benefitte — — 567
Tax credits (87) — —
Changes in tax rate 33 — —
Other 37 (97 60¢

$ 71¢ $ (26,02 $ 703

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effectewhporary differences between the carrying amoohftthe assets a
liabilities for financial reporting purposes ana tamounts used for income tax purposes. Significanmtponents of our deferred
assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31,
2010 2009
(in thousands)

Deferred tax asset

Stocl-based compensatic $ 3,62¢ $ 692

Reserves and accrued liabiliti 7,33 7,53¢

Net operating loss carryforwar 24,68( 24,27(
Total gross deferred tax ass 35,64: 32,49¢
Deferred tax asset valuation allowat (6,870 (4,527
Deferred tax asse 28,77: 27,97
Deferred tax liabilities

Property, equipment, and softw: (3,47¢) (1,86¢)

Other (824) (476

Intangible asset (5,627) (4,719
Total deferred tax liabilitie (9,920 (7,05%)
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilitie $ 18,85: $ 20,91

In December 2010, we identified net deferred tesetsstotaling $2.3 million for which a deferred tsset was not previou
recorded. This increase in deferred tax assetngpdsed of a tax benefit of $2.2 million relatedrtet operating loss carryforwa
and tax credits acquired in prior years and $0lianirelated to property, equipment, softwareamdible assets and stobkse:
compensation. Due to the attributes of these d=dalx assets, including a limitation on the futuse of net operating losses, the
benefit of these deferred tax assets was offset$8.3 million tax expense to establish a valuagibowance
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Our management periodically evaluates the realipalof the deferred tax assets and, if it is detieied that it is more like
than not that the deferred tax assets are readizaldjusts the valuation allowance accordinglyDatember 2009, based on cur
year income, and our projections of future income,concluded it was more likely than not that dartef our deferred tax ass
would be realizable, and therefore the valuatidowance was reduced by $27.0 million.

The determination of the level of valuation allowarat December 31, 2010 is based on an estimateca&i of future taxak
income which includes many judgments and assumgti@ocordingly, it is at least reasonably possthkg future changes in one
more assumptions may lead to a change in judgnegarding the level of valuation allowance requiretliture periods.

Our largest deferred tax assets are our federalstate® net operating loss carryforwards of $8liomlland $1.7 millio
respectively. The federal net operating losses maljin to expire in 2020 and the state net opagdtieses will begin to expire
2011. Of the total net operating loss carryforwamsproximately $14.6 million is attributable toddetions originating from tt
exercise of non-qualified employee stock optiohs, ltenefit of which will be credited to paild-capital and deferred tax asset w
realized.

A cumulative change in ownership among materiatedi@lders, as defined in Section 382 of the IntedRevenue Code, duril
a threeyear period may limit utilization of the federaltruperating loss carryforwards. Based on availaiftamation, we believe w
are not currently subject the Section 382 limitatibowever certain net operating losses generagedubsidiaries prior to the
acquisition by the Company are subject to the 8e@B2 limitation. The limitation on these pequisition net operating Ic
carryforwards will fully expire in 2016.

Our current state tax expense of $0.4 million ispased of current tax expense in jurisdictions rehthe utilization of curre
net operating losses is temporarily suspended amefevtax is considered an income tax for financéglorting purposes but
assessed on adjusted gross revenue rather thateatpet income.

Our subsidiary in Hyderabad, India currently betsefiom a tax holiday granted under the Softwarehfelogy Parks of Ind
program. This holiday began upon commencement einbas operations in 2008 and is scheduled to exgirMarch 31, 201
During this holiday period we are required to papiaimum alternative tax which is available to redwur post holiday tax liabilit

No provision has been made for U.S federal an& stabme taxes on the undistributed earnings ofaqapately $0.9 milliol
relating to the our foreign subsidiaries as suaimings are expected to be reinvested and are amesidpermanent in duration
these earnings were ultimately distributed to th8.Un the form of dividends or otherwise, or ietehares of the subsidiaries w
sold or transferred, we would likely be subjecatlitional U.S. income taxes, net of the impadmof available foreign tax credits
is not practicable to estimate the additional inedaxes related to permanently reinvested earmmte subsidiaries.

Uncertain Tax Positions

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted a new acomyistandard relating to the accounting for undertax positions. W
recorded no additional tax liability as a resulttleé adoption of this standard and no adjustmenthd January 1, 2007 balanct
retained deficit, and therefore no accrued intemestpenalties recognized as of January 1, 200De&ember 31, 2010 and 2009,
had no unrecognized tax benefits. Our policy isntdude interest and penalties related to unreaeghtax benefits in income f
expense, and as of December 31, 2010 and 2008, weze no accrued interest and penalties.

We file consolidated and separate tax returns é UhS. federal jurisdiction, numerous state juddns and two foreic
jurisdictions. We are no longer subject to U.S.efadlincome tax examinations for years before 280 are no longer subject
state and local income tax examinations by tax aiitbs for years before 2006. However, net opeeaiosses from all yee
continue to be subject to examinations and adjustsnfer at least three years following the yeawhich the attributes are used.
are not currently under audit for federal, statamy foreign jurisdictions.
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14. Employee Benefit Plans

In 1998, our board of directors approved a defioedtribution plan that provides retirement benefitgler the provisions
Selection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. @f(k) Plan (“Plan”)covers substantially all employees who meet a mini
service requirement. Under the Plan, we can etechdke voluntary contributions. Contributions ofBillion, $0.4 million an
$0.3 million were made by us for the years endeceler 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

15. Subsequent Event

In February 2011, we entered into an amendmerttadCredit Agreement. Under the terms of the Felpr@@i1 amendmel
our revolving line of credit was increased from $lillion to $37.0 million. In addition, the intest rates on the term loan i
revolving line of credit were amended to providete that is dependent on our senior leverage aaiibwill range from a stated r
of 2.75% — 3.25% plus LIBOR or, at our option, atetl rate of 0.0% — 0.5% plus a base rate (Weligd=a prime rate or,
greater, the federal funds rate plus 0.5% or timeath LIBOR plus 1.0%). Principal payments on thart loan and outstandi
revolver balance remain consistent with the previmmendments.
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on &ounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) and Rule 15d-15(b) uttteiSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended“fExchange Act),
we carried out an evaluation, with the participatad our management, and under the supervisiouohief Executive Officer ar
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of alisclosure controls and procedures (as definelgiuRule 13a-15(e) and 13&(e’
under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the pesetred by this report. Based upon that evaluation Chief Executive Offici
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our thisare controls and procedures are effective i@mg that information require
to be disclosed in the reports that we file or sitlhmder the Exchange Act, is recorded, processemmarized and reported, wit
the time periods specified in the SECQules and forms, and that such information isiaedated and communicated to manager
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Rirtial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely idémns regarding requir
disclosure. Managemenst'assessment of the effectiveness of our disclosomérols and procedures is expressed at the I&f
reasonable assurance because management recatpizasy controls and procedures, no matter how designed and operat
can provide only reasonable assurance of achidkligig objectives.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Attestation Report of the Registered Accoutng
Firm

The SEC, as required by Section 404 of the Sarb@mésy Act, adopted rules requiring every comparst tles reports with tr
SEC to include a management report on such compamtgrnal control over financial reporting in #anual report. In addition, ¢
independent registered public accounting firm natstst to our internal control over financial refpay. This report on Form 1K-
does not include a report of managemeassessment regarding internal control over filahneporting or an attestation report of
independent registered public accounting firm doeattransition period established by SEC rules iepiple to newly publi
companies. Management will be required to provid@essessment of the effectiveness of our interaral over financial reportir
as of December 31, 2011. We believe we will haweqgadte resources and expertise, both internal xednal, in place to meet ti
requirement. However, there is no guarantee thatefforts will result in managemest’ability to conclude, or our independ
registered public accounting firm to attest, that imternal control over financial reporting is&dfive as of December 31, 2011.

Changes in Internal Controls

During the first quarter of 2010, we implementedeav corporate payroll processing software. The @mgntation resulted
modifications to internal controls over the rela@ttounting and operating processes for the pafwalition. We evaluated t
control environment as affected by the implemeatasind believe our controls remained effective.

Other than the changes mentioned above, there memgnificant changes in the Companynternal control over financ
reporting during the Twelve months ended Decemhe2810 that have materially affected, or are reably likely to materiall
affect, the Company’s internal control over finalceporting.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Controls

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure contrc
and procedures or our internal controls will prevath error and all fraud. A control system, no teathow well conceived al
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absoassurance that the objectives of the controlesysire met. Because of
inherent limitations in all control systems, no leadion of controls can provide absolute assuratheg all control issues a
instances of fraud, if any, within the company haeen detected. These inherent limitations inchheerealities that judgments
decisionmaking can be faulty, and that breakdowns can obegause of a simple error or mistake. Additionatigntrols can k
circumvented by the individual acts of some persbgscollusion of two or more people, or by managatroverride of the contr
The design of any system of controls also is bas@drt upon certain assumptions about the likelthof future events, and there
be no assurance that any design will succeed iieaol its stated goals under all potential futcoaditions. Over time, controls
become inadequate because of changes in conditorike degree of compliance with the policies mcpdures may deteriore
Because of the inherent limitations in a ceffective control system, misstatements due toresrofraud may occur and not
detected.
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.
PART llI
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace.

The information required by this item is incorp@ty reference to RealPagd?roxy Statement for its 2011 Annual Mee
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 14ys after the end of the fiscal year ended Deeefdb, 2010.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorp@cty reference to RealPagd?roxy Statement for its 2011 Annual Mee
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 1@4ys after the end of the fiscal year ended Deeei®b, 2010.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andvlanagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item is incorp@ty reference to RealPagd?roxy Statement for its 2011 Annual Mee
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 1@4ys after the end of the fiscal year ended Deeei®b, 2010.

Item 13. Certain Relationships, and Related Transactions, ahDirector Independence.

The information required by this item is incorp@cty reference to RealPagéd®roxy Statement for its 2011 Annual Mee
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 1@4ys after the end of the fiscal year ended Deeei®b, 2010.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorp@cty reference to RealPagd®roxy Statement for its 2011 Annual Mee
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 14ys after the end of the fiscal year ended Deeefdb, 2010.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Financial Statements
(1) The financial statements filed as part of this repee listed on the index to financial statememspage 47
(2) Any financial statement schedules required to leel fas part of this report are set forth in sec{@rbelow.
(b) Exhibits
See Exhibit Index at the end of this report, whghcorporated by reference.
(c) Financial Statement Schedules
The following schedule is filed as part of this Awh Report:

All other schedules have been omitted becausentbemation required to be presented in them isapglicable or is shown
the financial statements or related notes.

SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
REALPAGE, INC.
December 31, 2010
(in thousands)
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Additions

Balance at Charged to Additions Balance at

Beginning Costs and Due to End of
Description of Year Expenses Acquisitions Deduction(1) Year
Year ended December &
2008 $ 2,413 301 181 — 2,89t
2009 $ 2,89t 441 17t (1,289 2,22:
2010 $ 2,22 83¢€ 1,10¢ (2,79¢) 1,37(

(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoes.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused t
Annual Report on Form 1B-to be signed on its behalf by the undersigneelgthnto duly authorized, in the City of Carrollt@tate
of Texas, on this 28 day of February 2011.

REALPAGE, INC.

By: /s/ Stephen T. Winr
Stephen T. Winr
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Annual Report on FormKL®as been signed by f
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date

/sl Stephen T. Winn Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive February 28, 2011
- Officer, and Director (Principal Executive

Stephen T. Winn Officer)

/s/ Timothy J. Barkel Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer February 28, 201

Timothy J. Barke (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Alfred R. Berkeley Director February 28, 201

Alfred R. Berkeley, IlI

/sl Richard M. Berkeley Director February 28, 201

Richard M. Berkeley

/sl Peter Gyene Director February 28, 201

Peter Gyene

/sl Jeffrey T. Leed: Director February 28, 201

Jeffrey T. Leed:

/sl Jason A. Wrighi Director February 28, 201

Jason A. Wrigh
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number Description
2.1@) Asset Purchase Agreement among the Registrant,RRMNLLC, IAS Holdings, LLC, Level One, LLC, L1
Technology, LLC, L1 Land, LLC, L1 Holdings, Inc.p@id W. Baldree, Calvin D. Long, Il and Benjamin
Holbrook, dated November 3, 20
3.1@ Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiothe Registran
3.20 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Regist
414 Form of Common Stock certificate of the Regist
4.206) Shareholders’ Agreement among the Registrant antdicestockholders, dated December 1, 1998, as deten
July 16, 1999 and November 3, 2C
4.36) Second Amended and Restated Registration Rightsehgent among the Registrant and certain stockiglder
dated February 22, 20(
4.4Q) Registration Rights Agreement among the Regisaadtcertain stockholders, dated November 3, :
10.16) Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into kesw the Registrant and each of its directors aficeos
10.2+6) Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive
10.2A+06) Form of Notice of Stock Option Gra
10.2B+®) Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Sha
10.2C+0®) Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Second Set
10.2D+6) Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreeme
10.2E+®) Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant (May 20:
10.2F+©®) Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant (May 20— California)
10.2G+®) Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive Plare(d0h0)
10.2H+©) Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant (Accelerateesting)
10.3+0) Form of Directo’s Nonqualified Stock Option Agreeme
10.4+@ 2010 Equity Incentive Pla
10.4A+(@ Forms of Stock Option Award Agreements and Restili@tock Award Agreements approved for use undger th
2010 Equity Incentive Pla
10.5+0) Form of 2009 Management Incentive P
10.6+0) Form of 2010 Management Incentive P
10.6A(+® Form of 2010 Management Incentive Plan (as revidagd 2010)
10.7+0) Stanc-Alone Stock Option Agreement between the RegistadtPeter Gyenes, dated February 25, !
10.8+0) Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Second Series)en the Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive
Plan between the Registrant and Timothy J. BarkgedlOctober 27, 20(
10.9+0) Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Second Series)en the Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive
Plan between the Registrant and Timothy J. BarkgediFebruary 26, 20(
10.10+6) Notice of Stock Option Grant under the Amended Rrdtated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan between thesRagt
and Timothy J. Barker dated February 25, 2
10.11+6) Employment Agreement between the Registrant angh8teT. Winn, dated December 30, 2!
10.12+6) Employment Agreement between the Registrant anafhiyn]. Barker, dated October 31, 2(
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.13+0) Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Ragitsand Timothy J. Barker, dated January 1, &

10.14+6) Employment Agreement between the Registrant antdamilE. Van Valkenberg, dated September 24, 2

10.15+6) Master Agreement for Consulting Services betweerRegistrant and William E. Van Valkenberg, dateael28,
2009

10.16+6) Employment Agreement between the Registrant andefgbhaffin Glover, dated March 3, 20

10.17+0) Employment Agreement between Multifamily Internantures, LLC and Dirk D. Wakeham, dated April 1202
and amended April 12, 20(

10.186) Credit Agreement among the Registrant, Wells F&myathill, LLC and Comerica Bank dated, Septembe&089

10.196) Security Agreement among the Registrant, OpsTeclgyolnc., Multifamily Internet Ventures, LLC, Sfae
Media, Inc., RealPage India Holdings, Inc. and \&/Ekrgo Foothill, LLC, dated September 3, 2

10.200) General Continuing Guaranty among OpsTechnology, Multifamily Internet Ventures, LLC, Starfire M,
Inc., RealPage India Holdings, Inc. and Wells Fdkgothill, LLC, dated September 3, 2C

10.216) Waiver and First Amendment to Credit Agreement agnihie Registrant, Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC and Guita
Bank, dated September 16, 2(

10.226) General Continuing Guaranty between A.L. Wizard, bmd Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC, dated SeptemtgrZD0¢

10.236) Waiver and Second Amendment to Credit Agreementngntive Registrant, Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC and
Comerica bank, dated October 15, 2i

10.246) General Continuing Guarantee between Propertywaceand Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC, dated NovembBer
2009

10.256) Supplement No. 2 to Security Agreement betweend?tgware, Inc. and Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC, dated
November 6, 200

10.260) Consent and Third Amendment to Credit Agreementrapibe Registrant, Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC, and
Comerica Bank dated December 23, 2

10.276) Waiver, Consent and Fourth Amendment to Credit Agrent among the Registrant, Wells Fargo Capitariae,
LLC (f/k/a Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC) and Comeri&ank dated February 10, 20

10.286) General Security Agreement between 43642 Yukon,dnd Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLC (f/k/a Wéllrgo
Foothill, LLC), dated February 10, 20.

10.296) Guarantee between 43642 Yukon, Inc. and Wells Faagtal Finance, LLC (f/k/a Wells Fargo Foothill,C),
dated February 10, 20:

10.300) Share Pledge between the Registrant and Wells F2aigdal Finance, LLC (f/k/a Wells Fargo Foothill,C),
dated February 10, 20:

10.31G) Note Purchase Agreement between the Registrantti®n@apital Investors, L.L.C., dated August 1, 2(

10.326) Security Agreement between the Registrant and Hpit@ldnvestors, L.L.C., dated August 1, 2C

10.33) Form of Secured Promissory Note issued by the Ragisto HV Capital Investors, L.L.C. on August2D08 and
September 19, 20(

10.346) First Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement betweeRegistrant and HV Capital Investors, L.L.Cteda
January 20, 2009 and effective as of December (18

10.356) Form of Unsecured Subordinated Promissory NoteigSéy and Series Al

10.35A0) Schedule of Holders of Unsecured Subordinated Rsomy Notes (Series A and Series .

10.360) Form of Unsecured Subordinated Promissory NotedS& and Series (

10.36A0) Schedule of Holders of Unsecured Subordinated Rsomy Notes (Series B and Series

10.376G) Form of Unsecured Subordinated Promissory Notei(&204.0)
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.37A0) Schedule of Holders of Unsecured Subordinated Rsomy Notes (April 201C

10.38() Amendment No. 1 to Unsecured Subordinated Promjiddotes among the Registrant and certain holdeits of
Unsecured Subordinated Promissory Nt

10.396) Lease Agreement between the Registrant and CB RgrBuisiness Center V, Ltd., dated July 23, 1

10.400) First Amendment to Lease Agreement between thesRagt and CB Parkway Business Center V, Ltd.,dlate
November 29, 199

10.416) Second Amendment to Lease Agreement between thistReg and CB Parkway Business Center V, Ltdedat
January 30, 200

10.420) Third Amendment to Lease Agreement between thesRegt and CB Parkway Business Center V, Ltd.,dlate
August 28, 200t

10.430) Fourth Amendment to Lease Agreement between thestRagt and ARI-Commercial Properties, Inc., dated
November 200°

10.446) Fifth Amendment to Lease Agreement between thefRegit and ARI-Commercial Properties, Inc., dated
February 4, 200

10.456) Sixth Amendment to Lease Agreement between thesRagt and ARI-Commercial Properties, Inc., dateatdii
30, 200¢

10.460) Lease Agreement between the Registrant and Sav®g|Rtd., dated August 28, 20

10.476) First Amendment to Lease Agreement among the RagistARI-International Business Park, LLC, ARIIBP 1,

LLC, ARl —IBP 2, LLC, ARI — IBP 3, LLC, ARl — IBP4, LLC, ARI — IBP 5, LLC, ARl —IBP 6, LLC, ARI
— IBP 7, LLC, ARl — IBP 8, LLC, ARl — IBP 9, LLC, AR— IBP 11, LLC and ARI — IBP 12, LLC, dated
December 28, 20C

10.481®) Master Services Agreement between the RegistrahDataBank Holdings Ltd., dated May 31, 2(
10.49+®) Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Shares (Qladirectors
10.50+®) Employment Agreement between the Registrant ammhJasdwall, dated January 8, 20

10.51+®) Employment Agreement between the Registrant andyMadrebenberg, dated May 12, 2C

10.52+(6) Notice of Stock Option Grant under the Amended Redtated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan between thesRagt
and Margot Lebenberg, dated May 12, 2!

10.53+®) Employment Release Agreement between the RegistrahtVilliam Van Valkenberg, dated June 8, 2

10.54®) Consent and Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreementragritbe Registrant, Wells Fargo Capital Finance, I(t/Ha
Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC) and Comerica Bank, dajfethe 22, 201

10.550) Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement among the Reggig Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLC (f/k/a Véell
Fargo Foothill, LLC) and Comerica Bank, dated J2Beg201C

10.56(10) Seventh Amendment to Credit Agreement among thésRagt, Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLC (f/k/a Mde
Fargo Foothill, LLC) and Comerica Bank, dated Segtter 30, 201!

10.5741) Consent and Eighth Amendment to Credit Agreememtrenthe Registrant, Wells Fargo Capital FinanceC LL
(f/k/a Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC) and Comerica Bamated November 3, 20:

10.58(12) Employment Agreement 409A Addendum between the$Regit and Stephen T. Winn, dated November 5,

10.59(13) Employment Agreement 409A Addendum between thed®egit and Timothy J. Barker, dated November 50:

10.60(14) Employment Agreement 409A Addendum between the$Regit and Ashley Chaffin Glover, dated November 5,
2010

10.61(15) Employment Agreement 409A Addendum between the $tagit and Dirk Wakeham, dated November 5, 2

10.62(16) Employment Agreement 409A Addendum between the SRegit and Margot Lebenberg, dated November 5,

10.63(17) Employment Agreement 409A Addendum between the $Regit and Jason Lindwall, dated November 5, 2
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Exhibit
Number Description
10.64(18) Ninth Amendment to Credit Agreement among RealPhuge, Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLC (f/k/a V\&
Fargo Foothill, LLC) and Comerica Bank, dated Febyl23, 2011
10.65+(19) Form of 2011 Management Incentive P
10.66+(20) Amendment No. 1 to 2010 Equity Incentive P
21.121 Subsidiaries of the Registre
23.1* Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registétablic Accounting Firn
31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantExchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 153-14(a), astad
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z
31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 153-14(a), agtad
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z
32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioB8e906
of the Sarban«Oxley Act of 200z
32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioBe906

of the Sarban«Oxley Act of 200z

+
(1)
()
(3)
(4)
()
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)

(12)

Indicates management contract or compensatorygularrangemen
Furnished herewit

Confidential treatment was granted by the Secsraied Exchange Commission for portions of this leikh hese portions ha
been omitted from the report and submitted sepgratehe Securities and Exchange Commiss

Incorporated by reference to the same nunabexhibit to the Registrant’'s Quarterly Report amri 10-Q (File No. 00B4846
filed on November 5, 201!

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 tméndment No. 3 to the Registrant’s Registrationiegtant on Form 3-(SEC File
No. 33:-166397) filed on July 26, 201

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 tméndment No. 3 to the Registrant’s Registratione&tant on Form 3-(SEC File
No. 33:-166397) filed on July 26, 201

Incorporated by reference to the same nundbexhibit to Amendment No. 3 to the RegistrariRegistration Statement on Fc
S-1 (SEC File No. 33-166397) filed on July 26, 201

Incorporated by reference to the same nunabexdibit to the Registrant’s Registration StatetrenForm St (SEC File Nc
33:-166397) filed on April 29, 201(

Incorporated by reference to the same nunadbexbibit to Amendment No. 1 to the RegistrarRegistration Statement on Fc
S-1 (SEC File No. 33-166397) filed on June 7, 201

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.6, 4.8 and 4.9 to the Registrant’s Registrationie®tent on Form 8-(SEC File Nc
33:-168878) filed on August 17, 201

Incorporated by reference to the same nunadbexhibit to Amendment No. 2 to the RegistrarRegistration Statement on Fc
S-1 (SEC File No. 33-166397) filed on July 2, 201

Incorporated by reference to the same nunadbexhibit to Amendment No. 4 to the RegistrarRegistration Statement on Fc
S-1 (SEC File No. 33-166397) filed on July 28, 201

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File. R01-34846) filed o
November 5, 201(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File. R01-34846) filed o
November 5, 201(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File. R01-34846) filed o
November 5, 201(
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(13) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Begistrant’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File. R01-34846) filed o
November 5, 201(

(14) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Begistrant’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File. R01-34846) filed o
November 5, 201(

(15) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Begistrant’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File. R01-34846) filed o
November 5, 201(

(16) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Begistrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File. N01-34846) filed ol
November 5, 201(

(17) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File. §0134846) filed o
November 5, 201(

(18) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to fRegistrant's Current Report on Form 8-K (File N8164846) filed ol
February 24, 201:

(19) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File N8164846) filed ol
February 24, 201:

(20) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K (File N©61€84846) filed o
February 24, 201:

(21) Incorporated by reference to the same numberbibiexo the Registrant’s Registration Statement~onm S1 (SEC File Nc
333-170667) filed on November 17, 20!

113



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference in Regjistration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 388878) of our report dat
February 28, 2011, with respect to the consolidéitethcial statements and schedule of RealPageirdided in this Annual Rept
(Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2010.
/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 28, 2011



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14(a) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Stephen T. Winn, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of RealPage, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaio any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this reg

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)cal are responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule-15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the registrant and ha

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and phaes, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestigularly during the period in which this rep@teing preparec

(b) Paragraph omitted pursuant to Rule-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regmtsadisclosure controls and procedures and predantthis report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discisantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrdggistrant’s internal control over financial repiogt that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an atmeport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer(sjdal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiatuof internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

(a) All significant deficiencies and materiataknesses in the design or operation of internatabover financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatatves management or other employees who havendisant role in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 28, 2011

/sl Stephen T. Winn

Stephen T. Wini
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer didector



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14(a) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Timothy J. Barker, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of RealPage, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaio any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this reg

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)cal are responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule-15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the registrant and ha

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and phaes, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestigularly during the period in which this rep@teing preparec

(b) Paragraph omitted pursuant to Rule-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regmtsadisclosure controls and procedures and predantthis report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discisantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrdggistrant’s internal control over financial repiogt that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an atmeport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer(sjdal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiatuof internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

(a) All significant deficiencies and materiataknesses in the design or operation of internatabover financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatatves management or other employees who havendisant role in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 28, 2011

/sl Timothy J. Barker

Timothy J. Barke
Chief Financial Officel



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of RealPage, [the “Company”) on Form 1R-for the period ending December 31, 2010
“Report”), 1, Stephen T. Winn, Chairman of the BdbaChief Executive Officer and Director of RealPdge, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@fi6rof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that tokmgwledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report faptesents, in all material respects, the finanmigdition and results of operations
of RealPage, Inc

Date: February 28, 2011

/sl Stephen T. Winn

Stephen T. Wini
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer didector

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to RealPageahttwill be retained by
RealPage, Inc. and furnished to the SecuritiesEatiange Commission or its staff upon request.f@regoing certification is bein
furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1&&@is not being filed as part of the Report oa agparate disclosure document.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of RealPage, [the “Company”) on Form 1R-for the period ending December 31, 2010
“Report”), |, Timothy J. Barker, Chief Financial f@fer and Treasurer of RealPage, Inc, certify, pang to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@rkey- Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report faptesents, in all material respects, the finanmigdition and results of operations
of RealPage, Inc

Date: February 28, 2011

/sl Timothy J. Barker

Timothy J. Barke
Chief Financial Officel

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to RealPageahttwill be retained by
RealPage, Inc. and furnished to the SecuritiesEatiange Commission or its staff upon request.f@regoing certification is bein
furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1&&@is not being filed as part of the Report oa agparate disclosure document.



